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Purpose
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As a world-class racing club, we act
continuously for the betterment of our society
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Core Values

ZAOMEE

World-class Leadership | £#iEE
Uncompromising Integrity | B2 <f#ifs

Continuous Development | 1$&if 4

Serving the Community | BR#E+t8%




Integrated Business Model
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Through its integrated business model, the Club generates
economic and social value for our society.

In 2022/23, the Club contributed a record HK$35.9 billion to
the community in tax and approved charity donations.

Racing &
Racecourse
Entertainment
ESREHRE
By continually developing the quality

of our world-class racing, we bring pride
to Hong Kong and provide a racecourse

spectacle filled with entertainment
and sporting energy.

SEHERATBERNETNESR.

AR AR I RBNES
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Membership Club
SEEH
Through their ownership of top-class
thoroughbreds, and despite Hong Kong’s
small horse population, our Members
make Hong Kong’s racing success

globally possible.

BEEMHERATS B2HETE
SES|IATBREN SEBES
BZBHRER

Responsible
Sports Wagering
& Lottery
EHFREEERES

Through our responsible and best-in-class
sports wagering and lottery services,
we help meet public demand, channelling
it away from illegal operators.

EMREEHTIRAEY FE RN
BABYRESREREARN
FR LU BIRE P2
e T

charitable donations and proactive
community engagement, we work to
improve Hong Kong’s quality of life.

RIFPEBHAR BERAREERA

Charities &
Community

HERME

Through our tax contribution,
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Performance Highlights

Amounts Bet by Customers
@ BEREHE
8
* 304.8
|

HKS$ billion
+E#ET

Football
HKS billion| ol

+HEa i
156.9

Mark Six Lottery

NEF
Amounts wagered

by local customers 7.5
AUEER

QL L

1141

Non-local bets
commingled with the
Club’s pools
EASERLHN
FEAR M IR T TR
26.3

84% of the amounts bet locally
are returned as dividends,
rebates and lottery prizes

BTN EENG4%

BERIBERLE
BHIRRSRE

©@)] Betting and
Lottery Revenue
Cﬁ‘ BERESBA

Revenue
by Business

ES T ON

HKS$ billion
+EBT

@ Horse Racing
@ Football Betting
REIFF
Mark Six Lottery

AT
NE

* Horse race betting revenue does

not include fees from commingling
partners and royalty income
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HKS$ billion
+EET

Revenue
Distribution
U A 2B

HKS billion
+EBIT

%

of the Club’s betting and lottery
revenue is returned to Hong Kong

FEBRERRFUATNTCHEET B

@ Betting Duty & Profits Tax to HKSAR
Government
BB AT R B AR &Y
BB R AEH
Lotteries Fund

@ Approved Donations to Charities Trust
MEEETESEHLNBR

@ Club Operations
Bere T
Operating Surplus after

Donations to Charities Trust
BEBZEETESENLERR

Club Contributions to Hong Kong
FEHEBNERM

Tax Contribution #i 5 = &

Horse Race Betting Duty
BEEEHR

Football Betting Duty*
m BIRERB

Lottery Duty

HKS$ billion 48 H MR
TRER Profits Tax
FEH

* Including HK$0.6 billion in Special Football Betting Duty
for April-dJune 2023
* BIER2023F 426 A HRBEST6EE TH [ BN R IRIEEH

Lotteries Fund Contribution #& % & & 5 &

1 1 HK$ billion

+{%/%7TJ

Approved Donations B Z#ti5

Approved Donations to Community B & #{tZZ18R
; 3 Charities and community 247
prOJects supported
HKS$ billion BRERIBEA
+1E'/%7D

Employment Created RliE R £ KE

Full-time and Part-time Jobs 28 & 3R BB

19,415



Chairman’s Statement
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'This has been a year of great achievement for the Club and for
the community we serve. The Club welcomed fans back to the
racecourses in their tens of thousands as we emerged from
the pandemic. We achieved a record turnover of HK$304.8
billion for the financial year and HK$305.6 billion for the racing
season. We reinvigorated our charities strategy, strengthened our
cooperation with the Mainland, and launched new membership
initiatives. Above all, we contributed a record HK$35.9 billion to
the community. This comprised a record HK$28.6 billion in betting
duty, profits tax and Lotteries Fund contributions and HK$7.3
billion in approved charity donations. Indeed, our donations were
well above the HK$6.6 billion the Club approved last year and
second only to the HK$7.6 billion we donated in 2016/17 when
we made a special donation to construct the Hong Kong Palace
Museum.
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| would like to express my sincere thanks to the racing community, to
our members, to the HKSAR Government, to Mainland authorities, to
the Club’s management and employees, and most especially to our
racing fans. Through your support, Hong Kong racing has continued
to be an example to the world of the strength and resilience of our city.

Racing for Hong Kong
HEREEBES

The unique role racing plays in bringing our community together, and
as an international ambassador for Hong Kong, was well illustrated by
our showcase race days this season.

Thanks to the support of the HKSAR Government, the LONGINES
Hong Kong International Races in December were an outstanding
success. Despite ongoing health measures, over 300 members of the
international racing community travelled to Hong Kong. Over 45,000
fans witnessed Hong Kong win three out of four international races.

The Club responded quickly and effectively following the removal

of COVID measures, bringing Hong Kong racing fans and Mainland
visitors back to the racecourses. They enjoyed not only our
world-class racing but spectacular racecourse entertainment, with our
popular Happy Wednesday brand being a particular highlight.

At Chinese New Year, we welcomed 84,000 spectators, our biggest
crowd in three years, while turnover was the highest in 26 years. There
was another strong attendance for the BMW Hong Kong Derby and
for FWD Champions Day, where Hong Kong horses triumphed in all
three Group 1 races.

Investing for the Future

REMRIRR

The Club’s resilience during the pandemic, and its record return to
the community this year, would not have been possible without a
significant investment in its world-class racing over many years. This
includes our multi-billion-dollar transformation of the racecourses,
the construction of Conghua Racecourse, our cutting-edge wagering
technology, and our substantial investment in prize money to
incentivise owners to invest in top-class thoroughbreds.
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BARVNBHESERRE  BFE28
BEBSRITHEBUAT - RWM%E@ 954
SEEEERENLEET  Ui5REE
UBERREHD - BEARNIF &8
BEREEN S RTBEEBNEEE HAHE
JLERES ©

EETMEREFRBEHENERAR B
BRBAREBHERAME  E—HKES
ESERUNERSEEEEFH TR
B o

EEBBEBNNIET  BEE2R128%
THRZERBERESESEMRI © &
%Qhﬁ = BSPRh R IR - EEEREE

NS ZRBBIOZEZERE &
qai.ﬁ,l » WEE1545,000% B FRAE » B
BARMERENEFRESS  BE=1
TE > ABEN -

MEE RIS ErE E AR - e BEREVA
REMBVIERE » 2R AR AR B R Ay it
RE - ERSSEE EHMAZIHRR
EENEE  WREBEENENFIZR

% ErhESEIH [Happy Wednesday |
Tﬁ%i)ﬁ%ﬂ‘  FEREBERH— -

EEFFEES Hi%1584,000 A ESEE
BI=FEHs 2 REEFETRIF T 26F R
HESLHE BEEBITUAEREEHR
MEEBEEATRSIRKEERAL » ME
BREEEERBTEESAS - REK
R BR=E-RETE -

SE > FERTHEANERESD © IBEFER
ZE  WLAIRAC SRR B E 1874

o OELE - E—V2BEELFERE
Bt ARBEMELNERRE - 81
REFTRBARABSRE - B2l
515 - TRASENRIRE - URKIEE
NMBESRSE  FBHETREBERFMISI
ABE o



As a result, Hong Kong now ranks among the world’s top racing
jurisdictions despite having just 0.7% of the world’s racehorses. This
year 15 Hong Kong horses featured in the LONGINES World’s Best
Racehorse Rankings, while ten of our 12 Group 1 races were listed in
the LONGINES World’s Top 100 Group/Grade 1 Races - two more
than last year.

Furthermore, world-class racing has enabled the Club to earn
substantial overseas revenue via commingling. This season
commingling turnover on Hong Kong racing was up 3.0% to HK$25.4
billion, comprising 19.6% of total local racing turnover. The Club is
expanding its global footprint still further through simulcasting and the
World Pool, with turnover up 12.5% this season to HK$11.8 billion.

The Club must continue to invest to sustain its world-class standard.
Global competition for high-quality thoroughbreds is intensifying and
next season we will raise prize money to a record HK$1.73 billion. At
Sha Tin, we will commence a much-needed renovation of the stables
and we will maintain our racecourse renovation programme. We also
intend to invest substantially in our technology, in particular to further
support the international growth of commingling and the World Pool.

Given such demands on its resources, the Club is concerned about
any increase in betting duty rates. In our discussions with the HKSAR
Government earlier this year, we highlighted that betting duty rates in
Hong Kong are already very high. At 50% on football and up to 75%
on racing, they far exceed rates in other jurisdictions. This includes
Macau, where betting duty on football is just 25%. We further pointed
out that illegal betting operators pay no tax at all. Any increase in the
rate of betting duty would seriously undermine the Club’s competitive
offering as well as its ability to channel gambling demand for
community benefit. The Government subsequently announced Special
Football Betting Duty, under which the Club will pay an additional
HK$2.4 billion in football betting duty per year for five years starting
from the beginning of the Government’s 2023/24 financial year. That is
a total of HK$12 billion over five years.

@ Chairman’s Statement / XERE
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In view of the Government’s exceptional fiscal needs, the Club fully
supports Special Football Betting Duty. We have also committed to
maintaining our regular charity donations at not less than HK$4.5
billion a year over its five-year duration. Indeed, at HK7.3 billion,

our approved donations this year far exceed this commitment,

even though we had to draw on the Club’s reserves to fund them.
Nonetheless, | must stress that the Club’s position on betting duty
rates remains unchanged. Any permanent increase in the rate of
betting duty would hand a huge advantage to our competitors,
especially in the illegal market. This would be a major blow to the Club
and will result in a significant loss in tax to the Government and charity
funding to the community.

Strengthening our Community
Support

mExEdE

The benefits that derive from our investment in the Club are nowhere
more apparent than in the substantial increase in Charities Trust
donations over the last ten years, which have risen from HK$1.95
billion in 2012/13 to HK$7.3 billion this year.

Societal needs, however, are constantly changing. In response to
these needs, and also to take account of government priorities, the
Club has substantially refreshed and refocused its charities strategy.
The new triennial (2022-25) strategy has five pillars. The first, Positive
Ageing and Elderly Care, addresses the needs of Hong Kong’s
ageing demographic. The second, Children and Youth Development,
aims to help young people, especially the underprivileged, get the
best possible start in life. The third, Healthy Community, focuses

on primary care (including mental well-being) and end-of-life care.
The fourth, Talent and Sector Development, aims to build social

and human capital in support of Hong Kong’s development. Lastly,
Sports and Culture seeks to promote the benefits of an active lifestyle
and the pleasures of cultural experiences, all of which are essential
to a vibrant global city such as Hong Kong. In view of the urgent
environmental issues affecting our community, the Club will also
develop sustainability as a new charities strategic theme.
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A second key element of the new charities strategy is stakeholder
engagement, with the aim of reaching out to a wider spectrum

of agencies, facilitating applications from smaller NGOs, and
building sector capacity. In parallel a tailored impact measurement
methodology is being developed. This will articulate the Club’s
multiple layers of social impact and enrich environmental, social and
governance reporting and strategic communication.

The Club’s Charities Trust has always been much more than a
grant-maker. Through its Trust-initiated Projects (TIPs) it pilots new
service models and brings fresh thinking to the social service sector. In
addition, it supports major initiatives launched by partner institutions.
Many of these projects are now coming to fruition. This year we were
especially pleased to see two Trust-supported projects taken up by the
Education Bureau, namely CoolThink@JC, which promotes the digital
creativity of upper primary school students, and the CUHK Jockey
Club Al for the Future Project, which educates junior secondary school
students about the uses, benefits and ethics of artificial intelligence.
We hope both initiatives will equip our young people with the skill sets
they need for work and life in the 21st century.

At this year’'s Community Day, | launched the newest TIP - JC
VOLUNTEER TOGETHER. Through school programmes and
activities for young-olds and retirees, the aim is to promote city-wide
volunteering. Such a spirit is already alive and well at the Club, where
members and employees regularly lend a helping hand through our
CARE@nhkjc volunteer teams. We hope JC VOLUNTEER TOGETHER
will inspire many more to follow their example. Ultimately, we see
volunteering as a way to bring our community together, giving people
from all walks of life a personal stake in the welfare of our city and the
betterment of our society.

@ Chairman’s Statement / XERE
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We are also working hard to build community spirit and to share

what is best about our city with the rest of the world. This year, we
celebrated the fifth anniversary of Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and
Arts, which was conserved and revitalised by the Club and has to
date received over 13 million local and international visitors. | also had
the pleasure of joining underprivileged members of the community
sponsored by the Club for both editions of the Hong Kong Sevens
rugby competition. In addition, the Club supported major international
sporting competitions as part of its ongoing funding for events
marking the 25th anniversary of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. These included the Hong Kong Masters snooker tournament
and the November edition of the Hong Kong Sevens. In each case our
support included a strong community element, enabling people from
disadvantaged backgrounds to enjoy the best of world sport.

The Club’s decades of strategic philanthropy and the expertise of

its community partners clearly illustrate that Hong Kong has a great
deal to share. We have already taken a step towards this through

the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum, whose third edition will be
held in September. The Club is now actively exploring opportunities

to institutionalise and disseminate Hong Kong'’s knowledge and
expertise. This will not only establish Hong Kong as a regional and
global philanthropic hub but contribute to the national goal of common
prosperity.
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Stronger Ties with the Mainland

hnaE B A b 5 B2

Over the years the Club has forged close ties with the Mainland,
reaching out especially during natural disasters and emergencies.
Notably the Club donated HK$1 billion for reconstruction in Sichuan
following the devastating earthquake of 2008.

The Club has for some years supported youth exchange programmes
in collaboration with the Liaison Office of the Central People’s
Government in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

the Office of the Commissioner of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs in

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. This year | had the
honour of witnessing the signing of agreements to further extend our
cooperation in the fields of arts, culture and sport. These will provide
opportunities for Hong Kong’s young people to learn more about the
Mainland and the possibilities available to them.

The Club’s strongest contribution to national development is through
its support for the equine industry and equine sports. Our key area

of focus is the Greater Bay Area, which we believe has enormous
potential to develop a world-class equine industry, contributing

to economic and social development. In 2021, the Club signed a
Framework Cooperation Agreement with the Guangzhou Municipal
Government for the joint development of the Guangzhou-Hong Kong
Racing Economic Cluster. As stipulated in the agreement the Club will
host regular race meetings at its Conghua Racecourse in Guangzhou,
where work is in progress to construct a grandstand and to expand
stabling and training facilities. We expect regular racing to commence
in April 2026. This year, the Club agreed with the Guangdong and
Guangzhou sports bureaus to strengthen mutual support and to further
promote the sports industry in the Greater Bay Area, including for the
development of equine sports and the equine industry.

The Club is also doing everything it can to support equine sports in
other parts of the Mainland. For many years we have been working
with the Chinese Equestrian Association and this year we signed a
supplemental agreement to take forward our cooperation with respect
to speed racing and the equestrian industry in the Mainland.

We are also delighted to provide technical support for the equestrian
events of the upcoming 19th Asian Games in Hangzhou. This builds
on the Club’s extensive support for the equestrian events of the 2008
Beijing Olympics and the 2010 Guangzhou Asian Games. Hong Kong,
China will field its own equestrian team, all of them members of the
Equestrian Federation of Hong Kong, China Team, who have benefited
from the Club-supported Hong Kong Equestrian Performance Plan.

A Club-supported rider won Hong Kong, China’s first Asian Games
equestrian gold medal at the last games and we sincerely hope more
accolades will follow. To carry forward the legacy of the games,

the Club has signed an agreement with the Hangzhou Municipal
Government to explore further opportunities to develop equestrian
sport in Hangzhou.

@ Chairman’s Statement / XERE
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Combating Climate Change
FEE Rz 21t

Climate change is without question one of the most important issues
affecting our community and the racing industry, both in Hong Kong
and globally. The Club is working hard to address the issue at the
industry level through its leadership of the International Federation of
Horseracing Authorities and the Asian Racing Federation. The Club
fully supports the HKSAR Government’s target of carbon neutrality
by 2050. We are also working to reduce carbon emissions and to
strengthen environmental protection through the work of our Charities
Trust and through initiatives across the Club.

For some years sustainability has been incorporated into the design of
all major construction projects, including both Conghua Racecourse
and Happy Valley New Clubhouse. Existing buildings have also been
retrofitted where possible with energy-efficient technology. Due to
these efforts, and to reductions in carbon intensity by our electricity
suppliers, the Club’s carbon emissions this year were 5% below our
baseline year of 2009/10. This was despite a considerable increase in
business activity over this period.

A great deal more needs to be done and new initiatives are already

in progress. These include the installation of solar panels at selected
facilities in Hong Kong, which will generate up to 5 million kWh

of renewable energy per year. At Conghua Racecourse the new
grandstand and multi-level car park have also been designed to
maximise generation of solar energy, which will supply at least 30% of
their energy needs.

Water management is another major area of focus. Water conservation
was a key factor in the design of Conghua Racecourse, with 39% of
water used this year being recycled water. Since May, Happy Valley
Racecourse has been using a mix of harvested and municipal water
for track irrigation, with harvested water supplying up to 25% of
needs.

In terms of resource management, the Club has significantly cut
down on paper and single-use plastics, while food waste from the
clubhouses and racecourses is sent to the Government’s O - PARK1
for composting. The Club is working towards turning all of its stable
waste into a reusable product.

The Club has also implemented a pioneering project to cultivate barley
grass hydroponically. This aims to reduce reliance on imported horse
feed and to promote equine health. If successful, we hope to supply
the Club’s entire horse population in Hong Kong and potentially also
the Mainland.
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Reimagining the Membership Experience
BiEmHEERR

At the heart of the Club are our members. They own the horses
which are fundamental to the success of our world-class racing. They
carry forward our community commitment. Above all they shape the
character of the Club. For these reasons we have always sought to
attract high-calibre members by providing some of the best dining
and recreation facilities and through creating a truly memorable
membership experience.

Happy Valley New Clubhouse is a key part of this strategy, designed
especially to attract the next generation of members and their families.
With the ending of the pandemic, members have at last been able

to enjoy its 50-metre swimming pool, a state-of-the-art gym, a wide
range of dining options, and the vibrant social atmosphere of The
Eighth. Feedback has been universally positive.

Meanwhile, at Happy Valley Old Clubhouse we reopened the

Hilltop Gym, Hilltop Pool and Pool View Lounge area following their
renovation and completion of the timber roof replacement project.
Happily, this was just in time to celebrate the 30th anniversary of the
Old Clubhouse.

Club membership is, however, about much more than hardware. We
are above all a community, and it is to forge a closer bond between
members that we are launching programmes designed to bring
members together through truly memorable experiences.

We also continue to invest in the racegoing experience and to
encourage members to participate in the sport. To facilitate
participation, we this year opened a new and greatly expanded
members’ car park at Sha Tin Racecourse. For newer members we
have also launched a series of “Ignite Your Racing Passion” themed
dinners on race days. Members with ownership aspirations have
also been invited to seminars and webinars and to special events
such as the BMW Hong Kong Derby gala party and the Hong Kong
International Sale.

In my first year as Chairman, | would like to express my gratitude to my
fellow Stewards. In particular my sincere thanks to Deputy Chairman
Dr Eric Li, who retired in May. His support and wise counsel have

been of immense help as the Club has navigated the challenges of the
post-pandemic environment and built a solid foundation for its future
development.

No less important has been the Board of Management. Under the
leadership of our Chief Executive Officer Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges,
our management team has guided the Club through three of the

most difficult years in the Club’s history while still driving forward our
business development and ensuring the Club maintains its strong
support for the community. Finally, my sincerest thanks to the Club’s
employees. Without you we could not have done so much for the
betterment of Hong Kong.

Michael T H Lee
Chairman

26 July 2023
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Anthony
| Ingham

N EER

Michael
Fitzsimons

Chief Executive Officer
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
TEAEE FEXA

Audit; Property; Security and Integrity;
Corporate Strategy and Business Planning
TR IEl | R RGHEEER
SIS ESE S p- T

Executive Director, Charities and
Community
Gabriel Leung

= &%iEEi‘%iﬂ THIEE RER
Charities; Sustainability
HEERI  FERE

Executive Director, Corporate Affairs
Raymond C Y Tam s
DEIBEITHEE EXR

Public Affairs (Racing, Wagering

Communications and Issue Management);

Public Affairs (Corporate and Charities
Communications); External Affairs; Mainland Affairs
DHEBI (BBRICIER - FEEE)

DHEBM (REREZEEER)  HHSKH
At EHEED

Executive Director, Customer Strategy,
Insights and Innovation

Dennis Hau

EERE - BRRAINEHEMTEE
TRE*

Retail & Telebet Services; Integrated Contact
Centre; Traditional Public Segment; New Segment;
Owner and Member Wagering Segment; Mainland
Mass and Elite (MMAE) Segment; Customer Digital
Experience; Data and Analytics; Customer Insights
Centre of Excellence; Customer Experience
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L\my‘ﬁ“ﬂ FEFH BEREERIEFIL
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DMEMHL  BERERE

Executive Director, Finance

David H Fan

BRI AT RS SE)

Finance; Investment Office; Treasury ;

Strategic Procurement & Commercial Management
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Executive Director, Legal and
Compliance

Shella S C Ng
/ié&Aﬁ%iﬁn THES {H/NER

Legal Services; Corporate Secretariat; Compliance

EEBHE RRARERE  SRBEKM

Executive Director, Membership,
Brand, Marketing and Experience
Anthony Ingham

28 mE - miER
EFRRERHTEE BER
Membership Operations and Services;

Mainland Membership Development; Hong

Kong Membership Development; Racecourse
Management; Member Experience Marketing;
Racing Marketing; Brand and Digital Marketing
Channels; MBMX Strategy and Business Planning;
Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts
EEEERBBEREL  ALEEEHRE
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Executive Director, People and
Organisational Development

Lake G W;
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Business Facing; Reward and Operations;
Employee Relations; Talent Acquisition; Talent
Management and Learning; Organisational Design
and Analytics; HR Transformation
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Executive Director, Projects and Risk
Management

Richard A K Tsiang
EHERERBEEHTEE B2l

Conghua Racecourse; Corporate Programme
Management Office; Dual Precinct
Operations Development
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Executive Director, Racing
Andrew C Harding
§%$i§iﬂﬁﬁ!§§£ EER

Dual Site Stables Operations; Equestrian Affairs;
Equine Welfare Research Foundation; Farrier
Services; International and Racing Regulation;
Logistics & Transport; Ownership Management &
The Racing Club; Programme Management Office,
Racing; Raceday Operations, Tracks & Racing
Facilities; Racing Capital Projects; Racing Control;
Racing Digitalisation; Racing Laboratory;

Racing Operations; Racing Product; Racing Talent
Training Centre; Veterinary Clinical Services;
Veterinary Regulation, Welfare & Biosecurity Policy;
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EXHAEEERRRY  BEFEASEDS;
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Executive Director, Wagering Products
Michael Fitzsimons

BEERBITEE SBREX

Betting Control & Customer Operations;
Football Wagering; Fixed-Odds Racing;
Football Wagering Marketing; Commingling;
Racing Wagering Product; Mainland Sports
Lottery Collaboration; Divisional Planning;
Product Development
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

ITHRE RS

' This has been a year of significant achievement for the Club as it transitioned into the
post-pandemic era. Thanks to resilience, agility, the dedication of employees and an
enormous commitment of resources we were able to fully resume our operations from
the second half of the season with great success, as demonstrated by our business
results and record community contribution this year.
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The Group’s total wagering and lottery revenue for the racing season
was a record HK$16.6 billion, up 0.8% on 2021/22, while turnover was
a record HK$305.6 billion, up 5.3%. Racing turnover for the season
was up 0.5% to HK$141.1 billion, with income to the Club up 1.8%

to HK$6.4 billion. Football turnover was up 9.1% to HK$156.9 billion,
though income to the Club was down 0.8% to HK$9.8 billion, reflecting
the Club’s provision of HK$0.6 billion for Special Football Betting Duty
for April-dune 2023. The Mark Six lottery, which returned to three draws
per week from the end of July, continued its recovery, with turnover

up 29.2% to HK$7.5 billion and income up by the same percentage to
HK$0.4 billion.

In addition, thanks to prudent and sound management the Club’s
investment portfolio reversed last year’s mark-to-market loss of HK$725
million to record a gain of HK$2.3 billion. Likewise, the investment
portfolios of the Charities Trust reversed last year’s loss of HK$1.24
billion to record a gain of HK$3.67 billion.

This positive performance enabled the Club to contribute a record
HK$35.9 billion to the community. Total betting duty, profits tax and
Lotteries Fund contributions were up 6.0% to HK$28.6 billion. Our
approved charity donations, at HK$7.3 billion, were the second highest
in the Club’s history, the highest being in 2016/17 when we made a
special donation to construct the Hong Kong Palace Museum to mark
the 20th anniversary of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Investing to Ensure Future Growth

ERGEARE HEBARERE

Making all of this possible is the Club’s integrated business model
through which racing and wagering generate employment, tax and
charity support for the community. Only through the success of our
world-class racing, and our three wagering products of racing, football
and the Mark Six, is the Club able to generate such record levels of tax
and charity support for Hong Kong.
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To put this into perspective, in the last ten years alone the Club’s

total betting turnover for the season increased from HK$152.2 billion

to HK$305.6 billion. As a result, the Club’s total betting duty for the
season increased from HK$17.2 billion to HK$27.1 billion and our
charity donations from HK$1.95 billion to HK$7.3 billion. Such high
returns are only possible because of the Club’s business strategies and
significant investment in its products, technology, infrastructure and
people.

Our substantial growth in football betting turnover would not have

been possible without significant multi-billion-dollar investments

in IT systems and digitalisation. One example is our HK$3.5 billion
Customer Information and Wagering System. This facilitated the launch
of In Play first half HILO markets and Same Game All Ups, as well as
the soft-launch of Early Settlement and Free-to-play games on GoalX,
all of which will help combat illegal betting operators. As for the 2022
World Cup, while not especially successful in terms of turnover due to
its unusual timing in November/December, this was compensated for
by In Play betting on non-World Cup matches taking place during the
World Cup period. The World Cup heightened the interest of customers
and the Club’s legalised betting channel was able to capture increased
demand which would otherwise have turned to illegal and offshore
operators.

Turning to racing, globally-competitive prize money is essential to
sustain our world-class racing product. Most especially to incentivise
owners to buy top-class horses and to stage global events like the
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races and FWD Champions Day.
It also enables us to attract and retain the best jockeys and trainers,
who are key to developing our Hong Kong talent. Over the last ten
years prize money has grown by almost 100% and next season will be
a record HK$1.73 billion.

Our investment in world-class racing and technology has also enabled
the Club to expand into overseas markets via commingling. This
season commingling turnover grew 3% to HK$25.4 billion and now
represents almost 20% of turnover on Hong Kong races. Through
simulcasting of top overseas races and our innovative creation and
hosting of World Pools on these races we have achieved outstanding
results. Combined turnover on both products this season was up
12.5% to HK$11.8 billion. All this helped compensate for the slight 1.3%
decline in turnover from Hong Kong customers on local racing due to
a decline in turnover from our high-value customers, especially in the
last few months. The result was an overall increase of 0.5% in racing
wagering turnover for the season to HK$141.1 billion.
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@ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TE## 3R &

Given the need to continually invest in its business development, the
Club was understandably concerned about Special Football Betting
Duty. Under this the Club will pay an additional HK$12 billion in duty
over five years starting from April 2023. This is, however, a time-limited
measure for five years as made clear by the Financial Secretary in his
Budget Speech. We are grateful for his understanding that an increase
in betting duty rates would have been detrimental to our ability to
compete with the illegal market and thereby to sustain our investment
in support of Hong Kong.

Here it is important to understand that betting duty rates in Hong Kong,
at up to 75% on racing and 50% on gross margin on football, are
already the highest in the world. Racing betting duty is almost double
that of Japan, which pays 40%, and three times that of Singapore,
which pays 25%. Duty rates in the UK, the US and Australia are even
lower.

Our near-neighbour Macau pays just 25% duty on football betting and
is permitted to offer betting on a much wider range of sports than the
Club. Given that some of the Club’s football betting products already
operate on very low margins, an increase in the rate of football betting
duty would put around 40% of our football betting gross margin at risk.
This would jeopardise our significant tax and charity contribution to the
community.

Furthermore, the Club faces major competition from illegal operators
who pay no tax, and from overseas sports betting bookmakers who
operate under very low tax regimes. In both cases they offer a much
wider range of sports wagering products than the Club, ranging from
basketball to Formula 1. According to the Asian Racing Federation’s
Council on Anti-lllegal Betting, illegal betting is growing much faster
(64% growth in traffic to unlicensed and unregulated websites) than
legal betting (36% growth in traffic to licensed and regulated betting
websites). The Council further reported that Hong Kong illegal betting
profits amount to HK$14-15 billion a year, meaning that hundreds of
billions of dollars are bet illegally in Hong Kong every year. This threat
will only grow as illegal operators adopt the latest technologies and
payment systems. Cryptocurrency has become standard in many illegal
websites. Emerging technologies such as NFTs are also being used.
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Special Football Betting Duty will undoubtedly have an impact on the
Club. Our operating surplus over the next five years will be significantly
reduced and therefore donations from the Club to the Trust will decline
accordingly. Nonetheless we will not scale back our investment in the
Club, which is essential to ensure its long-term sustainability and to
fulfil our purpose of contributing to the betterment of our society. Nor
will we scale back Charities Trust donations to the community, which
will have to be funded from our reserves.

Just why the Club needs to invest to ensure future growth is apparent
from the challenges the Club is currently facing and also from the
opportunities that are opening up in the Mainland and globally. It is to
these challenges and opportunities that | will now turn.

Further Strengthening our Racing

E-SEEREFRK

The foundation of the Club’s success is its world-class racing. Despite
having just 0.7% of the world’s racehorses, Hong Kong is home to
over 5% of the best horses in the world, which now regularly feature
in the LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings. In the July 2023
rankings, Golden Sixty and Lucky Sweynesse with a rating of 125
were joint third while Romantic Warrior, a graduate of the Hong Kong
International Sale, was in the top ten with a rating of 123. Golden Sixty
also set a new earnings world record and was the first horse in Hong
Kong history to win three successive Horse of the Year crowns. The
same outstanding results apply to our races, with ten out of our 12
International Group 1 races featured in the 2022 LONGINES Top 100
Group 1/Grade 1 Races.

To maintain this high standard, especially given the intense competition
for top-class thoroughbreds, the Club must continue to incentivise
Hong Kong owners to invest and overseas owners to race here. In
particular, we must continue to offer globally competitive levels of prize
money. This is why, following this year’s record 11% increase in prize
money, we will raise prize money next season by a further 8.0% to
HK$1.73 billion. There will be significant increases across all classes,
plus additional bonus incentives. Above all Hong Kong will continue
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@ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TE## 3R &

to stage the world’s richest Group 1 turf races over 1200m, 1400m,
1600m and 2000m. All of this will ensure that Hong Kong remains a
destination of choice for the world’s top owners, trainers and jockeys.

Just as fundamental is the quality of training facilities including
stables, veterinary clinics and rehabilitation facilities. Our vision to
build a world-class training facility in Conghua has set a new global
benchmark. This was undertaken even before the development of the
Greater Bay Area became a National Policy. Conghua celebrated its
fifth anniversary this year and further work is underway to expand its
stables and to construct new staff quarters, with good progress being
made in preparation for their opening in 2024.

Conghua has enabled the Club to grow its horse population and
provided an opportunity to renovate the all-weather training track at
Sha Tin Racecourse this summer. It will also enable us to commence
the comprehensive HK$2.2 billion renovation of the Sha Tin stables
complex to renew its asset life after almost half a century. Without
Conghua this would not have been feasible.

Putting Horse and Human Welfare
First

EREEASEUESL

This year, in response to rising summer temperatures, we introduced
twilight meetings on an experimental basis for the last seven day
meetings of the season to protect horse and human welfare.

The Club’s commitment to horse welfare is always a paramount
consideration and informs everything that we do. The Club’s systems
for determining suitability to race and to prevent horses at risk of injury
from running in races represent the platinum standard globally.

This begins with the pre-import vetting of horses through to the most
stringent pre-race veterinary inspections and post-race investigations
of performance and incidents that are in place anywhere in the world.
The Club also has stringent controls to prevent the use of prohibited
substances both in training and in racing.
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Every horse is subject to a robust veterinary examination by an
independent regulatory veterinarian on the day before racing. Any horse
found not suitable to race is not permitted to compete and must be
subsequently shown to have fully recovered and to have been provided
with the necessary rest and rehabilitation before racing again. On race
days and before each race horses are further monitored up until the
moment the race begins. If any doubt exists about a horse’s suitability
to take part in a race that horse will not be allowed to compete.

We are determined to go even further. In 2020 the Club established the
Equine Welfare Research Foundation with an endowment of HK$600
million to fund cutting-edge research studies that can improve the
quality of life of thoroughbred racehorses during and after their racing
careers.

Sustainability Progress Update
AGERRIENER

The Club is likewise committed to facing the challenge of climate
change, which confronts not just the racing industry but the global
community.

To reduce our carbon and environmental footprint the Club has
already invested substantially. All new construction projects, including
Conghua Racecourse and Happy Valley New Clubhouse, have been
designed to high environmental standards, while existing buildings
have been retrofitted where possible to reduce energy consumption.
At Conghua Racecourse, the new grandstand and multi-level car park
have been designed following sustainability principles. These include
features to retain rainwater and specially designed solar panels on the
parade ring roof which will generate over 30% of the energy required.
Through these and other measures the Club has maintained its carbon
emissions at just below its 2009/10 baseline year, even though it

has substantially increased its business activities during this period.
Nonetheless, we will clearly have to invest a great deal more if we are
to continue driving down emissions.

This leads me to the Club’s overall sustainability strategy. Over the last
few years the Club has been framing its approach under three themes:
Environmental & Climate Change, Responsible Consumption and
Production, and Social & Well-being. Projects have been developed
under these themes, primarily with respect to solar energy, turning
stables waste into a reusable product, and further reducing the use of
single-use plastics. Over the past year we have focused on developing
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scalable technology to enable an animal waste treatment facility
currently operated by the Government to handle horse manure. Next
year we will complete planning for the first Club-wide sustainability
strategy. This will be a multi-year strategy, with a materiality assessment
to identify priorities for sustainability goals. We will also establish a
holistic strategy connecting the Club’s purpose and values with its
long-term sustainability goals and actions.

Strategic Development in the
Mainland

HEN ARV RSB R

In our Racing Vision 2030, we outlined the Club’s plan for world-class
racing in the Greater Bay Area under the banner of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club, not only at our two iconic racecourses in Hong Kong but
also at Conghua Racecourse in Guangzhou.

Our vision is anchored in the National Equine Industry Development
Plan (2020-2025) jointly published by the Ministry of Agriculture and
Rural Affairs and the General Administration of Sports, which provides
a framework for developing a high-quality equine industry in the
Mainland.

In 2021, the Club signed a Framework Cooperation Agreement
with the Guangzhou Municipal Government to jointly develop the
Guangzhou-Hong Kong Racing Economic Cluster. A key part of the
agreement is the launch of racing at Conghua Racecourse, where
preparations are well in hand for its commencement in 2026. This
includes the expansion of stabling and the construction of an iconic
grandstand designed by world-renowned architects Herzog & de
Meuron.

The benefits of equine sport and the equine industry for the Greater Bay
Area are increasingly recognised. The Development Plan for Building

an International Consumption Centre in Guangzhou (2022-2025) issued
by the Guangzhou Municipal Government in March identified high-end
sports consumption as one of the development areas for Conghua
district. This year the Club also discussed and agreed with the
Guangdong and Guangzhou sports bureaus on ways to further promote
the development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong and Guangzhou-Hong
Kong sports industries, including through equine sports and equine
industry talent development. The National Games in 2025, co-hosted
by Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao, will be a further opportunity

to boost the sporting profile of the Greater Bay Area, to be followed

just one year later by the launch of horse racing as entertainment and
lifestyle at Conghua.
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The Club’s support for equine sport in the Mainland extends well
beyond the Greater Bay Area. At the national level we have a
long-standing relationship with the Chinese Equestrian Association
(CEA) and the China Horse Industry Association (CHIA). This year
we signed a supplemental agreement with the CEA to take forward
the agreement we signed in 2020. Under this we will expand our
cooperation to develop speed racing and the equestrian industry in
the Mainland. We also signed an MOU with the Organising Committee
of 19th Asian Games in Hangzhou to provide technical support for
the equestrian events and another with the Hangzhou Municipal
Government to take forward the equine legacy of the Hangzhou
games.

The Club has an active and expanding membership base in the
Mainland. Building on the success of our well-established Beijing
Clubhouse, we have started a new development in Shenzhen to be
called The Centre. This will offer lifestyle programmes and dining
facilities as well as opportunities to learn about equine sports and to
share knowledge and expertise about philanthropy. We hope this will
attract more members with an interest in horse ownership. It will also
complement our International Owners Initiative, which is designed

to attract individual owners with significant breeding and ownership
interest to become members and most especially to own and race their
world-class horses in Hong Kong and in future in Conghua.

Relaunching our Customer-Centric
Focus

ENHEUATEREHRE

Customer-centricity is and always has been an absolute focus for the
Club. To stay close to our millions of customers in Hong Kong and
around the world, the Club is transforming the customer experience
at racecourses and Off-Course Betting Branches and most especially
online. Today every part of the customer journey is accessible via
online and mobile channels, with 90% of wagering turnover and funds
transfers being via digital platforms.

Nonetheless, we are acutely aware that customer needs are constantly
evolving and that the pandemic has changed behaviours and
consumption patterns. Some of these changes will be temporary as
customers adjust to the immediate post-pandemic environment, but
some will undoubtedly be long term. The Club has already felt the
impact, as reflected in a decline in local turnover on Hong Kong racing
this season as well as lower racecourse attendance, which has not yet
returned to pre-pandemic levels.
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In response, the Club has renewed its commitment to
customer-centricity across every aspect of its business. To support this
a new Customer Strategy, Insights and Innovation Division has been
established and the Membership, Strategic Marketing and Branding
Division restructured into the Membership, Brand, Marketing and
Experience Division.

The new approach focuses on creating new and more personalised
ways to engage with racing and wagering both online and as a live
experience at racecourses and Off-Course Betting Branches. The aim is
to strengthen our connectivity with customers across the demographic,
from Gen Z to baby boomers.

Technology will be a key part of this, where we are in the process
of developing a new integrated wagering and information app. At
Off-Course Betting Branches, we are creating a totally new retail
concept, launching new experience-based branches offering a
race-dine-play integrated experience. With two opening this year, a
total of five are now in operation.

Above all we are reinvigorating the live racegoing experience. Our
hugely popular Happy Wednesday race nights with live entertainment
have returned, as have marquee events for feature race days at Sha
Tin. We have also continued with our HK$7.1 billion transformation of
the racecourses, with Phase 4 set to be rolled out. All of this has helped
restart and rebuild the atmosphere of live racing after the pandemic,
creating forward momentum for next season.

Expanding our Global Wagering
Brand

HRRREX m

The clearest evidence of the success of our world-class racing is
commingling. Attracted by the quality of our horses and races, our
reputation for strict integrity, rich racing information and the deep
liquidity of our pools, racing fans on five continents now watch and
wager on Hong Kong racing. This season they commingled a record
HK$25.4 billion into Hong Kong pools, contributing 19.6% of local
racing wagering turnover. All of this increased our ability to make charity
donations in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

BRRK  BSEERRESEBHEE
BUAFREWES - BMAZFNE - 5

SRRFFEE - BRKANSBH - m
28  MERBRREBBHCETESR
BASE - miE - THEREFERER -

BEETEHNESX - SHFEHHER - I
REBORE - BRTHEREFRIOE
MRLFEN  FHEORABRTESEE
HYREER - LA RIS IMRIE R RIRER W SR Er
HIRGERTE - ERMRPIETEFREN
BENEHE - ERE[ ZHA | NFEE
B UEEBRRHHENTFE -

HARHREIER F3UE B NERERERD
SEREMRGFRNGEERTIENERR
K - BIMOIRTBEEFTREMER
FERR A UG EERBHRSHE
HESIMOEE - RE—UEAEE - BSK
IRBLVAR SRR - STFEMERREFHE
T EATIRA RSB EIEE R -

FEENR  BEESTERFEENE
SEERER  HPEIEH [ Happy
Wednesday | & EIRE GRS R EER

B MEPHBESNEEESHY - N
HE AR EREEE o teoh  BMgEE
EREBSRREAM BEEERETIES
JC > TEE PP ER AV ES R IE B N ENAS R R o
BEERIEHEHE U LEEEREEES
BEBEERMEARESR » WHEEREE
R

EEMMXBNER  EHTIBRTREE
SR RRBEFIS K - BEEF SRS
ERBSAY - ETREEWERER
MESZFREZERFHENES WY
LENEFEN  MARHEREX
mKs 2RAXNHNEIRBEERREEE
BE - AFEAEBEMOBOERERIFC
8% SEBARBT  MERFMESR
EHE19.6% - LIEERMEEEBRE
ERFME EE BN AMAIEES

29



30

Through the World Pool, which is hosted in Hong Kong, and
simulcasting on international races from around the world, the Club’s
global reach has expanded further. From our first World Pool on Royal
Ascot four years ago, we have expanded to 24 events, including our
first ever World Pool races in Saudi Arabia, Australia and Germany.
Overall simulcast and World Pool turnover this season was up 12.5%
to HK$11.8 billion, comprising 8.4% of total racing wagering turnover.

Global momentum is now building behind the World Pool. This summer
the Club signed agreements with the UK Tote Group and Ascot
Racecourse to take forward our partnerships for a further five years.
More partners will undoubtedly follow. Ultimately we see the World
Pool as the driver of a globally connected audience, with the Club as
a global hub for wagering on the world’s best races. To facilitate this,
a new Racing Information and Wagering Protocol based on the latest
technology will be launched by the Club by January 2024. This will
further grow our revenue via new international bet types and customer
experiences. To fully utilise this opportunity, however, we will need
permission to host more overseas simulcast races.

Stronger Together
BOLEE RHRER

Undoubtedly the greatest challenge over the last three years has been
the pandemic. The Club went the extra mile to increase its contribution,
our Charities Trust approving over HK$2.9 billion in relief initiatives.
Drawing on the lessons of the pandemic, the Club is now strengthening
its support, the Trust approving HK$7.3 billion in donations this year,
the second highest in its history. Through its refreshed charities
strategy the Club is also addressing some of the most critical needs in
our society.

These needs are wide-ranging. Poverty remains a sad reality for far too
many of our fellow citizens. Our ageing population needs increasing
care. Our young people, more than ever, need help navigating their
way to a hopeful future. Health, both physical and mental, is vital for
community well-being.
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The Club is already addressing many of these needs. Our Age-friendly
City project is helping to foster age-friendly practices and attitudes,
while our Community eHealth project utilises digital technology to
support the healthy ageing of older people. CLAP@JC, our long-running
youth career and life development programme, has to date helped

over 33,000 young people. The Club is also a strong supporter of

the Government’s Strive and Rise Programme, which promotes

the personal development of secondary students from low-income
families. In support of a healthy community we have launched initiatives
targeting the mental wellness of young people and the elderly and we
have just launched a major project to support primary care community
pharmacy services. These are just some of our initiatives. More are
forthcoming.

To fully capture the scope and scale of the Club’s social impact and
value creation, we are developing a new measurement and reporting
methodology. This will also be utilised to shape our strategy and
decision making going forward.

Building a Membership Community
with a Passion for Racing

BEGEHE BEEFAM

The Club’s members are the foundation of the Club, not least because
only members can own horses that make our world-class racing
possible. We greatly appreciate the support of members and we hope
they support the Club and its efforts to maintain our status as one of
the world’s finest racing organisations and membership clubs. The Club
continues to offer excellent value considering the scale, diversity and
quality of facilities offered by our four clubhouses and two racecourses,
which are unmatched by any other private membership club in Hong
Kong.
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Maintaining the high standard of our membership services during the
pandemic was, however, a considerable challenge and it has continued
to be so. Hong Kong is facing a significant manpower challenge

and the service industry particularly so. In the past three years, our
membership employee expenses have increased by over 30% due to
the need to provide competitive remuneration. Attracting and retaining
high-quality employees remains an ongoing challenge.

Nonetheless, we are fully committed to delivering a premium
experience to our members. Above all, we continue to support and
encourage members’ passion for racing. We have facilitated this
through our very substantial investment in members’ racecourse
facilities, the latest of which is the new and greatly expanded members’
car park at Sha Tin. In particular we want more members to progress
to horse ownership and we want to enhance the level of service and
support we provide to existing owners, especially on race days. A
special task force has been established to address areas which need
improvement.

One Club, One Team, One Vision
A—Fg EA—BkK- - @B—BE

Looking back over the past year, absolutely integral to our successful
delivery of an 88-meeting season was the commitment and dedication
of an incredible Hong Kong racing community, which again triumphed
in the face of adversity.

Once again | am deeply grateful to the Board of Stewards for their
support. Though the pandemic is behind us, the transition to the
post-pandemic environment has been no less demanding and | truly
appreciate their guidance. In particular my sincere thanks to our
Chairman Mr Michael Lee, to our Deputy Chairman the Honourable
Martin Liao, and to his predecessor Dr Eric Li.

The Club’s Board of Management has been equally supportive, both in
formulating and implementing the Club’s strategy and in managing its
day-to-day operations. Above all my sincere thanks to the Club’s staff
who every day, and in every way, live up to our guiding spirit of “One
Club, One Team, One Vision”.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer

26 July 2023
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With the ending of pandemic restrictions, Hong
Kong racing had an added sparkle this season

as racegoers returned to the tracks in force. The
Club’s international race meetings drew leading
overseas horses, trainers and jockeys. Meanwhile,
the Club continued to strengthen incentives for
horse ownership and launched programmes to share
the excitement of horse racing with the younger
generation in its commitment to the sport’s future
success.

Racing Together Again

As the city emerged from the pandemic, Hong Kong racing fans
were once again able to enjoy the thrill of live racing. The LONGINES
Hong Kong International Races in December, though still with some
restrictions and with the “racing bubble” in force, saw its largest
attendance in three years. But racing really got into its stride at

the Chinese New Year race meeting, with an overall attendance of
84,000. With Hong Kong fully open by February, fans were able to
enjoy the BMW Hong Kong Derby as well as FWD Champions Day,
which attracted a strong contingent of international runners and
witnessed local horses make a clean sweep of the three Group

1 races.

This year also saw Hong Kong horses resume their travels overseas.
In February Russian Emperor became the first runner from the city
since 2019 to claim an overseas victory by winning the US$2.5
million H.H. The Amir Trophy in Doha. Sight Success and Duke Wai
also achieved creditable results at the Dubai World Cup meeting.

With racing due to commence at Conghua Racecourse in
Guangzhou in the 2025/26 season, preparations continued for the
construction of a new grandstand and expanded stabling facilities.
Meanwhile at Sha Tin Racecourse, renovation of the main stable
complex is due to commence in the 2023/24 season.
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Hong Kong Cup
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Hong Kong’s Group 1 Races in
World’s Top 100

The Club’s continued ability to deliver world-class racing despite
the pandemic was reflected in the 2022 LONGINES World’s Top
100 Group/Grade 1 Races, where ten of Hong Kong’s 12 elite races
featured — two more than in the 2021 rankings.

The LONGINES Hong Kong Mile, won by California Spangle, led
the way as the fourth-best race over the distance on turf. The
LONGINES Hong Kong Cup, won by Romantic Warrior, ranked as
the second-highest-rated Hong Kong race, followed closely by the
Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup, won by Wellington, and the Stewards’
Cup, won by Waikuku.

Although no overseas horses were able to travel to Hong Kong for
FWD Champions Day in the 2021/22 season, the FWD QEIll Cup and
FWD Champions Mile also remained prominent in the rankings, as
did the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup.
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World’s Best Racehorse Rankings

Golden Sixty held his ground among the world’s top ten
thoroughbreds for the third consecutive year, tied in eighth place in
the 2022 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings with home-
town rival Romantic Warrior on a rating of 124.

Golden Sixty maintained his place in the top echelon with a superb
win in the BOCHK Private Wealth Jockey Club Mile. Romantic
Warrior’s meteoric rise came on the back of nine wins from ten
starts, including two Group 1 victories and success in the 2022
BMW Hong Kong Derby.

Hong Kong was represented by 15 high achievers in the 2022
rankings, with California Spangle, Wellington and Waikuku also
highly placed.

Joining them on the list of 288 horses on an international rating

of 115 or higher were Russian Emperor, Ka Ying Star, Sky

Field, Tourbillon Diamond, Beauty Joy, Lucky Patch and Lucky
Sweynesse, with Sight Success, Stronger and Super Wealthy also
earning a place.
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Leadership in International Racing

The Club plays a significant role in the global horse racing industry
through the Asian Racing Federation (ARF), the International
Federation of Horseracing Authorities (IFHA) and the International
Horse Sports Confederation (IHSC). Notably, the Club’s CEO is
Chair of the IFHA, Chairman of the ARF and President of the IHSC,
while nine of the Club’s executives hold senior positions on the ARF
and IFHA.

The Club continues to host the secretariats for both the ARF and
its Council on Anti-lllegal Betting and Related Financial Crime, and
leads the work of the IFHA Executive Office.

In October, the Club’s CEO chaired the 56th International
Conference of Horseracing Authorities (ICHA) in Paris. Being the first
in-person gathering of the IFHA for two years due to the pandemic,
the ICHA reunited members from over 40 countries. In his keynote
address, the Club’s CEO spelled out the major challenges and
opportunities ahead for the industry. Noting changes in wagering
and spectator behaviour during the pandemic, he highlighted the
importance of emerging technologies in engaging customers.

The ARF was also able to hold its first in-person annual gathering

in three years in February, when the 39th Asian Racing Conference
took place in Melbourne. The conference, at which the Club’s CEO
was re-elected ARF Chairman, was attended by over 700 delegates
from 35 countries.

In a three-day business programme, the CEO delivered a keynote
opening address outlining the current global racing and breeding
landscape, as well as the future outlook in the wake of the
pandemic. Senior Club executives also delivered presentations and
participated in panel discussions related to wagering, mental health,
illegal betting and equine welfare.

R

FESHEDNEEKE  BRESASKE
kBB ETESHENS - HERSER
BR % HhESTHARERNERIEE
BRETASKE DNESHBERBRSE
LREBEHENTIE SEFENBTHAR
RENESHERERESASBETEET
2 -

SERERTNESHARETITERE
%ﬁ&ﬁ@@ﬂ%ﬁ@%ghk THXE
R¥ - WEERMREFA M ENT
/'\"“‘%ﬁ% o

SITHABERAN2022F10 BT EE
E%%%Fl%%%@%w AEE o B
MESERZHOREYE  SEEEME
HOTEREE  HBE40ZERRNES
ABMRRERE - Eamﬁétﬁﬁfﬁ
EiE BMESEERNEZTRE R

c HEREFARBEENTRIEHHE
ﬁﬁ%%’@§M%ﬂEm%mﬂﬁ%
WEIEENEE—IR -

FIEEMNEEFEEN2023F2 A ERAN
BT EUNEEHBE=FRERNWEE
EReEEFAE  RHISEBXRE700
¥RRREESS  UHEESTHRARB
REBTMNERHBEERE -

STHARE - B-ANSERHEE
fﬁﬂéﬂ’%%i_ibﬁﬁ BENRERRH
REAS BEZESHTHRAEHLRE L
BRREBNSHBETH > FIBVEE -
DEER - ELHBERETREUNESEE -




Ownership

The Club is continuously working to improve facilities and services
for owners to provide a truly world-class ownership experience.

For example, the new multi-level car park at Sha Tin Racecourse,
which opened in December, provides significant additional capacity
to meet owners’ needs. Meanwhile, Conghua Racecourse entered
its fifth year of operation and is now firmly established as a premier
facility for the stabling, training and rehabilitation of owners’ horses.
Facilities at Conghua are now being expanded as part of its Phase
2 development, while stable facilities at Sha Tin will commence
renovation in the 2023/24 season.

With the market for top thoroughbreds increasingly competitive,
the Club introduced a number of measures this season to support
owners and to promote horse ownership. With the easing of
pandemic restrictions, the Club was also able to resume owner
engagement programmes, including the First Time Owner Welcome
Dinner, at which racing officials and special guests shared personal
insights on the world of horse racing.

The Hong Kong International Sale in June was a further opportunity
for owners to purchase quality thoroughbreds handpicked by the
Club’s expert buying team. Fifteen lots went under the hammer,
the highest price being HK$8.6 million for Lot 13 by Zoustar out of
Fortune Of War.

Peter Lau Pak Fai (left), owner of Romantic Warrior,
is presented with the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup.
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Members of the Sunshine and Moonlight Syndicate
celebrate in style after Voyage Bubble wins the BMW
Hong Kong Derby.
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Prize Money

The Club continues to offer some of the best prize money in world
racing, both to incentivise owners to keep on investing in quality
thoroughbreds and to attract overseas connections to race in Hong
Kong. Following a record 11% increase in 2022/23, Hong Kong’s
prize money pool will rise a further 8% next season. Including
bonuses, a total of HK$1.73 billion will be offered next season. In
total, Hong Kong prize money has increased by almost 100% in the
last ten years.

Prize money for Griffins will increase by 8% to HK$950,000 a race,
while Class 1 races at 1600m and further will be worth HK$4.075
million, up 7.2%. To further nurture Hong Kong’s middle-distance
talent, races at 1600m and above at Class 1 to Class 3 will continue
to carry a 10% premium in prize money. Meanwhile, the DBS x
Manulife Million Challenge series winnings will be boosted by
HK$500,000 to HK$1.5 million.

To support owners investing in high-quality Hong Kong Derby
contenders, Derby prize money will be increased by HK$2 million
to HK$26 million. The two other legs of the Four-Year-Old Classic
Series — the Hong Kong Classic Mile and Hong Kong Classic Cup -
will carry a purse of HK$13 million, an extra HK$1 million each.

To further incentivise owners to invest in top-quality bloodstock the
Club is building on the success of the PP bonus scheme introduced
this season. Winning bonuses for PPs (Privately Purchased Horses)
will be boosted by 50% from HK$1 million to HK$1.5 million for
Class 2 and Class 3 horses rated 60 or higher before reaching five
years of age. PPGs (Privately Purchased Giriffins) will continue to
earn a HK$1 million bonus for a first win in Class 2 or above when
rated 80 or higher before reaching the age of five. Horses acquired in
the Hong Kong International Sale will still earn a HK$1 million bonus
if successful in a Class 3 contest when rated 60 or higher before the
end of their first full season.
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Cheng Yu Wai collects a special bonus after Lucky
Sweynesse wins all three legs of the Hong Kong
Speed Series.
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At the top echelon, an additional HK$20 million will be on offer ZREREE 12— RENESALEE

across all 12 Group 1 races. Total prize money for the LONGINES SE—HITMN2,0008%8 T - HPRESFHE
Hong Kong International Races (HKIR) will increase to HK$118 B EENRRESEIEMB0EEBTEIRE
million, up HK$8 million. Meanwhile FWD Champions Day will offer 1,8008 BT MEfRrREEEFA=1E
a total of HK$72 million, up HK$7 million across its three feature BEEMAESIEIEMM7008 B TE7,2008
races. These increases mean that Hong Kong will continue to stage BT At BERRBEERREIHRERS
the world’s richest Group 1 turf races over 1200m, 1400m, 1600m B912003K ~ 14003k + 1600K £ 2000K E ih
and 2000m. For Group 2 and Group 3 races, winnings will be —RE - B ZHRR=ZFENRSED B
boosted to HK$5.35 million and HK$4.2 million, respectively. BE535E BT R4208HET ©

Prize Money for Group 1 Races, 2023/24 Season

2023/24EE—RERE

LONGINES Hong Kong Cup HK$36,000,000 Chairman’s Sprint Prize HK$22,000,000
RERBR FERERRE
LONGINES Hong Kong Mile HK$32,000,000 Stewards’ Cup HK$13,000,000
RERBI2RE EEHK
FWD QEIl Cup HK$28,000,000 Centenary Sprint Cup HK$13,000,000
EERBLZER BRFLEERR
LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint  HK$26,000,000 Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup HK$13,000,000
REEBRRIRE EERITEEER
LONGINES Hong Kong Vase HK$24,000,000 Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup HK$13,000,000
REER BN ZERELER
FWD Champions Mile HK$22,000,000 Standard Chartered Champions HK$13,000,000
EERREE-—E2& & Chater Cup

B BB BRI R

Prize Money for Class 1 to 3 Handicap Races 1600m-2400m, 2023/24 Season

2023/24EEE—Z=I16003KE2400K (EE) %4

Class 1 HK$4,075,000
E—I

Class 2 HK$3,120,000
ETH

Class 3 HK$2,050,000
E=
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Prize Money for Class-Level Handicap Races (all classes), 2023/24 Season

2023/24ZEKEINES (FE)ES

Class 1* HK$3,720,000
£ —3*

Class 2* HK$2,840,000
- J i

Class 3* HK$1,860,000
E=P

Class 4 HK$1,170,000
ST

Class 5 HK$875,000
FER

Griffin HK$950,000
HEE

* For 1000m to 1400m races
* 1000KE1400KES
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Talent Development

Graduates of the Club’s Apprentice Jockeys’ School (AJS)
continued to achieve success at home and overseas.

Vincent Ho returned from a successful summer riding stint in Japan
to continue his stellar rise, achieving a personal best of 96 wins
and claiming the Tony Cruz Award for the season’s highest-scoring
home-grown jockey. Notching a further three Group 1 victories
aboard Hong Kong champion Golden Sixty, Ho also recorded

his milestone 500th Hong Kong win in March, coincidentally in
partnership with Golden Sixty’s trainer Francis Lui.

Ho and fellow AJS graduate Derek Leung further underscored
the talent in the home-grown riding ranks by landing a win each
in the LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship (IJC) in
competition with some of the world’s best jockeys. Ho and Leung
shared the cheque for third place in the prestigious contest.

FEREBRMEBRNBREEA MG
BEEEAIEE -

EEE2022FEZFIRARHE » RIB
HE  RBRREEE  STHBE %65
B BABABESRZEELE  BK
AEARSRZEENAMEEN  EE
[EREE]  EBZSEHARE=E—R
ERE > A NEBEEEN
[T 18 o fIEZEIRN2023F3 B
EBEBMEESE50055EE - MELBES/E
KR EEMRITT 2R BT I B ER -

RERRRMBEEI2HEZNFHMEE
B SEMERERASESRERMERSE
EENRFRAEARETBEERBERBMES
B BRMAZE M XIFE - D
RIRAMIZ B EREN AT EEH o

Matthew Chadwick celebrates his 500th Hong Kong win.
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Apprentice jockey Ellis Wong lands his first success in Hong Kong.
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In May, Matthew Chadwick, the other home-grown jockey
representing Hong Kong in the IJC, also notched his 500th
Hong Kong win.

Meanwhile AJS graduates in training overseas showed their
potential with impressive results this year. Racing trainee Ellis Wong
landed his first quartet in South Australia in January and a week later
won Racing SA’s Apprentice Series. In May he was granted a Club
Apprentice Jockey’s licence to race in Hong Kong for the remainder
of the season and rode his first winner at Sha Tin on 13 May. Britney
Wong, who began race riding in Australia in June 2022, won the
Simone Montgomerie Encouragement Award for best first-year
apprentice.

With campuses at Huangcun and Conghua Racecourse, in addition
to Hong Kong, the Racing Talent Training Centre provided vocational
training to a growing number of Mainland talents to support the
development of the industry nationally.
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Group Races - Highlights
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The 2022 LONGINES Hong Kong International Races 20224 » EEBERNERREE

were a spectacular renewal of the world-class event, EABMESEETAFENSF

with the biggest on-course crowd in three years and ERE  MEERE ikiﬁkﬁi’ﬁéu

many more overseas participants. M=% BEFRAZBIN2M
Z o

., Total prize money

-HK$ 1 1 omllllon
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Group Races - Highlights
DREBESRHE

'l.t

In all, 23 individual Group 1 winners from Hong Kong, Ireland,
France, Germany, Japan and Australia competed for a record
HK$110 million in this year’s LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races. Exceptional Hong Kong racing talents Romantic Warrior,
California Spangle and Wellington stole the show, winning three of
the four elite Group 1 contests in front of an exuberant crowd. More
than 45,000 fans attended — the largest number in over three years.

Meanwhile, leading jockeys from Hong Kong, Great Britain, Australia
and New Zealand contested the prized LONGINES International
Jockeys’ Championship in a thrilling night at Happy Valley.

Eased pandemic restrictions enabled over 300 overseas participants
and media representatives to join international week this year.
Among them were leading members of the international racing

and equestrian industries, who attended meetings of the Executive
Councils of the International Federation of Horseracing Authorities
and the Asian Racing Federation as well as the General Assembly of
the International Horse Sports Confederation.

Throughout the week key events returned, including the Gala
Dinner with over 100 international guests in attendance, among
them renowned horsemen and horse owners. The highlight was
the crowning of James McDonald as the LONGINES World’s Best
Jockey.

The 2022 LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship title was
shared by Silvestre de Sousa representing Hong Kong and Tom
Marquand for Great Britain. For the first time two female entrants
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competed in the event, with Australia’s Jamie Kah making her debut
and Hollie Doyle returning for a third time. Both won a race on the
undercard.

All eyes, however, were on Sunday’s HK$110 million LONGINES
Hong Kong International Races, with the ten-race programme
achieving a record HK$1.73 billion in turnover.

Win Marilyn sealed a runaway victory for Japan in the HK$22 million
G1 LONGINES Hong Kong Vase (2400m) in another strong renewal
of the race, which also featured horses from Hong Kong, Ireland,
France and Germany.

Wellington, last season’s Hong Kong Champion Sprinter, sealed

a fourth Group 1 title in the HK$24 million G1 LONGINES Hong
Kong Sprint (1200m). An event regularly dominated by Hong Kong’s
strong sprint division, the home team filled the first four places.

California Spangle scored a stunning victory over Hong Kong
champion Golden Sixty, denying the superstar galloper by a neck in
the HK$30 million G1 LONGINES Hong Kong Mile (1600m).

Undoubtedly the most memorable moment was Romantic Warrior's
stunning victory in the HK$34 million G1 LONGINES Hong Kong
Cup (2000m), leaving a high-class field trailing in his wake. The
2021 Hong Kong International Sale graduate announced himself as
a world star with a record-setting win as the widest margin winner
in LONGINES Hong Kong Cup history, clocking 1m 59.70s as he
crossed the line.
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Hong Kong International Races Week Events

BEERESBAENTE

Mon, 5 December

. International Jockeys’ Championship —
Allocation of Jockeys

B 5 B B SR A B B A B S5 AR A =X

International Jockeys’ Championship —
Photo Call
B PR B A SR AR 2 AR BR AT 2 AEE B

Class 4 - 1000 Metres

TTERMATIOMAL
L LAMPIONEMIF

Wed, 7 December

International Jockeys’ Championship
Bl PR B B R AR
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Sun, 11 December

The showcase HKIR
BERERES

i

P Q HKIR
123456”& i—B?l[I‘IH‘IS]&

Thu, 8 December

HKIR Barrier Draw
ERERESHVHEER

Fri, 9 December

HKIR Gala Dinner & World’s Best Jockey Award
EBEMESEIRE R 2 RGERMERE



Group Races - Highlights
TREERE

LONGINES
Hong Kong Sprint
REFBEENRT

Winner : Wellington BHEER . [ | ‘
Owner : Mr & Mrs Michael SSer Eﬁ@?’i‘ﬁiiﬁ ~
Cheng Wing On and f*gﬁﬁﬂia

Jeffrey Cheng Man Cheong PR/ ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ
Trainer : Richard Gibson B BER

Jockey : Ryan Moore

LONGINES
Hong Kong Mile
REFE—EHRT

Winner : California Spangle 5 HZE5 : [ inNEEK |

Owner : Howard Liang Yum Shing 5x : R$E
Trainer : Tony Cruz MEEN: ERE
Jockey : Zac Purton B5ER B
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LONGINES
Hong Kong Cup
REEHBE

Winner : Romantic Warrior BHER : [REE L |

Owner :  Peter Lau Pak Fai Bx  2B/E
Trainer :  Danny Shum HRESET ¢ NER
Jockey :  James McDonald R : ZEFER

LONGINES

Hong Kong Vase
REEBIR

Winner : Win Marilyn 28 : [IHE L |

Owner : Win Co Ltd BEEX : WinColtd
Trainer : Takahisa Tezuka HERT @ FEHEEX
Jockey : Damian Lane B EEX
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Group Races - Highlights

DTRBERE

Stewards’ Cup

EE&

Winner : Golden Sixty

Owner : Stanley Chan Ka Leung
Trainer : Francis Lui
Jockey : Vincent Ho

BSHER [ 28851

S - BRER
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Thwarted in the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint, Lucky EBERHE €S A | BRNRE
Sweynesse delivered an impressive first top-level victory HAERBERItME SHAEERE
for trainer Manfred Man in the Centenary Sprint Cup. FLSEBERREBES BE—HE
Jockey Zac Purton partnered the sprinter in both races and @E- [ £#& A |RMSAESTHRE
was happy to repay the handler with Group 1 glory. HRE SHEAREMYREES

—REBEET RAETEE-

Centenary
Sprint Cup
BBFEHRSHEER

Winner : Lucky Sweynesse B HEE [ S#ESE A

Owner : Cheng Ming Leung, BE  EH= - EHRY -
Cheng Yu Tung, B35 SE B EAR R
Cheng Mei Mei and HERT 0 XXRR
Cheng Yu Wai FREm o BUE

Trainer : Manfred Man
Jockey : Zac Purton
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Group Races - Highlights

DTRBERE

Citi Hong Kong

Gold Cup

EHBRTTEERE

Winner : Golden Sixty

Owner :
Trainer :
Jockey :

Francis Lui
Vincent Ho

Stanley Chan Ka Leung

BT [ RNt

REED - BRER
Eeem (Gb==

Headlined as the rematch between Golden Sixty and
Romantic Warrior, the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup returned
another electrifying finish as Golden Sixty asserted his
dominance to land an eighth Group 1 win and second Citi

Hong Kong Gold Cup.
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Lucky Sweynesse captured a second Group 1 win in as many starts as
he tenaciously swept past California Spangle to land the Queen’s Silver
Jubilee Cup for jockey James McDonald and trainer Manfred Man. The
victory handed the four-year-old his second win in this season’s Hong
Kong Speed Series.

X FRINRNVERER SEEA JEFRBHEAEBRERSINVEE
B2 NABNLERELSHBBT —H  EXERRBETEHNIM
TIMNEIRER - BUS— REWEH -

Queen’s Silver

Jubilee Cup
TEMRELSE

Winner : Lucky Sweynesse [ HEE : [£EBE A J

Owner : Cheng Ming Leung, 5 1 HHAR- BEE-
Cheng Yu Tung, BB E B EIRE
Cheng Mei Mei and RER . MXER
Cheng Yu Wai S5RD  ZFEHE

Trainer : Manfred Man
Jockey : James McDonald
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Group Races - Highlights
TREBEERE

BMW Hong

Kong Derby
ERTEEAITUXE

Winner : Voyage Bubble B HEE : [#ERHE |

Owner : Sunshine and 5  HABERESEEE
Moonlight Syndicate HRISED ¢ phAE
Trainer : Ricky Yiu B BE

Jockey : Alexis Badel
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With a pedigree stretching back 150 years, and with the
prospect of “once-in-a-lifetime” glory for the four-year-
olds taking part, the BMW Hong Kong Derby is one of the
most coveted prizes in Hong Kong racing. This year was
no exception. Preceded by a glittering gala party at Happy
Valley Racecourse, Sunday’s race at Sha Tin was another
thrilling renewal, as Voyage Bubble defied all expectations
for trainer Ricky Yiu and jockey Alexis Badel. Starting from
the outside stall of 14, Badel was forced to relax Voyage
Bubble in the initial stages before masterfully creeping
through the field to become the longest-priced winner of
the race since 1999.

EEEBITHABEEH150FMKA
BE  REEEERSHRENAE
Z—  BERS|—REUREHREE
BIOURNE  — 42— X INBEE
K& o SEBEERKRBILEM -
WEH SIS EEHNRTEIIRE -
BAKRKEEY > MFEBEREPH
ESETHITHARE - [ BiER A
REHETER  ARIIEERRS
Bk A ER T L BT - BRI
FUELREE DEERREE
VESRRN  HE LB ERINE
[EEREIMELR  BERSE o
SRR HE1999FBMNE—B L
TEELLHE o




Group Races - Highlights
DRESRE
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FWD QEIl Cup
ERFREXER

Winner : Romantic Warrior BSHET : [JRIEBE L |

Owner : Peter Lau Pak Fai BEx 1 Z@EE
Trainer : Danny Shum RERD 1 NERK
Jockey : James McDonald REm 1 ZFER

Romantic Warrior became the first horse in two decades B ERIIGNREBEL |1

to win back-to-back editions of the FWD QEIl Cup. Living LZEMETHBHEARRLESR
up to pre-race expectations Romantic Warrior defied a B AT 20 5 R E TR E R L B/
world-class group of runners with a comfortable two- E5 - —mBERTER > DRBEL

length success for trainer Danny Shum and jockey James HE-RERRER  UWMES

McDonald. Japan’s Prognosis raced home second, while ZHERTZER  mSIMEENIR

Dubai Honour from Great Britain took third place, ensuring AEFRE . HARRIER IR

that overseas raiders did not go home empty handed. WK ERAEFE DB
E-RE=-
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Group Races - Highlights
DTREBEERE

FWD Champions Mile

EHERREEE—ER®

Winner : Golden Sixty — BHET : [£8/51 ]

Owner : Stanley ChanKaleung BE @ BRFR
Trainer :  Francis Lui HER 0 SRE
Jockey :  Vincent Ho BREm . (MEE

Golden Sixty achieved another milestone for jockey
Vincent Ho and trainer Francis Lui as Hong Kong’s
champion became the first three-time winner of the FWD
Champions Mile, following on from his wins in 2021 and
2022. The victory made him Hong Kong’s most prolific
Group 1 winner with nine top-level victories, while his
earnings of HK$147.93 million set a new world record.
Beauty Joy and California Spangle took second and third
place respectively for the home team.

Chairman’s
Sprint Prize
£ gk

202 F R 2022 F B HEFERR ETE—
BEER. BEEL[£BATISEAR
EffafEE N BT EEBEEER K
ANEFERGTES = EBFNEN &
BERE [ EBATIENERT—HE
AEBESHBHERZ—HREBENEN &
HEERS1E4,7938 8T RIFtR
L8k FREBRERNEZBRERZIR
[MERR ]| AR ETEREE

Lucky Sweynesse became the first
horse since Silent Witness to win Hong
Kong’s lucrative Speed Series bonus
following victory in the Chairman’s
Sprint Prize. Prevailing for jockey Zac
Purton and trainer Manfred Man, Lucky
Sweynesse blitzed rivals to secure a
HK$16.4 million pay day, including the

Winner : Lucky Sweynesse [T : [£#& A | HKS5 million bonus, for his effort in

Owner : Cheng Ming Leung, Bx . EH= BEE
Cheng Yu Tung, BR3E R EAELAME
Cheng Mei Mei and HRESET ¢ XRE
Cheng Yu Wai EEm B

Trainer : Manfred Man
Jockey : Zac Purton ey = e

the series’ third and final leg. Courier
Wonder ran in second while Wellington
rounded out the first three.

BIBRAEM | ER—SEREEE
RERVZE=-EEENEERSE
[EHEEA INALRECEELEE
[EHEE A | SHERREN— mﬁﬁm
A E5EMEE K 4R S D R B IR
MmIEEFTE | BETE - [{F% Bl
F= o  WENBEERSERRABH
E,%LJ* Ry EE=BEEEFEBNIER
RE50088B T Bl SHEEAINERE
SRR 64088 T ©
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& Chater Cup
B EEEENR

Winner : Russian Emperor BHEBT  [#&E]
Owner : Mike Cheung Shun Ching 5 | REF
Trainer : Douglas Whyte SR : BE
Jockey :  Hugh Bowman AT WX

Russian Emperor underlined his incredible staying prowess
with the successful defence of his Standard Chartered
Champions & Chater Cup crown for trainer Douglas Whyte
and jockey Hugh Bowman. Russian Emperor roared home
to deny hot favourite Romantic Warrior by a neck to claim
the season’s final top-level contest, also notching his third
Hong Kong win, all of them Group 1s.

Standard Chartered Champions

B BEBETRATANRE S
—RE  BEETH[&EIHRHX
R UES 2 R BMIRE A
PREEL | EMUEETEE 0
RIRECHBEREEMNERED -
ETR(BEIE=ZEETBBLES
=R —RE-




A Year of Champions

Hong Kong’s superstar horse Golden Sixty received an
unprecedented third Horse of the Year crown and third Champion
Miler accolade after yet another record-setting campaign. Victorious
in 25 races from 29 starts, Golden Sixty is the city’s most prolific
Group 1 winner and earner, with an unmatched nine top-level wins
and HK$147.93 million in prize money. There was little doubt that
Golden Sixty, affectionately labelled the “Pride of Hong Kong”, would
also be the Most Popular Horse of the Year.

Romantic Warrior's rise across 14 starts in Hong Kong has been
remarkable, and he proved formidable in the popularity stakes after
claiming two of Hong Kong’s premier 2000m races — the LONGINES
Hong Kong Cup and FWD QEIl Cup - to take the title of Champion
Middle-Distance Horse for the second consecutive year.

Lucky Sweynesse’s swift ascent this season saw him crowned
Champion Sprinter and Champion Four-Year-Old. Joining Beauty
Generation as the second horse to win eight races in a single season,
Lucky Sweynesse also landed the HK$5 million Speed Series bonus
following wins in the Centenary Sprint Cup, Queen’s Silver Jubilee
Cup and Chairman’s Sprint Prize. He is only the fourth horse to do so
after Mr Vitality, Grand Delight and Silent Witness. T

o

T

GOLDEN

: W7

STANLEY CHAN

=
&
-

EBRTEEMISEATISEEERITL
% ERAETERNFE-EREIEBET]
RIBRE—EE IMEKRE - LHHESHE29
K BiS253EEE  BRENE—REEE
RAEBEEMRY FBHEERZNER -
NREBERZERSHEIMNES Rt
WBIEE1184,793EB T o [ &8~
FEERET  WELETBEENERR
WEERSEUET |[STHENHERS -

S—HZBENERSDREEL ] 25
HE14R - S HR520000K — R E -
BERERBENEFRRBLER - BAM
BEEMFRE REPERT | - LHTE
[RZECAFE 22— -

FERENSEEA | ESHRE - STEE
[BRERRSE IR RENRS IMEARE - It
BENE —ZF= N\ $EEE  E XBEEAIEE
FRBHEBFLSERE - RERELR
BREFRRE  AMESEBRERSI=
BEEENSHIRE5008 BT - [£HEEA |
TRMOENRE] [EHE | R [ R ]
% RABBERFENLIZEASEIESE -




Russian Emperor’s stamina saw him net a consecutive Champion
Stayer title. The long-distance kingpin was the only horse to win
an overseas race this season, landing Qatar’s H.H. The Amir
Trophy. He then returned to Hong Kong to collect a second
Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup in May.

Among the bright young stars this season was
Howdeepisyourlove, whose four wins earned him the Champion
Giriffin title, while star four-year-old Beauty
Eternal took home the Most Improved Horse
award following a 65-point rating rise with
seven wins this term, including two at Group
3 level.

BEAEE

Horse of the Year

Champion Awards
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[ BB BERES ] —BHERRE
Bh  EERZBEMSEEEFEHER
BE > RAFAE-—BHEIESNER
B o SliERBE  [BEIRSAE-E

BB BEBES -

[BELIRSEEP—TRRHE TR
IS MBEE - AR &EHME] - W
EMIKEEB IREIHES T
RESZEBELISHES  EEME=-RETE
D IBIESE6S D o

Golden Sixty

EBEE TRAT
Champion Middle-Distance Horse = Romantic Warrior
REFERS REEL
Champion Miler Golden Sixty
RE—IES TR T
Champion Sprinter Lucky Sweynesse
REERS THEEA
Champion Stayer Russian Emperor
RERES #E

Champion Four-Year-Old Lucky Sweynesse
RENRES THEEA
Champion Griffin Howdeepisyourlove
RENE 738 B2 s

Most Improved Horse Beauty Eternal
RAESFT KIEERE
Champion Trainer John Size

B E RS HM 82408
Champion Jockey Zac Purton

& E B Am ETE

Tony Cruz Award Vincent Ho
HRER fAEsE

Most Popular Horse of the Year* Golden Sixty
REBMET TIRAT

Most Popular Jockey of the Year* Vincent Ho
BB ERAm fiEsR

* Public vote HARIREZEH
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Zac Purton’s excellence in the saddle saw him collect a sixth
Champion Jockey trophy. The star Australian shot clear to the
top of the table early in the season, before closing out with 179
wins — a new single-season record in Hong Kong. Vincent Ho
also had a spectacular campaign which ended with a personal
best of 96 wins. The hometown hero scooped the Most Popular
Jockey award and the Tony Cruz Award for the leading home-
grown rider.

John Size stands alone as the only 12-time Champion Trainer.
The Australian Racing Hall of Famer closed out another incredible
campaign with 79 wins, aided by several hot prospects for next
season.

BEBRFMBFEZTARERES  FRE
B EERMN BE BT ERE
BIEEL  BAREBI17EEE - EAIT A
EBESEELE - N B EEE &
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HONG KONG-TRAINED HORSES THAT ACHIEVED AN
INTERNATIONAL RATING OF 115 OR ABOVE IN 2022/23

125

GOLDEN SIXTY
AT

KW Lui
)3z

Stanley Chan Ka Leung
BRI

125

LUCKY SWEYNESSE
EHEA

KL Man
XRR
Cheng Ming Leung, Cheng Yu
Tung, Cheng Mei Mei & Cheng
Yu Wai . ]
%I}HE% - BRIAMY - BREREEERA
124
’ ROMANTIC WARRIOR
RBEL
C S Shum
LERE
Peter Lau Pak Fai
2ItaE

123
CALIFORNIA SPANGLE
IIIE=$S

A S Cruz
ERE

Howard Liang Yum Shing

121
WELLINGTON
Bz
R Gibson
SN (EF
Mr & Mrs Michael Cheng Wing
On and Jeffrey Cheng Man

Cheong
15 ) EYNEEL 1 5=

118
WAIKUKU
ERR
J Size

Jocelyn Siu Yang Hin Ting
misEE

116

RUSSIAN EMPEROR
& E

D J Whyte
2E

Mike Cheung Shun Ching
RIEE

116
SKY FIELD

C Fownes

HEH

Kwan Shiu Man, Jessica Kwan
Mun Hang & Jeffrey Kwan Chun
Ming

AR - BABIEEER1R AR

116

TOURBILLON DIAMOND
Fedm P9

CS Shum
LERK

Shum Mak Ling, Jimmy Tang,
Bennie Lau Yuk Lung &

William Shum Wai Lam

LRE - BERR - B EREEILEM

115

BEAUT_ZJOY
EEBRE

A S Cruz
HRE

Eleanor Kwok Law Kwai Chun &
Eatrick chlk Ho Chuen
PEEDHEIPER

115

SENOR TOBA
ZEBLE

C Fownes

FEM

Willie May Syndicate
EABRAESER

115

SIGHT SUCCESS
THER

J Size
3L

Tam Wing Kun
RERAR

115

SUPER WEALTHY

BT

D A Hayes
REHH

Sidney Leung Kwun Wa
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Racecourse Entertainment

Jubilant racing fans returned to the racecourses this season,
bringing with them the vibrant atmosphere Hong Kong racing

is renowned for. The Beer Garden at Happy Valley Racecourse
reopened in time for racegoers to celebrate Oktoberfest and in
November live entertainment resumed, upping the ante as Happy
Wednesday once again lived up to its name.

The Club also worked hard to attract new racegoers through
creative campaigns and strategic partnerships. To this end Happy
Wednesday was rebooted with a refreshed line-up of live musicians
and an elevated food and beverage experience. Themes included
the month-long Happy French Wednesday, dedicated to French
culture, food and pop music, while June celebrated music festivals
with Afrobeat and Britpop nights among others. Social media
influencers were invited to enjoy a night at the races and share their
experiences. During the Hong Kong Sevens, video of the Club’s
racing was shown on the tournament big screens and a booth was
set up to introduce rugby fans to racing.

ZR WEMEPHAEFSEERARSER - 0
REZSHERESHE  BREBERIT NS
YRR N o [Happy Wednesday | &R Bk

HERK  BENESHESNEERER
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SIREFRENRC K11 AEEIE  BRFL
EREMN NG -

EetHZ BRI EEEREES - A
HERMBHEESE  BONSIHBRESEHE -
Bt - E2EH R Happy Wednesday |
RERENEHE AR » SIAZFNWRS L
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PEANERSHEERYE 225
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At Sha Tin Racecourse, Hong Kong’s reopening set the tone for a
thrilling edition of the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races in
December, when more than 45,000 fans flocked to the racecourses
- the largest raceday crowd in three years. January’s Chinese New
Year Raceday was an even bigger draw with an overall attendance
of 84,000, demonstrating the enduring popularity of Hong Kong’s
number one spectator sport during the most important festival of the
year.

This season saw the opening of Backstage in the Digital Zone at
Sha Tin Racecourse. Here, racegoers enjoyed the fun of immersive
virtual-reality experiences while getting a feel of what it’s like to be a
jockey.

Also at Sha Tin, members welcomed the opening of the new multi-
level car park and arrival experience in December. With 496 car
parking spaces, the new car park gives members direct access

to venues including the Owners Pavilion, the Parade Ring and the
clubhouse. Additionally the Owners Box 6/F (Section 3) reopened
following renovation. These are the latest additions to the HK$7.1
billion Racecourse Master Plan. The next phase will be rolled out
over the coming few years.

As travellers returned to Hong Kong, the Club provided 2,000 tourist
packages, included a free tourist badge, offering travellers a tour of
Happy Valley Racecourse and a trackside view of the racing action.
Additionally the Tourist Zone reopened at Sha Tin Racecourse with
racing commentary in Putonghua.

BEEBWERR 12 ANREFBEEE
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Membership




The relaxation of social-distancing measures brought much welcomed vibrancy back to
the clubhouses and racecourses this year. Meanwhile the Club rolled out a host of new

themed lifestyle and racing programmes for members of all ages as part of its reimagined
membership experience.

[EEHREREREEIHNE  SEEMRESERFALEARSR - HILER - FEHTE
FRENSEBESRHMER  2M A E2NTENE TR RETEHA -
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Reimagining the Membership
Experience

As operations returned to normal this year, members were once
again able to enjoy the full benefit of the Club’s unique membership
experience. Indeed, The Hilltop in The Valley now has more to

offer members than at any time prior to the pandemic, with Happy
Valley New Clubhouse fully operational and renovations at the Old
Clubhouse completed. This year also saw the opening of the multi-
level members’ car park in Sha Tin and the reopening of members’
chalets at Beas River Country Club.

Above all, the Club forged ahead with its reimagining of the
membership experience, which seeks to elevate the quality of
experiences, products and services. In particular it aims to create
memorable experiences that have long-lasting impact on members’
lives and which help to bring the membership community together,
not least through a shared passion for horse racing and horse
ownership.

None of this is to forget the huge challenges of the last three years
and the Club is deeply grateful to members and staff for their
understanding and support. Despite staffing difficulties shared by
the wider hospitality industry, the Club is working hard to maintain
the high standards members expect and for which it is justly
recognised.
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Clubhouse Excellence

Fundamental to the membership experience are the Club’s four
clubhouses, the latest addition being the New Clubhouse at The
Hilltop in The Valley. With all clubhouses fully reopened by the end
of October, members were able to enjoy everything that the New
Clubhouse has to offer, including a 50-metre swimming pool, a
state-of-the-art gym, a wide range of dining options and the vibrant
social atmosphere of The Eighth.

A highlight of the year was the 30th anniversary of Happy Valley
Old Clubhouse in November. The occasion was celebrated with a
special programme of activities organised across The Hilltop in The
Valley for young and older members. The timing also coincided with
the reopening of the Old Clubhouse’s Hilltop Gym, Hilltop Pool and
Pool View Lounge area following their renovation and completion of
the timber roof replacement project.

FEETNESMASEREZHRKRE
§& » B The Hilltop in The Valley#J
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Meanwhile Beijing Clubhouse celebrated its 15th anniversary this
year. The event was marked in April with the staging of The Beijing
Clubhouse Anniversary Cup at Sha Tin Racecourse, where an
experiential booth was set up to engage members and encourage
visits to the capital. In May Beijing Clubhouse held a celebratory
gala dinner for members.

Also greatly appreciated was the reopening of the chalets at Beas
River Country Club. During the pandemic they provided essential
accommodation for cross-boundary horse movement staff as part of
the Club’s “racing bubble”.
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A Passion for Racing

Racing is the passion which unites members young and old. Sharing
that passion, and in particular introducing the younger generation

to the pleasures of the sport, is a key part of the reimagined
membership experience.

To engage newer members, the Club this year hosted a series

of “Ignite Your Racing Passion” themed dinners on racedays,

with racing games and sharing sessions with industry specialists.
Members with ownership aspirations were invited to join “fireside
chats” and to special events such as the BMW Hong Kong Derby
gala party and the Hong Kong International Sale. Meanwhile,
backstage racing experiences gave members insights into such
areas as a jockey’s training regimen and starting gate operations.
All these experiences were popular, as demonstrated by the strong
turnout.
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The Club continues to invest strongly in the racegoing experience.
This includes the new multi-level car park, which opened at Sha Tin
Racecourse in December. With 496 spaces, including 50 with EV
charging ports, up from 91 in the former car park, it offers greatly
improved connectivity with grandstand venues and the clubhouse,
particularly for horse owners.

Happy Valley Racecourse is an increasingly attractive venue for non-
raceday dining, which further expanded this year. In addition to the
highly popular Moon Koon restaurant, Provincial and The Chalk now
operate from Thursdays through non-racedays at weekends. The
latest addition is Topaz, which serves Cantonese cuisine on non-
racing Saturdays or Sundays.
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Enriching Lives and Lifestyles

At the heart of the reimagined membership experience is a
commitment by the Club, drawing on its local and global networks,
to create programmes that are even more insightful, relevant and
inspiring. The aim is to make the Club a destination for members to
pursue their interests and lifestyles, and to discover new ones, at
every stage of their lives.

Starting with the Summer Reimagined programme in 2022, and
facilitated by the easing of pandemic restrictions, the Club is
launching a host of membership enrichment programmes, including
the racing programmes mentioned above.

Younger members in particular enjoyed the Club Havana experience
at Happy Valley New Clubhouse, featuring 12 nights of Cuban

food, drink, music and culture. Meanwhile, at Sha Tin Clubhouse’s
Centurion restaurant, La Belle Epoque gave members the
opportunity to book a private dinner party with dishes inspired by
Europe’s Golden Age.

All this is not to forget the Club’s overriding purpose of contributing
to the betterment of society, a value its members share. Here,

the Members’ CARE@hkjc programme continued to provide
meaningful engagement opportunities across select Charities Trust
NGO partners. In addition, the programmes at Tai Kwun provided
members with unique opportunities to connect with its cultural and
heritage programming.
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Digital Developments

With convenience and sustainability in mind, this year the Club
digitised more of its member communications, aiming for a refreshed
look, style and feel. In April, the monthly e-News was given a
makeover and relaunched as a fortnightly newsletter, The Jump.

The Club also continued to enhance the Members’ Mobile

App, which is now also accessible to Racing Members. One
new feature allows members to check the availability of tables
across all restaurants and make bookings. Additionally, in order
to accommodate more members, the Club’s popular Chinese
restaurants introduced multi-session booking periods, which can
also be accessed via the app. As a result, the app saw a steady
increase in members’ adoption and usage over the year.

Going Green

The Club continues to drive green initiatives in line with its
commitment to sustainability. In the membership division, these
initiatives included the use of sustainable Christmas ornaments and
gifts, with natural trees being sent to a recycling centre when the
festive season ended.

The volume of printed materials and mail packaging was also
reduced significantly by over 90% through initiatives such as digital
Christmas brochures and members’ birthday cards.
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Having maintained close connectivity with its
customers throughout the pandemic, the Club this
year continued its customer-centric focus, launching
new football and racing wagering services and two
new experience-based retail branches. Through
commingling, simulcasting and the World Pool, Hong
Kong is fast becoming the global hub for wagering on
the best of world racing.

Staying Connected

Riding on the success of the Club’s “racing bubble”, and thanks
not least to online and mobile technology, responsible wagering
services on racing, including simulcast and commingling, continued
uninterrupted. Racing fans participated enthusiastically in the
second summer simulcast series and celebrated the easing of
pandemic conditions, with the Chinese New Year races on 24
January having the highest turnover in 26 years. Football wagering
services were also maintained throughout a year that included the
2022 World Cup. From the end of July, the Mark Six lottery returned
to three draws per week.

The Club’s wagering performance reflected this positive outlook,
with overall wagering and lottery turnover up 5.1% to HK$304.8
billion.

New product offerings were also launched leveraging the Club’s
new fixed odds wagering system. For racing, the new Trainer
Challenge complements the existing Jockey Challenge. For football,
In Play First Half Hilo was introduced, while In Play was extended to
extra time.

Racing wagering turnover was up 0.5% for the season to HK$141.1
billion, with turnover for the year being HK$140.4 billion. This
reflected in particular the strong performance of commingling

on local racing and the encouraging growth of simulcasting and

the World Pool, which together contributed 26.3% of the racing
turnover for the season. The return of Hong Kong horses to the
international stage also increased customer engagement, while the
expansion of the rebate scheme to include simulcast races was also
well received.

Football wagering turnover was up 9.1% to HK$156.9 billion, with
the key drivers being increased supply of live football matches, and
the launch of new wagering products.

The Mark Six lottery continued its recovery from the pandemic,
benefiting in particular from the return to three draws per week, with
turnover up 29.2% to HK$7.5 billion. However this is still below the
pre-pandemic level of HK$8.4 billion achieved in 2018/19.
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OVER 70 COMMINGLING PARTNERS IN
26 COUNTRIES AND JURISDICTIONS
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racing, with turnover for the season up 3.0% to HK$25.4 billion,
representing 19.6% of local racing turnover, and income up 10.0%.
The introduction of seven new commingling partners was key to
this success, taking the total number of partners above 70 for the
first time, with fans in 26 countries and jurisdictions now watching
and wagering on Hong Kong racing. Indeed, such is the interest in
Australia, that starting from FWD Champions Day in April all of its

states are commingling into the Club’s pools, effectively creating IREFRREERS AL  BNEEEE

the first ever national pool in that country. All of this highlights the M EEIRRE A %éE’JE%§$Eé%§/ﬂJ

immense interest and confidence that international customers FRABEMNENREEZER MR - AR -

continue to have in Hong Kong racing. E%% 54 E%HEEEAL RZBING
HISHE

83



84

:ln{n

Simulcasting

The second year of summer simulcasting paved the way for an
exciting season of world-class racing from some of the world’s top
racecourses and racing festivals in the United Kingdom, France,
Australia, North America, South Africa, Japan, Korea and, for the first
time, from Saudi Arabia and Germany. There was also a strategic
effort to better utilise simulcast days to include multiple venues,
with a heavy emphasis on the World’s Top 100 Group 1 races.

This facilitated the coverage of such events as the Tancred Stakes
in Australia and the Lockinge Stakes in Great Britain. Racing fans
also benefited from the extension of the rebate scheme to include
simulcast races. Overall turnover on simulcasting (including World
Pool commingling) for the season was up 12.5% to HK$11.8 billion.
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World Pool

The Club’s World Pool vision to offer global wagering pools on the
best international racing took another significant step forward this
year. The Lightning Stakes meeting at Flemington became the first
ever World Pool event in Australia, while seven days later the Saudi
Cup joined the World Pool roster for the first time. Other new World
Pool events included the Irish Derby and the Deutsches Derby, the
latter providing Germany with its first ever World Pool race. In all

there were 24 World Pool meetings this year, up from 21 in 2021/22.

Commingling turnover into the World Pool was up 23.2% on last
season.
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24/6 Queen Elizabeth Il Jubilee Stakes Day
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Onboarding
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Digital Transformation of the
Customer Experience

Fundamental to the success of the Club’s wagering and information
services during and after the pandemic has been the digital
transformation of the customer experience, with all seven steps

of the customer journey now accessible via online and mobile
channels. Currently around 90% of wagering turnover and funds
transfers are via digital platforms.

Key components include secure online account opening; the HKJC
FPS instant funds transfer service, which as of this season is
connected to all retail banks and two virtual banks in Hong Kong,
with 1.3 million registered users; the HKJC eWallet, which facilitates
cashless betting and funds transfer in Off-Course Betting Branches;
and the HKJC Customer eCentre. In addition, this season saw
significant enhancements to online live streaming of racing. These
include a new Find My Horse Al feature and additional camera
angles to follow the racing action.

Betting/
Enjoying
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Retail Transformation

The Club’s 89 Off-Course Betting Branches (OCBBSs) continue to
be popular customer venues and touch points, and indeed have
seen an increase in usage post-pandemic. Building on this, the
Club is rethinking the retail experience, launching a series of new
experience-based OCBBs offering a race-dine-play integrated
experience.

This year two more new-look OCBBs opened in addition to the
three already in operation at North Point Electric Road, Lohas and
Central Stanley Street. Kwun Tong Plaza, designed around a green
theme, features an 80-seat coffee shop and restaurant, a riding and
football training simulation zone, a leisure and activity zone, and a
state-of-the-art media hall. Kwai Chung Wing Fong Road is football-
inspired, with a sports zone for football-themed activities and match
gatherings, a restaurant, a relaxation zone, a riding and football
training simulation zone, and a media hall featuring vintage-style
tiling and seating and historic racing photos. The aim in both cases
is to create social spaces where customers can relax, interact and
enjoy a range of social and sporting activities.
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Responsible Gambling
HEN RIS

Under Hong Kong'’s system of responsible gambling, the Club is authorised by the
Government to provide horse race and football betting services and to operate the Mark
Six lottery. In doing so, the Club provides a regulated channel to meet gambling demand
and works with the Government to advocate responsible gambling and protect the public
from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated crimes. It also ensures
that any proceeds benefit the community as a whole, whether in the form of tax and duty
to the Government or through the Club’s charitable donations.
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Responsible Gambling Policy

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is implemented through
a wide range of measures under its Responsible Gambling Policy.
These include underage access controls, prohibition of credit betting,
dissemination of responsible gambling messages and training for all
front-line betting staff. These measures are constantly refined and
developed.

The Club was especially vigilant both before and during the 2022
World Cup, disseminating responsible gambling messages across a
wide range of platforms, including social media, newspapers, radio
and public transport.

Last year, the Club enhanced the Off-course Betting Branch (“OCBB”)
Counselling Outreach Programme across all of its OCBBs. Run by
four gambling counselling and treatment centres financially supported
by the Ping Wo Fund, the programme involves the placement

of trained counsellors in OCBBs. The Club is fully committed to
supporting the Government-managed Ping Wo Fund, which supports
responsible gambling education as well as conducting gambling
related studies and research. As of mid-2023 the Fund had received
HK$541 million from the Club.

Youth Education for the
Next Generation

With technological advancements putting gambling tools within easy
reach, preventive education for young people is another major focus
of the Club’s responsible gambling work.
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Working together with non-governmental organisations, the

Club has launched programmes aimed at helping young people
develop healthy habits and positive values like self-restraint and
responsibility. These include the Positive and Healthy Youth
Development Programme, implemented between 2020 and 2022
in partnership with the Vocational Training Council and Hong Kong
Children and Youth Services, which has helped boost the self-
esteem of over 37,000 adolescents. In a further outreach initiative,
an educational variety music show, staged in partnership with the
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, promoted positive living
to over 1,000 young music fans. Simultaneously broadcast live on
YouTube, the concert recorded over 240,000 views.

Recognising that healthy habits are best formed at an early age,
the Club has also supported Fatina’s Healthy and Positive Lifestyle

School Education Programme. Implemented between 2017 and 2022

in partnership with the School Heads Associations and the Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals Youth and Family Unit, it has encouraged
50,000 primary students to pursue an active and healthy lifestyle
through school-based activities and talks.

Complementing these youth initiatives is the work of the Club’s
Charities Trust, including programmes such as LevelMind@JC,
which focuses on youth mental health, OpenUp, which provides
life-saving and emotional support via a 24/7 online Al-assisted
texting platform, and CLAP@JC, which supports the career and life
development of young people.
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Greater Threat

lllegal betting is a massive and growing threat to Hong Kong society.
According to the Asian Racing Federation’s Council on Anti-lllegal
Betting, Hong Kong illegal betting profits amount to HK$14-15 billion
a year, meaning that hundreds of billions of dollars are bet illegally in
Hong Kong every year.

All indicators suggest that illegal betting is growing faster than the
legal market, with tens of thousands of illegal websites in operation.
For example, turnover of the leading illegal betting operator on Hong
Kong racing increased almost 9% in the 2021/2022 racing season,
while local legal turnover on Hong Kong racing fell 1.4%.

lllegal betting operators have little overhead and pay zero tax and
can therefore offer better odds. They have no licence restrictions

so offer unlimited sports and bet types. They promote themselves
aggressively through social media and other means. Through
smartphones, VPNSs, cryptocurrencies and other technologies, illegal
betting can reach anyone, anywhere.

This is why illegal betting globally is estimated by the United Nations
to be as large as US$1.7 trillion annually.

This threat will only grow as illegal operators adopt the latest
technologies. Cryptocurrency has become standard in many illegal
websites. Emerging technologies such as NFTs and the metaverse
are also being used. Al will be next.

lllegal betting is having a huge impact in Hong Kong. It is diverting
billions of dollars in tax revenue to organised crime. It is funding
criminal activities, such as drug trafficking, and being used to
launder the proceeds from such crimes. Above all, illegal gambling
is undermining the well-being of our community, being widely
associated with excessive and pathological gambling. It is also
directly targeting the most vulnerable in society — the under-age.

The Club is doing everything it can to combat illegal betting. It
shares information with the Hong Kong Police Force and financial
crime bodies. It also works through organisations such as the Asian
Racing Federation and the International Federation of Horseracing
Authorities to advocate for action at the global level. But clearly a
great deal more needs to be done in Hong Kong and internationally
to counter this growing and major threat to communities worldwide.
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lllegal Betting has never been a
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Charities and Community

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is amongst the world’s EREEERECTESRERTAEER
top ten philanthropic foundations. It represents the Club’s steadfast Bz —  RESSRHEREXFLE
commitment to continuously contribute to the betterment of Hong HfEan o

Kong.
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The Club’s support for the Trust is made possible by its unique

integrated business model through which

racing and wagering

ERABBNGEEERS B8 —EXF
ZEGETESNRETE  ERRFRERE

generate tax revenue and charity donations. In 2022/23, the Club
donated 89% of its operating surplus after tax to the Trust. The
Trust approved HK$7.3 billion in donations to support 247 charity
and community projects in 2022/23. Full details can be found on
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pages 102 to 120 of the Financial Report. ESHMEREFE102E120E ©

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST

APPROVED DONATIONS
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Approach and Areas of Support

The Trust adopts a comprehensive approach to identify and address
community needs. The majority of its resources are focused on
needle-moving initiatives. These include Trust-initiated Projects
(TIPs) supporting a wide range of beneficiaries, ranging from early
childhood development to end-of-life care, and tackling a spectrum
of needs through cross-sector collaboration. The most recent TIPs
to be launched are JC VOLUNTEER TOGETHER, a five-year project
to promote citywide volunteerism, and a major initiative to develop
primary care community pharmacy services.

To better reflect Hong Kong’s changing needs, the Trust’s charities
strategy has been refreshed to focus on five strategic pillars — Positive
Ageing and Elderly Care; Children and Youth Development; Healthy
Community; Talent and Sector Development; and Sports and Culture.

Five Priority Areas

hKEEEE

-

-
. “ ]

—
=

Children & Youth Development
REREFHRE

o  Supporting children and young people
develop their potential

o XBBEYER

SEREETESRNE SRR - BFER

EWEE HPESFTEHEREDRER
UEZERE  XBEHSER  WEBBER
AEERELEETHNEER - BHETH
ESFTERREEANEFHNIERTERL
1TE T8 BUEERH S EE TR -

me—HEARHEEERLEEERE -

HERSBSNEERIR  BEERKES
ENHELARLERKREE  [BREFR
RERZ | [RERBTFEE] [REH
Bl -[ATRERBR IMEER]-

Positive Ageing & Elderly Care
ERTEFRRERK

o Helping people age with dignity and respect

o XEREZEHIEE
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Health

REHE

o Buildin

o  HERR

Talent & Sector Development

AT RERBR

o Promoting talent and sector excellence

o BBEATREERRARE

Sports & Culture
=98¢ 4

o  Advancing sports and culture

o HEEBEARXERE

Sustainability is high on the agenda globally and locally, and it will HERBMREBARERATFERRE -
be incubated as a new theme. It > BEEEESHEMAZHZIREE -

ItSh - ZEEEESTET B WHERE
, : . IEERHERR AR B) A BRI IRIFIZS: » WHIR

to be more grantee-centric, removing barriers for smaller NGOs and B BB th B B A S N Y ST AR 1S i 3
allowing for a broader spectrum of agencies and for sector capacity 2 ERHERS IS WIESE » BB RET

building. BRFSIKE o

The Trust has also refreshed its stakeholder engagement strategy

In parallel, a robust and tailored impact measurement methodology ﬁﬁtgﬂ%*&ﬁigiiﬂgﬁ_ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁgz
is being developed. This will articulate the Trust’s multiple layers of FROENG? A R EEDNSE
g P pleay BEEHES ALBSRNS S ENE - 1

social impact and enrich the Club’s unique model for environmental, ERESE AL LBIE - REBE
o Y = S NF=) ! M
social and governance reporting and strategic communication. e RS G I E RS E BRI T E o

To further professionalise the philanthropic sector in Hong Kong and EeZECTESHIFRTHIERMESE
nationally, as well as to extend its thought leadership regionally and B EEERAMBARRESLHN

globally, the Trust is planning to institutionalise the knowledge and %ﬂﬁ‘1’§E—5}&§;)j§i;%&w%ﬁ’9%§§ﬁ%§§
experience it has gained alongside its NGO partners. ggi;g%gﬁﬁﬁ@%gi?ﬁmuiéﬁﬁ
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Positive Ageing & Elderly Care

We help older people who have become disengaged from the
community, or who are struggling financially, to age with dignity
and respect. We work to improve care and residential services and
to help older people connect with the community. We also seek to
improve the well-being of caregivers.

98
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®

Jockey Club Age-friendly City
Project

EEEREH M El
Trust-initiated Project
HEFEBIEE

Approved donation
EE#MIBR

191

million
BEET

0\)\'?1“0” (vearg y

The Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project is designed to foster an [BESESREHTE I 2REREGEAR
age-friendly Hong Kong. Taking as its reference the eight domains REBERERFRESHMREN/\E
of the World Health Organization’s age-friendly city framework, it &g KHHTEL - HEARKRERR
has adopted a bottom-up, district-based approach and multi-sector ~ &F#E=R - EHEZRS « BUT « FFBUTHE -
collaboration, bringing together District Councils, the Government, BR - BMAREMTERGEBIESE
NGOs, the business sector, academia and other community EBEBEERERFRESHT -
stakenolders. HANFATSSEEERR - K 2BEE
Among its major achievements this year: 60 shopping malls joined HBECOERBSESMNCEERISNE) » dE

the Charter for Age-friendly Shopping Malls; age-friendly practices #3820,000 BN+ R/ NE B RMNES
were promoted to over 20,000 taxi and minibus drivers and catering EERERFRAEREE -F=REIEES
industry practitioners; and the third edition of the Jockey Club Age- BB 2 - RERSIFEITEFD
friendly City Partnership Scheme recognised around 300 companies  300EHE1T [ #E 18R A R RS o

and organisations for their age-friendly practices.
(% 4,764,000
QO

districts have joined
accumulated public viewership and

the World Health Organization’s
Global Network for Age-friendly engagement through publicity and

Cities and Communities and

public education initiatives

developed district action plans R ARBENEENANS RS
2B 10EE AR EEAE ﬂg%%@4’764’000A;x

[ZRRERFREEPHTRMLE
el AREHRETRAR

ImineE 3 Wi
I'mESdal
IAEWMmM|

V1]
E
3
m
=

2,750"

Age-friendly City
Ambassadors trained
I EINE 2, 7504
[ SE R fE




Jockey Club Community eHealth
Care Project

Trust-initiated Project

The Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project is the first
territory-wide elderly care project to integrate digital health
management technology, community care and professional support.
The aim is to support chronic disease management and the healthy
ageing of older people. Elderly centres are being developed as a
first point of contact, with digital technology utilised to raise health
awareness and for self-management. Data derived from the project
will be utilised for broader data analytics.

To sustain its long-term impact, the final phase of the project will
expand the number of elderly centres participating and linkages with
existing health services will be enhanced. In addition there will be
more emphasis on health promotion and greater synergy between
electronic health records and data analytics.

elderly centres participating
in the project

BREPLSHETE

g

r:? Approved donation
g EERBR

c
9

E

2 million

BEET

[BEEEleREIEFTREEETLIREE
BEAS BB REEERN - HERIER
EXTENRERET S BEXEENER
PREERERBRESF - stBIURET LR
BEDAY  ERBBMREAREHRE
MEDIR BREBMNEED - sTEITEHNE
FRSBBET2ENEB O

FFENBEERESRREESREDL
YRR ARERBNESR  BURHE
TRREME © I - B S NREER
EARE  TEMNEREFRELHEETH
B - HMERIES KN HERE -

elderly participants e

mpowered

with better health knowledge and
self-management capabilities

FT &8

ARERERE

i UREFABREERE

SHEIER
REEI

elderly centre staff trained
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&
Jockey CIUb SMART Famlly-Llnk (,? Approved donation
PrOjeCt g BEMIBR
2 million
" mgm - BEET
Trust-initiated Project "
The Jockey Club SMART Family-Link Project aims to leverage [BEESERETE | ERLENERNREN
advanced information and communication technologies in support R B ERIHABIR A R E AR TS SRR
of more effective service delivery to promote family well-being. {BERBEME - 32 SHEERINRER
In addition, it seeks to enhance sector capacity in the use of R R EIERIRLRE ©

technology and data. . . "
ATEINE RS E — SILRAS R -

To sustain its long-term impact, the second phase of the project will Wi UBFREERWESRBEES  #ELSE
further enrich system functionalities and develop an evidence-based  #H&%REEME o STEITFBHIEAER
blended mode of services. It will also seek to build the sector’s B AEERTWIEE D » W LLBE D AT HEED
digital capacity and conduct data analysis in support of service PRAGER o

transformation.

of NGO partners reported that users
have more options and easier access to
information

FBUFEBSERART SHEIRRBERE
RHUEZRE WMFERZISHEEER

service users benefited

FTEIER BREERE

of supervisors agreed that
technology improved the
efficiency of service delivery

FFEIEE A BRTRB
BER AR R EE




Jockey Club Younger Onset
Dementia Support Project

Though often associated with old age, dementia can manifest
itself much earlier. To support people aged 40-65 with suspected/
diagnosed younger onset dementia and their caregivers, the Trust
is funding a three-year pilot project at the Jockey Club Centre for
Positive Ageing. Services include a diagnostic service, dedicated
case managers and the provision of specialist/professional
consulting services.

Jockey Club Community Elderly
Mental Wellness Enhancement
Project

To enhance the well-being of older adults in Wong Tai Sin District,
the Trust is supporting a community-based support programme run
by The University of Hong Kong. The programme aims to promote a
caring environment for older people, to reduce feelings of loneliness
and to prevent suicidal behaviours. Key components include mental
wellness and intergenerational programmes, household visits, a
referral network, and capacity building and training.

BARERCEERESKAER  EERFE
MATHBEHE R LIE - FEREET
HEEBRXFESSEEE  HTAM=F
MEEE  XEIOEC5RIBRAEDE
L RBEMEGRICENA T REREE 572
?ﬂ#j@%‘rﬂﬁﬁ% ZHEEEEREMERE - X
REEMREXEDHAR

FERERTETEEBAEHRITHE
i?&?l’?—‘-é] BHEAIERERAOER
BB EERERERENHERE - B
BREBLIMBRKERERITR - BERE
ERBEBREEEVEREREARLRED
RERD - REBNHLE - UREFAERK
AR ARSI o
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Children & Youth Development

We help children and young people get the best possible start

in life. We seek to provide equal opportunities for all, to bridge
development gaps, and to create an engaging environment where
every child and young person can fulfil their potential.

qu/Think -

TIES B g

Inspining digital creativity

EMET-RKRERERE  BOEMBMAN
ANEBRFHNED - B - BB HEE

TRRRESNREREFHETENER
He  YRAEEBREDNERERE &t

MSEERE -
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CLAP@JC

Trust-initiated Project

CLAP@JC is a cross-sector platform for youth career and life
development (CLD). Bringing together educational, business and
community resources it aims to empower young people to embrace
multiple pathways to success, to develop a positive and hopeful
outlook on life, and to ready themselves to contribute to society.

Among the major achievements this year: 88 secondary schools
have adopted the Hong Kong Benchmarks for CLD; 115 subvented
youth service units have adopted the CLAP model; five district-
based CLD networks have been developed with the support of the
Social Welfare Department and Home Affairs Department; CLD
training has been provided to Labour Department and Correctional
Services staff; and talent matches have been facilitated with around
100 employers.

w 1 20,000

students equipped to make
informed study pathway choices,
with 80% having taken action to
actualise their CLD plans

FTEIB)E 20,000 BB AL FABES
BiE EFS0%EBEREERRSAE

W

&

CEHER

ouration (ea g y

[BEERE - AURETE I RABTFLE
BEMRMERBNSIETE  BBESS
B BREEBEENER  HEEFRR
ZCMBRIED - SRR ERBRE
MALRE  BRBTSEFES -

SAERNSFRESHEEMRR - HHssMH
REERAIEBEERRANEE] XF
15BN EFRBUBEATENEERR
B - FETEHERANERRESHAE
X BV AEEERREBEREA o 1o
ARSI ERBHEE TIRHEERREE
AN WiFEBIAI100( LB EEST A A BLE o

>13,000

non-engaged youths served,
with 82% having found meaningful
engagement with the community

FTEIXEE13.000 2 BB ST
E82% iR At E AR

>6,000

one fifth of the total) and 5,000+

secondary school teachers (around
| 1/5 A/ i \

social workers equipped with new
practices incorporating CLD

ST EIBYE 6,000 FhEHET (K14
BMABREDZ—) RE500084T
ERUAIF S NETEERRER
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C-for-Chinese@JC

Trust-initiated Project

Using a home-school-community model C-for-Chinese@JC seeks
to improve the Chinese proficiency of non-Chinese-speaking
ethnic-minority kindergarten students with a view to supporting
their transition to primary education. Fundamental is the creation
of a culturally responsive learning environment, which the project
is supporting through the development of a set of Culturally
Responsive Education Benchmarks and via a series of professional
development courses, home-school collaboration, and extended
learning opportunities in the community. The training course for
educators has been recognised by the Education Bureau since
2022.

®)

i

y

[
O

2,435

non-Chinese-speaking
students benefited

(50

FrEIxTR2,435%
FEESRE

%
g Approved donation
g EEMBR
5
f‘;
EN million

HEBT

[BEERBBPIFERAIR - R - 4]
BERN  BEFERLBRBHHEESRE
RIRIOKF - DB FIIERIE 1/ NERAE ©
SEIBNABRERFACERNEERE
RERER U DEHRBERE |k —RHHE
BRFRE  ENREEIREE  LEHE
RHESBEHE - H2022F 1 - FHEIEA
BEIFEEMRASIRECHAREBR
AATERIE

952

educators and social practitioners
trained
STEIERIS2UHERMETHE
R AL E

1,101

students and/or families benefited
from transition support programmes

PR EER1101]
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CoolThink@JC

Trust-initiated Project

CoolThink@JC aims to mainstream computational thinking
education in Hong Kong’s formal curriculum and nurture student use
of technology for social good from a young age. Through bridging
the digital divide it offers students the opportunity to acquire 21st
century skillsets such as problem-solving, critical thinking and
creativity.

This year CoolThink@JC successfully reached its critical mass
adoption target of 204 primary schools. More significantly, the
Education Bureau has adapted and adopted its learning materials
and pedagogy for use in primary schools in Hong Kong. This marks
an important milestone in achieving a sustainable computational
thinking education ecosystem. The project has already received
multiple global certifications and awards.

SEE 204

=

CoolThink@JC network schools
offering 14+ hours of computational
thinking education annually

204 B S EEREHETE
BRBRSFRME14NEEER
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i”\ Approved donation
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‘5 million

BHEBT

[BEESEHRERE FHEEEHERRE
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>20,000

parents educated

#120,000 ERRINVREEH
BEABHTE

V2N
>80,000

students benefited
FTEIE K 80,000 584
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KeySteps@JC

Trust-initiated Project

KeySteps@JC aims to build a stronger foundation for children from
disadvantaged backgrounds in their formative years. A collaborative
project bringing together the health, education and welfare sectors,
it seeks to create a stimulating and child-friendly environment in
school, home and community.

Since 2022, the project has expanded its coverage from two to

five districts with high child poverty rates. Each will be served by a
community hub designed with input from children. Four will open in
the summer of 2023 while the remaining one will open by the end of
2023.

>8,800

children benefited
HHEIEKES8,80085F

teachers trained

FHEIE RE4501
HEm iR AR
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parents received intensive support
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LevelMind@JC

Trust-initiated Project

Approved donation
EE#IBRK

295

million
BEBET

LevelMind@JC aims to boost young people’s cognitive resources, [BEEEFTOEIFTEEERABTLFEN
personal strengths and overall mental wellness. Eight locality-based 5241850 ~ AA B R B ONIBMEE - 5312
yauth mental wellness hubs have been established to engage and R NBEFTOE ] TRREME - #8h

identify young people with early mental distress and to provide EZE#}#*‘;‘&Z BRERRENEDF - L TFMK

prevention and early intervention support. SRFRELHZEE - WiREIEETER RE
. ) . o BN AR ©

Ddiring the pandemic, the project’s multi-disciplinary team

implemented online channels to reach out to mentally distressed SENERERERERERIA LTS

yauth. Hybrid in-person/online service delivery has enabled the OEEERENSOFERBET  WE—DE

prpject to further expand its provision. The project team has been RERHEEE - REBRRALZE - BERT

inyited by the Education Bureau to help students cope with stress AT EIEE B R BB RS -

at|school.

o))\l

g

108

>10,000 ' 109

young people reached social workers trained

FHEIE#E 10,000 88V F 25 510953 TR Aty

3 s >95%

hub users have enhanced

sets of therapeutic interventions mental wellness awareness and

for distressed youth developed knowledge of support channels

‘Jr_J%ﬁ’IE,%%‘IEE’JE’J‘i and resources
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Jockey Club Experiential Learning
Project for Students with Special
Educational Needs

Through adventure-based and virtual-reality based learning, the EREERRTRBEEENGE LR —
Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project aims to strengthen the ESS[ERTRIBETEEBESTALR
generic skills of students with intellectual disabilities, a vulnerable EREREAANERLZE  BRAEREEN

group significantly impacted by the pandemic. In the second phase, HIBRES - STEIE RS EEBT0%
the project will benefit 70% of special schools serving students with RIEERER RIS REE IS RER -
intellectual disabilities and/or physical disabilities. To help students NEEBmas B sNEERERIE U

find meaningful engagement after graduation, a particular focus will MR EEIBALE o 52N 2021 EEE
be on career and life development. The project received the 2021 [RIETERETEE | R[S ERELE |481E -

Innovative Teacher Award and the 2021 Best Practice Award in
Social Welfare.

HKSAS Jockey Club “RESTORE”
Youth Empowerment Project

This project to refurbish the Hong Kong Student Aid Society ﬁ%ﬂi%%ﬁ,%%iﬁﬁf%%%%%iﬁa’%
Jockey Club Mark Memorial Home aims to inject much-needed ZRETEEBH TR BURRBLER

innovation into the residential child care sector. Through creating a RABRISSRFUEARIFI TR - ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ
stimulating environment, with technology-assisted learning facilities BUENRE - RENBEBPHETERE - U

and nurturing practices incorporating career and life development, EREEERRIESNBEERY  sTEBD
it seeks to help young people re-establish healthy routines and a BBV EEMBEYRENEETEEBRAL
sense of purpose. Around 100 resident children have benefited to BiZ - FHEIZSEXEIM100BTBE ©
date.
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Healthy Community

We are working to create a healthier community for all. We help
people get access to better healthcare, especially in the areas of
primary care, palliative care, end-of-life care, mental health and

well-being.
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Jockey Club End-of-Life
Community Care Project

Trust-initiated Project

This multi-disciplinary collaborative project is developing holistic
end-of-life care service models for terminally ill elderly persons
residing in the community and elderly homes. To further strengthen
the sector’s capability, the project has engaged St Christopher’s
CARE to pilot its Quality End of Life Care for All (QELCA®)
Programme in the community.

Q@} 14,790
u M —\ patients and family members

received physical, psychosocial

and spiritual care

SEREAI4TI0EREERRBIRM
[& 03 B | 75 ERY R BE AR TS

7 236,000

participants have joined end-of-life
— care public education programmes

Hi5236,000 A2 BB EREN
RRYBEED

& L

/ Approved donation

I BEHIBR

million
BEET
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0\“3{\0 N (yeg rs)

[ESEREE FEARBRREEER
BhEHERZERSNRIFEERERE
REMNZER - ;T ECHREREEER
BHEHERETROEE  EHEHATIZR
BEELEREERRE (QELCAO) | E—H12
FERKFE o

iy
38,700"

health and social care
professionals and frontline
practitioners trained

HiE38, 700 BB RAHER
EE A BMAIARE THEZ |




JC JoyAge: Jockey Club Holistic
Support Project for Elderly Mental
Wellness

Trust-initiated Project

JC JoyAge provides a community-based support network for senior
citizens facing the challenges of ageing. Its stepped-care service
model, which aligns community mental health services with district
elderly services, offers prevention and intervention services to older
adults at risk of, or living with, depression.

Building on the success of JC JoyAge, the Trust is supporting a new
three-year Trust-initiated Project to strengthen community support
for people suffering from common mental disorders. This will be
implemented through a co-ordinated approach bringing together
District Elderly Community Centres, Integrated Community Centres
for Mental Wellness, and District Health Centre operators in primary

care settings.
%) 7 000"
%(ﬁ depressed elderly served

SHEIRET.0008MBRERHERE
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5,700" £

at-risk elderly served
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JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism

R

Support Network : ved dor
Trust-initiated Project E AR

A first-of-its-kind project in Hong Kong, JC A-Connect offers [BESEEMHETHEIAZBEREZEAR
holistic support to students with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) in TRERBBENEFEZEMRNEFUX
mainstream schools. Through its NGO-school collaboration service EIEE - sHEIEBFBUTHBEERSEN

model, the project utilises NGO expertise to provide school-based RSB - EEIEBUNHEBNEZELR &
supplemental support to students with ASD. The Education Bureau BEIE2ERHRAZERE - B2021/22
regularised the service starting from the 2021/22 school year. BER  HERETIRBERL -

To further strengthen support for parents of children with ASD, STEITRE B Y R AS — FRER I
the project has implemented the WHO-Caregiver Skills Training HRER] E—DIRTEEREZEN
Programme, providing train-the-trainer programmes and community ~ X& & BBEIZERAHEMARYPHE
programmes to raise public awareness. EE  IRETRARE BEENRRE

33,000 moe
510 A0 suceisecived || LM]

mainstream schools benefited ﬁ§%33’000% B RIAE Ll
E‘I‘%S"ZE%SWFE?E%%& %iﬁﬁ%&ﬂxigﬂﬁﬁ )

o

[H

70,000

parents supported

FTE1570,0008
KREHRXE




Primary Care Community Pharmacy
Services

Trust-initiated Project

During the pandemic, the Trust funded three NGO-operated
community pharmacies to provide drug refilling and pharmaceutical
care services. Over 30,000 people benefited. This initiative
underlined the vital importance of pharmacy services, especially for
people with chronic conditions.

To take it further, the Trust has approved HK$415.1 million to launch
a new Trust-initiated Project. The five-year project, to be run by

The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in collaboration with eight NGOs, will develop primary care
community pharmacy services and provide medication management.
Over 112,000 people are expected to benefit. In addition, training
will be provided to approximately 5,400 pharmacists, pharmacy
students and professionals.

“«
@ Approved donation
3 FhBHR
>
C
=]
E
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) m|Illon_
BEBT

EREHE > EeEEEETESEY=/AH
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Jockey Club Long COVID
Rehabilitation Programme

One of the most concerning legacies of the pandemic is Long
COVID. To support the rehabilitation needs of vulnerable groups, the
Trust has approved over HK$100 million to support three services.
Namely, an online platform and mobile app operated by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong to help people self-manage their
symptoms; a community support programme run by eight NGOs in
collaboration with District Health Centres; and a support project run
by five NGOs targeting elderly residents in private care homes.

Jockey Club Support for
Young People with Diabetes

Type 1 diabetes and other young onset diabetes require life-long
management. To help children and young people with the condition,
especially those from disadvantaged backgrounds, the Trust is
supporting a four-year project jointly run by Youth Diabetes Action
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. The project will supply
continuous glucose monitors, which track blood glucose levels

in real-time. Patients will also be invited to have their genomes
sequenced for accurate and timely diagnosis. The project will cover
70-95% of patients aged 2-30 with diabetes.

(RIS |REBZHEINREEZ— AR
Rit - FEREETESEEMEBTEIR

B EHZIEXERE - RESSEEN
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MRS - B REEIRE B REEE
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Talent & Sector Development

We help people from diverse backgrounds achieve their potential.
We help the not-for-profit sector build its capacity, bringing people
together to share their experience, learn new skills and maximise
their impact in the community.

BMZRBTRATHNZERBERTNEE
HEHERRBEEE - REDFERR
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JC VOLUNTEER TOGETHER

Trust-initiated Project

The Trust’s newest TIP, JC VOLUNTEER TOGETHER is a five-year
project to promote citywide volunteerism. Launched in collaboration
with 12 partner organisations it has three components. A school-
based programme for primary and secondary school pupils to
nurture the volunteers and community leaders of the future. A 50+
and retirees programme to motivate them to help others and to
nurture an active and meaningful third age. A digital platform to
help people identify volunteering opportunities and to register for
and keep track of their activities, to be launched towards the end of
2023. A recognition scheme will also be launched later in 2023.
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Scholarships

Trust-initiated Project

First established in 1998, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships
support outstanding students through their studies with the ultimate
aim of nurturing them as caring leaders for a better Hong Kong.

JC Scholars are selected for their intellect, character, leadership
qualities and commitment to service. They include local, Mainland
and special educational needs undergraduates, vocational education
students, postgraduate students studying at leading overseas
universities including Harvard University, the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology, the University of Cambridge and the University of
Oxford, as well as NGO leaders on the Chicago Booth Executive
MBA Programme. The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships
Secretariat, established in 2015 to provide additional opportunities
for learning and social service, supports the personal development
of JC Scholars.

In 2023, two new scholarship schemes were launched to support
undergraduates studying in Hong Kong. The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Chairman’s Scholarship aims to attract students with
exceptional academic achievements. The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Striding On Scholarship aims to recognise students who have
achieved excellence while demonstrating resilience and strength of
mind in overcoming adversities or challenges in life.
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JC InnoPower Fellowship for
Teachers and Social Workers

Trust-initiated Project

This talent development programme seeks to nurture teachers and
social workers and enhance their innovation capabilities. Through
local and overseas training, a project implementation opportunity
and a collaborative learning platform, Fellows can learn, apply and
share knowledge and broaden their cross-sectoral exposure. More
than 120 schools and NGOs and 177 teachers and social workers
have participated to date. Its impact is well-recognised, with
Fellows receiving Most Innovative Teacher awards and government
committee appointments.
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Jockey Club Animated Classical
Chinese for Curious Minds Project

To promote the learning of Classical Chinese in primary schools,
the Trust is supporting a three-year project by The Education
University of Hong Kong to develop animated and other multimedia
learning experiences. An online learning platform and the first set
of animations have been launched and the training of teachers
commenced.
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Mai Po Nature Reserve
Infrastructure Upgrade Project

Mai Po is an internationally-recognised wetland of significant
scientific and ecological importance. In support of its continuing
research and public education activities, the Trust has funded the
renovation of WWF-Hong Kong’s Peter Scott Field Studies Centre,
due to open in late 2023, with other facilities to follow. The Jockey
Club Gallery inside the Centre will showcase the Club’s support for
environmental projects.
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Sports & Culture

We are helping to build an inclusive, creative and vibrant Hong EMBRAAE—EES - ARIRFULED
Kong, where everyone’s life can be improved through sports and the ~ HI&#E » BARENEMREATRMNETE
arts. We want to make it easier for everyone to enjoy the benefits of BR BARBREZREETN LIS
an active lifestyle and the pleasures of cultural experiences. R o
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Trust-initiated Project
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Through school and family collaboration, and assisted by [BEEERRESHTEIEERT—EER
technology, Fun to Move@JC aims to develop a sustainable model MWEBKEEIBER  BRRREER
to enhance primary students’ physical activity, improve their REER - B/ NEE SR RE BV AS
motivation in sports, and foster lifelong habits of physical activity. MESEDHEE  UREEMMREEDN

In the 2022/23 academic year, Fun to Move@JC welcomed five new
schools, with a total of 35 schools participating. A blend of in-person  2022/23 2 F3iZ A BRSBTS #F

and online activities encourage students, parents, and school staff 3S5E/NEZEE o THEIEM— RIIBRANA L
to exercise, with inter-school activities, such as the 10-Million Steps ~ &&) » FEEE - IRRBBEZWES) -
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goals. Individual fundamental movement skills are also being SMEERNERS WS EABE o 58
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Jockey Club SportsEXPLORE
Project

With the aim of promoting sport in the community, especially
among young people, and also to promote sport as a career, the
Trust is supporting the three-year SportsEXPLORE project run by
Hong Kong Christian Service. To make sports more appealing,
game elements have been incorporated into activities. To date
over 60 FlashSports sessions have been organised in schools and
the community, with experiential learning sessions, sports career
counselling and job matching opportunities also being provided.

- "

{1
e
g
P
:.-.
T
3"

ICH+ Innovative Heritage
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Education Programme

Hong Kong’s intangible cultural heritage (ICH), comprising its
festive events, traditions and cultural practices, is a vital part of
community life. To preserve, promote and revitalise ICH, the Trust
is supporting an educational and audience building programme run
by Lingnan University and the Hong Kong Arts Centre. Phase one
of the project reached out to secondary schools, groomed new ICH
practitioners and engaged the wider community through events
and online broadcasts. Phase two will expand to primary school
students, launch large-scale ICH festivals, and use new technology
to document and share traditional crafts. A particular target will be
underprivileged and non-Chinese speaking students.
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Community




In addition to the work of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the Club reaches
out to the community in many other ways. Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts, which
celebrated its fifth anniversary this year, is a hugely popular visitor destination as well as
an important platform for cultural exchange and talent development. Through its support
for community football, the Club helps young people develop physically, mentally and
socially, while Club-supported riders will soon be competing for Hong Kong at the 19th
Asian Games in Hangzhou. Meanwhile Club employees continued to lend a helping hand
in the community, being recognised especially for their efforts during the pandemic. This
year also saw the Club embark on a phased upgrade of Penfold Park, while to further
promote Hong Kong-Mainland exchanges, the Club signed collaboration agreements with
the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the HKSAR and the Office of the
Commissioner of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs in the HKSAR. Throughout the year, the
Club continued to support community events marking 25 years since the establishment of
the HKSAR.

SERTZEEBEFSLREETESETERENLEB TN —HEURBUSERERE
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25th Anniversary Community Events - highlights this year
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“Creative Tomorrow” arts tech festival
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HKJC Series: Dunhuang: Enchanting Tales for Millennium exhibition
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Then. Now. Always. GREATER 2= 3 =a g O

BAY AREA =
BUILT HERITAGE SUMMIT 2

On 1 July 2022, Hong Kong marked 25 years since the establishment of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. In support, the Club approved a donation of HK$630
million to the HKSAR Government to fund community events, with activities being rolled
out well into 2023. With the theme With You Then. Now. Always. the Club launched
its own events, celebrating its contribution to Hong Kong, including a popular touring
exhibition of Drago Cavallo art works.

2022F7 A1 ABEBBRTHRERL25FF - FEEMIBN6E3,0008E T » XFHK
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HKJC Series: Women and Femininity in Ancient China
- Treasures from the Nanjing Museum exhibition
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GREATER BAY AREA BUILT HERITAGE SUMMIT 2

Greater Bay Area Built Heritage Summit
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25th Anniversary

Community Events —
Highlights This Year
REEERERI25AENREEHS -
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2022 Hong Kong Sevens Community Programmes
[ EEERt ABRE2022 M BHETE

2022 Hong Kong Masters
BB R FIRARME2022




@ Operations Review Charities and Community / £ B ZZ Rt E

el
"

S

I I T

Yy ER Ry
\ OUTH Fog -aa
5 i iy

“Spot our Sports!” at the Jockey Club HKFA Football Training Centre
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Tai Kwun Celebrates Fifth
Anniversary

This was a landmark year for Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and
Arts as it celebrated its fifth anniversary. Since opening in May
2018, Tai Kwun has firmly established itself as a vibrant cultural
destination, attracting over 13 million visitors to its unique blend
of meticulously conserved historic architecture and a year-round
programme of exhibitions, tours, festivals and performances.

Conserved and revitalised by the Club, Tai Kwun is operated by
The Jockey Club CPS Limited (JCCPS), a not-for-profit company
established under the Club’s Charities Trust. As such Tai Kwun
reflects the Trust’s commitment to making arts and heritage
accessible to all, with most of its programmes being offered free of
charge.

To celebrate its fifth anniversary, Tai Kwun launched the Feel Your
Heart Beat campaign featuring spectacular performances and
exhibitions, including Hong Kong’s first solo exhibition of renowned
Australian artist Patricia Piccinini.
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Other highlights this year included HKJC Presents Simple Gifts of
Joy, a month-long celebration of the festive season; In Bloom flower
market; BOOKED: Hong Kong Art Book Fair; and InnerGlow, a 3D
light projection show which transformed and animated the historic
architecture of the Parade Ground.

Through SPOTLIGHT: A Season of Performing Arts, Tai Kwun
continues to nurture home-grown musical, theatrical and dance
talent, while the Prison Yard Festival: Music from within provides
opportunities to enjoy performances by Hong Kong and overseas
musicians. Meanwhile, Tai Kwun Conversations, in partnership
with UNESCO Asia and the Pacific Regional Bureau for Education,
provided a platform for scholars and experts to share their
knowledge while also reaching a wider audience in the region.

To mark the 25th anniversary of the establishment of the HKSAR,
Tai Kwun hosted Heritage Vogue - Hollywood Road in collaboration
with the Commissioner for Heritage’s Office, which included an
unforgettable appearance by the Tai Hang Fire Dragon.

Of the 16 historic buildings at Tai Kwun, 15 have been fully restored
and opened to the public. The Married Inspectors’ Quarters (Block
4) is the only historic building yet to be restored. During the year,
discussions on its recovery continued, with public safety being the
top priority. JCCPS will continue to work with the Government on
the way forward for Block 4.
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Installation view of HOPE —Patricia Piccinini
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Equestrian Sport

With the 19th Asian Games in Hangzhou imminent, this has been a
year of busy preparation for Hong Kong, China’s equestrian team.
All are members of the HKJC Equestrian Team, with riders benefiting
from high-level coaching and professional support under the Hong
Kong Equestrian Performance Plan.

To support up-and-coming riders, the Club has also established
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Youth Equestrian Development
Programme, which in 2022 was expanded to include talented Hong
Kong athletes residing in the Mainland. With 53 riders of all ages
now benefiting from Club support, Hong Kong has never had such
breadth and depth of talent.

All will be hoping to follow in the footsteps of Club-supported
riders who have already achieved great success nationally and
internationally, including Hong Kong’s first-ever Asian Games
equestrian gold medal at the 2018 Asian Games.

In addition to supporting the Hong Kong, China team, the Club

has signed a memorandum of understanding with the Organising
Committee of the 19th Asian Games under which the Club will
provide technical support across six functional areas. This follows
on from support provided by the Club to the equestrian events of the
Beijing 2008 Olympic and Paralympic Games and to the Guangzhou
2010 Asian Games.

To carry forward the legacy of the equestrian events, the Club has
also signed a memorandum of understanding with the Hangzhou
Municipal Government. Under this the Club will provide advice
and explore collaboration opportunities with respect to further
developing equine sport in Hangzhou.
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The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau
Public Golf Course

EEEAMNIRSEREE

The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course (KSC) is the only
public golf course in Hong Kong. Ever since its opening in 1995,

its mission has been to promote the game of golf to Hong Kong
people.

With KSC fully open for the first time since the onset of the
pandemic, the past year saw record high utilisation of tee times

at 81%. Though community golf programmes continued to be
impacted by group size restrictions at sports venues in the first
part of the year, the Go Fun Junior Golf Development Programme
was still able to operate, with KSC golf professionals coaching in
52 primary and secondary schools. Following the lifting of all social
distancing measures, the Special Olympics Hong Kong and Hong
Kong Blind Sports Federation golf programmes were able to fully
resume.

During the year a new enterprise resource planning system was
successfully launched and work commenced on replacing the
irrigation system and relining storm water drainage pipes. Along
with other improvement work this will ensure that KSC golf courses
will maintain a high standard in the years to come.
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Community Football

The Club has long been committed to helping Hong Kong’s young
people develop physically, mentally and socially through the medium
of football.

At the heart of the Club’s efforts is the JC School Football
Development Scheme. Since 2013 it has offered coaching to
teachers and students in over 145 primary schools, secondary
schools and post-secondary institutes. This year the scheme was
extended to seven kindergartens and to the Lingnan Institute of
Further Education. In addition, the JC Youth Football Leadership
Scheme, which this year offered mountaineering training alongside
football coaching, aims to nurture the community leaders of the
future.

Fundamental to the success of these programmes has been a strong
partnership with Manchester United, the Football Association of
Hong Kong, China and the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. This year,
in celebration of the Club’s ten-year partnership with Manchester
United, the Club organised a Youth Football Skills Challenge for
schools and a Sports and Social Value Symposium for NGOs. A
highlight was an exchange trip for the Hong Kong U16 Women'’s
Representative Team to the United Kingdom.

This summer will also see the Manchester United Academy youth
team join Hong Kong’s elite youth players for the JC Youth Football
Academy Summit, a week-long cultural and football exchange

programme which is also part of the Government’s “Happy Hong
Kong” campaign.

Meanwhile, in support of the budding football players of the future, the
Club has entered into a three-year partnership with the Hong Kong
Premier League Committee as title sponsor of the JC Sapling Cup.
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Employee Volunteer Team

In the spirit of volunteerism, and of lending a helping hand, the
Club’s employees play an active role in the community as members
of the CARE@hkjc volunteer team. Over the years they have worked
with community partners to help the elderly, young people, people
with intellectual disabilities and ethnic minorities.

Since 2019, the CARE team has been involved in animal welfare,
working with a variety of organisations, including the Society for
the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals. In addition to daily operations
work, including dog walking, cattery, kennel and hutch cleaning,
and trap-neuter-return programmes, the team also supports fund-
raising activities and animal adoption events.

This year, the team launched two new programmes. The Enjoy
Reading with Kids programme, in collaboration with the Hong
Kong Women Development Association, is helping to promote
parent-child interactions in underprivileged families. The ZE 15
Me&EFree® tt SR programme, in collaboration with the Hong Kong
Young Women'’s Christian Association, arranges outings for special
educational needs children, providing much-needed relief to
parents.

The dedication and achievement of the Club’s employee volunteers,
especially during the pandemic, was recognised at the Hong

Kong Volunteer Award 2022. The Club was honoured with an
Outstanding Corporate & Non-Commercial Organization award and
a Top Ten Highest Volunteer Hours (Corporate & Non-Commercial
Organization) award, the latter recognising over 16,000 service
hours contributed by Club staff during the year.
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A New Look for Penfold Park

Over the past 40 years, Penfold Park at Sha Tin Racecourse

has become a much-loved public space and a popular place for
recreation. As part of a project to upgrade and enhance community
facilities around the racecourse, the Club has begun a phased
renovation. The new park will feature a wider range of facilities
benefiting families with children, pet lovers, wheelchair users and
the elderly. During the renovation, the park will remain partially
open, with measures in place to protect wildlife and to ensure public
safety.
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Collaboration Agreements Promote
Hong Kong-Mainland Exchanges

This year the Club signed collaboration agreements with the Liaison
Office of the Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (CLO) and the Office of the Commissioner

of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (OCMFA) to further promote understanding
and exchanges between Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Through its two agreements with the CLO, the Club will take forward
a collaborative relationship which dates back to 2014. Under these
the Club will sponsor the CLO to organise sports, cultural and arts
exchange activities for Hong Kong youth, as well as innovation

and technology-related internship programmes. The Club will

also support the CLO to run development programmes aimed at
nurturing Hong Kong’s cultural and arts talent and developing arts
management executives.

Since 2009, the Club has been sponsoring student winners of the
Hong Kong Cup Diplomatic Knowledge Contest to join Mainland
study tours organised by the OCMFA to promote understanding

of international relations and national development. The new
collaboration agreement with the OCMFA will expand the scope and
scale of the Club’s support.
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This was a year of renewal and hope for the Club’s employees as the pandemic receded.
With the Club facing new challenges and opportunities in the post-pandemic environment
it reinforced its position as an employer of choice, engaging both current and prospective
employees. In support of business growth the Club continued its culture change journey,
with a strong emphasis on customer-centricity.

MEERBEHNE  AFEUSEETIMSRUEEENTRFEN—F - FEERRBNRE
o EREEHREAELR - MIREERE - BURMBHZEEEREBEREEAIMAL -
URSIRBETEE  WRAESATIMA - FEMRBEETEELENE LEEHESD
[UEHE MRS UXFEBER -

Returning to Normalcy

With the gradual relaxation of pandemic health measures, the Club %%E’FFE}“ ERBESHE  FE
returned to normal operations in a phased manner this year while PEERMIEER E » [EIEF ,..&ﬁ,aﬁf‘?-%ilﬂﬁ
continuing to protect employee safety and well-being. ZEFGRE o

The Club continues to encourage employees to increase their EEREFBIBETREEEXETE
protection against COVID-19 by getting vaccinated and supports SRETEERYE  EMMRERSHI
them through its Employee Vaccination Support Programme. TRESNRED ©

Building on the experience of the pandemic, the Club has BIEBEBEHEBNEER  SSESHE
maintained its New Normal Work Arrangements, providing TR ZEEIFEETH IT(FHE
employees with greater flexibility to balance work and personal life. BALSE - 1o BEREATERBEHRES
The additional mental health support offered during the pandemic ETRMNBEIMERRESRE  REHE
has also been expanded to cover employee dependents. EREETIHRERE °
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Reinforcing our Customer-Centric
Culture

Customer-centricity is fundamental to the Club’s culture and
mindset, especially in the post-pandemic environment as the Club
seeks to strengthen its engagement with customers and to capture
business growth opportunities.

With this in mind, and guided by the spirit of “One Club, One Team,
One Vision”, the Club continued its culture change journey this year,
with a stronger emphasis on customer-centricity.

In addition to ongoing departmental activities, several organisational
changes were implemented. The new Customer Strategy, Insights
and Innovation Division was established to develop and implement
a holistic customer strategy and to create new customer offerings.
The Membership, Strategic Marketing and Branding Division was
restructured into the Membership, Brand, Marketing and Experience
Division, responsible for brand building, marketing and experience
delivery.
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Managing and Connecting
Employees

In line with the Club-wide transformation and focus on customers,
work began this year on a new unified human resources system to
manage all HR processes across the employee journey.

In addition to enhancing efficiency, the new system will significantly
improve information management and sharing capabilities. New
and convenient digital services will also elevate the employee
experience.

In preparation for implementation, a comprehensive change
management framework to engage employees in the transformation
process has been developed. A two-year plan detailing the critical
implementation milestones has also been put in place.
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Competing for Talent

The post-pandemic environment has intensified the war for talent as
organisations worldwide rebuild their capability and capacity. Hong
Kong’s employment market in particular is very challenging.

In response the Club has continued to reinforce its position as an
employer of choice in Hong Kong and to pursue its talent strategy
in the Greater Bay Area as a whole. Through highly targeted and
localised recruitment initiatives, combined with an enhanced
onboarding and integration experience, the Club has succeeded in
maintaining a stable workforce.

One of the most effective recruitment channels has been the
employee referral programme, with over 450 candidates referred for
full-time and part-time opportunities. Leveraging offline and online
channels, the Club was also able to significantly increase direct
applications. Additionally, the Club arranged over 195 recruitment
events in partnership with associations, schools and universities,
while it further explored alternative sources of talent, including hiring
those with special abilities.

During the year, over 1,400 full-time employees and 4,200 part-time
employees joined the Club. In addition, over 900 employees were
recruited internally for lateral or promotion opportunities.
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Helping Employees Reach
their Full Potential

Dedicated to building the leadership capability and professional
skills of employees, the Club updated and launched new learning
and development offerings this year to meet the needs of employees
at all levels.

The updated Leadership Development Programme 2.0 aims to
enhance the leadership effectiveness of high-potential middle
managers via a personalised 360-degree development programme.

The new Individual Contributor Programme, targeted at senior staff
grade employees, is designed to help them better understand their
development gaps and build their management effectiveness.

The People Management Excellence Programme, which aims
to strengthen the people management skills of supervisors, was
extended to Mainland teams.

Meanwhile, Racing 101 provides an immersive and interactive
learning experience for employees to learn more about the Club’s
core business.

Both the Leadership Development Programme 2.0 and Racing 101
were recognised at the Hong Kong Management Association Award
for Excellence in Training and Development 2022, receiving a total
of five awards.
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Ensuring Workplace Safety

With a continuous focus on employee health and safety, the Club
completed an evaluation of its safety practices and design and
implemented strategies to better manage safety-related risks. The
Corporate Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Management
Manual, which provides a comprehensive framework for OSH
management, has been updated to cover changes in regulatory
requirements and to meet operational needs. The introduction of
Near Miss Policy and Procedures helps identify hazards and address
them before accidents occur.
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This year the Club deepened its commitment to environmental sustainability and the
diverse facets of sustainability with the aim of strengthening the Club’s positive impact in
society. Not least this includes the Club’s support for the HKSAR Government’s target of
carbon neutrality by 2050. All of this aligns with the Club’s purpose of acting continuously

for the betterment of our society.

SE BSEMEERNBRRAFERR  URETEEBEREIFEEBRTRENEAR

R

BASSHHENIARE  EFEEXIFEBRERETNR2050FAERRHTMNERZ

EHMEERNEREXFHENRE -

Strategic Realignment

The Club took a major step forward in reinforcing sustainability this
year, integrating resources with an emphasis on four key areas:
sustainability policies development, strategies and performance
management, sustainability engagement, and data analysis and
management reporting. This will enable the Club to strengthen its
operational capacities with respect to the environment, society and
responsible business.

Specifically, the Club is developing a comprehensive sustainability
strategy and blueprint with prioritised targets. The aim is to further
embed integrated thinking and responsibilities on sustainability

into the core of the Club’s business operations and to generate
synergies that contribute to the Club’s ultimate purpose of acting for
the betterment of our society.

Collaborating with expert bodies, the Club will establish innovative
approaches and scientific methodologies to assess the social
impact and value creation of its business and community initiatives.
This will provide references and benchmarks for continuous
improvement and facilitate external communication of the Club’s
contribution to societal betterment.
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The Club continues to improve the design, formulation and SE-HELUSFEERIZENEEN
management of key sustainability performance indicators. To this RET - FIEMBETE - Alt - 28
end it is establishing clear responsibilities, formulating objectives at BEMHBEE ST XFAERENERZE U
different stages, and monitoring performance data and progress. RESHERNBIEER - S5 ERSEE
This will enable seamless implementation of each initiative and FEEBREIERIHEST » WHSTERFARERS » LA
facilitate timely strategic realignments, while managing potential B &SI PGB TR o

opportunities and risks.
AERRE— AR UENEEL  FE

Sustainability is an ongoing commitment. By leveraging its unique ZEFBEHBERNEALESR KT
integrated business model, the Club will strengthen its sustainable RERETIIE . SEE  Tadeas
development, contribute to the community, and create value for EE -

society.

The floodlighting system at Happy Valley
Racecourse has been upgraded with LEDs for
improved energy efficiency.
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Towards Net Zero

The Club fully recognises the global imperative to reduce carbon
emissions. As such it is prioritising the implementation of efficient
and sustainable operations to gradually reduce its carbon footprint.

With the pandemic receding over the past year, the Club’s
operations in Hong Kong returned to normal, resulting in a year-on-
year increase in carbon emissions (Scope 1 & 2) by 6% to 98,513
tonnes of CO,-e. For Mainland operations, carbon emissions
(Scope 1 & 2) increased by 3% year on year to 20,331 tonnes of
CO,-¢e, mainly due to the gradual strengthening of operations and
expansion of horse stabling capacity at Conghua Racecourse, as
well as the return to normal operations of Beijing Clubhouse.

Nonetheless, at 118,844 tonnes of CO,-e, overall carbon emissions
(Scope 1 & 2, Hong Kong and Mainland) are 5% below the 125,629
tonnes of CO,-e overall carbon emissions recorded by the Club in
its baseline year of 2009/10. This is despite the Club’s expanding
operational footprint, including the opening of Conghua Racecourse
and Happy Valley New Clubhouse. This reflects the success of the
Club’s energy-saving and emission-reduction projects, coupled with
the reduction in carbon intensity by Hong Kong electricity providers.
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Carbon Emissions
(Scope 1 & 2, CO,-e in tonnes)

Year-
2022/23 2021/22 on-year

2009/10

baseline
change

BEREH HEEE

Hong Kong operations!

i 98,513 92,755 6% 116,864
EEE LA
7
Mainland operations?3#
o 2 7204 20,331 19,824 3% 8,765
Total
435 118,844 112,579 6% 125,629
Other operations®
o 7,869 7,670 3% 3,210
SUES S
1. Includes Happy Valley New Clubhouse since 2020/21
H2020/21 5 ERBEBE ISR
2. Includes Conghua Racecourse since 2019/20
H2019/20F ERRBERLES
3. The emission factor of Mainland operations’ electricity is updated to 0.5703kg
CO,-e/kWh from 2022/23
E }?F %%%ﬁg H2022/23 F EB IR AN B OB A BB EEE0.5703 A T =1k
——— BE
-
L 4. Includes heating supplies purchased by Beijing Clubhouse since 2022/23
R 2020/23 F S R L P4t 3 B (2 5 49 T8 R
. N 5. Includes other operations in Hong Kong: The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public
iy Golf Course, Public Riding Schools, and Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and
Arts since 2018/19 3
H201819F EREEEBAMEY BFSEAMNIRSHAIRS -
\ DNBEITERA AL — HERENE




Committed to Decarbonising

To reduce its carbon footprint, the Club has prioritised the
management of energy consumption, including through the use
of advanced technology and through transitioning to clean and
renewable energy sources.

This year the Club continued to invest in renewable energy, installing
solar photovoltaic (PV) panels at selected facilities in Hong Kong.
Upon completion in 2026, the initiative will generate up to 5 million
kWh of renewable energy per year, with the Club being one of Hong
Kong’s largest investors in solar energy.

The Club has embarked on a comprehensive upgrade of
floodlighting systems at both Hong Kong racecourses, adopting
more energy-efficient LED technology. Electricity usage for
floodlighting at Happy Valley Racecourse is expected to be reduced
by an estimated 35% and at Sha Tin Racecourse by an estimated
23% once this initiative is completed.

FEXERERAEESMERLEEEE
BIEBEBEARERN - UARERZZEM
ABLERRER - SUBD U RS o

SE > BEEERENTBERER €8
BRESBEREZEABEEN AR - HE
MR2026 FEH % B BERZAEE
500BTREBERER  SEERAXR
BRANABGREREEZ— -

FETAEEMESSHNZAERBARSR
ETEEAN  REEEHERWLEDE - RN
TERERARTRER - BetlEEHRDH
BBz AEEHE D BIREA35% KR
23% °

Upon completion in 2026, the solar PV panel
initiative will generate annual renewable
energy of up to

KRIGRERRIRIE B #2026 F 5Th - FEFHEF
REZUELEABLERR

million kWh
BETRK
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Energy Consumption (Gigajoules)

2022/23

Hong Kong operations!

skt e g 732,256
I\pg?énlﬁa%(:’:)perations2v3 138,903
IO;; | 871,159
;\t&e‘l%;;erations“ 63,782
1. Includes Happy Valley New Clubhouse since 2020/21

2 Includes Conghua Racecourse since 2019/20
3. Includes heating supplies purchased by Beijing Clubhouse since 2022/23
4 Includes other operations in Hong Kong: The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public

Golf Course, Public Riding Schools, and Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and
Arts since 2018/19

Energy Use (Hong Kong and Mainland Operations)
BERERER (FBRAMER)

Telebet Centres

HoET 43y S
BRBETL Off-Course

1% Betting Branches
BINRIER
8%

Offices, ITSZ
WAE
RIIRHE A
12%

Gigajoules

TREH

Year-
2021/22 on-year 2009/.1 0
baseline

change
RESE HEFEE
648,420 13% 685,700
124,681 11% 42,089
773,101 13% 727,789
59,155 8% 21,080

H2020/21 FEREEBS TS
H2019/20 F ERBERILES

F12022/23 FF EE AR EIE AL S T AR MO (LI PR A%
H2018/19FERRBEABHMEY : BEFS

BEENARSB RS - RREMERMALE
— hE R

Sha Tin Racecourse
PHES
32%
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Artist’s impression of Conghua Racecourse’s grandstand rooftop,
which will accommodate solar PV panels.

RILBSNESBEE - ZRENREEEE KSR MR -

Building for the Future

As part of ongoing construction activities at Conghua Racecourse,
the new grandstand and multi-level car park will be equipped with
solar PV panels with the aim of providing at least 30% of their
annual energy consumption. The Club has set the goal of obtaining
at least the China Green Building Label 2 Star and international
LEED Gold certifications for these buildings. The new stables blocks
and staff accommodation at Conghua will also have solar panels
installed on their rooftops, providing additional opportunities to
harness renewable energy.
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Respecting Nature

Water Management and
Preservation

The Club appreciates the importance of freshwater conservation
and the need to reduce water consumption. To this end it has
implemented water management strategies and adopted sustainable
practices to minimise its impact on freshwater sources.

At Happy Valley Racecourse, the Club now utilises a mix of
harvested water and municipal water for track irrigation. This
initiative became operational in May. The harvested water is
projected to meet up to 25% of the track’s irrigation needs.

The Club has made notable progress in water conservation at
Conghua Racecourse, with approximately 39% of water used being
recycled this year. Situated within the critical watershed area of the
Liuxi River, Conghua Racecourse’s design exemplifies the Club’s
comprehensive planning, incorporating the design of stormwater
and wastewater drainage separation. Greywater undergoes
controlled routing to an on-site sewage treatment plant, facilitating
its reuse for various applications, including turf irrigation, floor
washing, gardening, flushing and cooling. This approach conserves
approximately 500-600ms3/day of freshwater, contributing to the
environmental well-being of the surrounding area.
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At Happy Valley Racecourse, harvested water is
projected to meet up to
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of water used at Conghua Racecourse was
recycled
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Water Consumption - from Municipal (m°)

Year-
2022/23 2021/22 on-year

2013/14

baseline
change

BRESEH AEFE

Hong Kong operations!

e 2,115,800 1,872,615 13% 1,738,946
ESCES ’
Mainland operations?
592,293 484,757 22% 97,117
o it S 75 °
Total o
oy 2,708,093 2,357,372 15% 1,836,063
Other operations?®
75,425 66,045 14% 65,107
H 3750 °
1. Includes Happy Valley New Clubhouse since 2020/21 B2020/21 FE R EIEM SIS
2. Includes Conghua Racecourse since 2019/20 B2019/20 F ERBIERILES
3. Includes other operations in Hong Kong: The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public H201819F ERRBERBHMEY EFS
Golf Course, Public Riding Schools, and Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage and EEMNABSWAREG - AREBEMERFALE
Arts since 2018/19 — hE R

Waste Management and Avoidance

The Club has pursued a well-balanced approach between business ESmTEEN AR  FEEEFXRIHEE

development and waste management strategies to minimise its YVIEEBERE  FEROHRENSE
environmental impact and seeks to reduce, reuse and recycle I LURSEREE S B B - B KRE
wherever possible, with waste avoidance at source being the D BERANERBE

priority.

Barley grass growing hydroponically in a pilot project to reduce reliance on imported horse feed.

BERTAMEEAZENLEIRA « BOHENSERNMKE -
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With stables waste accounting for 80% of the Club’s waste sent to
landfill, it has engaged consultants to identify adoptable technology
to process this waste. The Club is actively working towards the
goal of treating all of its stable waste and turning it into a reusable
product.

To promote equine health and reduce reliance on imported horse
feed, the Club has implemented a pioneering pilot project to
cultivate barley grass hydroponically. This yields a daily output of
exceptionally nutritious barley grass, completing the entire growth
cycle from seed to feed within seven days. Building on this success,
the Club envisions scaling up production to cater to its entire horse
population in Hong Kong, and potentially also in the Mainland.

The Club diverts food waste from Hong Kong racecourse and
clubhouse dining outlets to the Government’s O - PARK1, where it is
composted for local use and electricity is generated for its internal
use as part of the process. Prior to the pandemic, the average
annual food waste sent to O-PARK1 was around 1,000 tonnes, with
595 tonnes being sent this year.

In addition, the Club maintains a responsible approach to paper
consumption, using Forest Stewardship Council-certified paper for
betting slips and key corporate publications.

Biodiversity Conservation

Biodiversity is paramount in climate change mitigation and essential
for maintaining a healthy natural ecosystem. The Jockey Club

Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course not only provides much-needed
public recreation facilities but is making an important contribution
to biodiversity. Certified as an Audubon Cooperative Sanctuary

for Wildlife, regular ecological monitoring and assessments by
environmental specialists have consistently observed positive
trends, with The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course
nurturing the growth and diversity of flora and fauna.
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Responsible Investment

Considerations of ESG (Environment, Social and Governance) BEKIRE - 8 KES (TESG)) HWZE
factors are integrated into the investment management process of BREZE  MAHMBRENREEREBRE
the Club’s financial reserves. An ESG Investing Policy was formally o EEN2018FEXNIRMESGIRE K

adopted by the Club in 2018. The initial phase of engagement K -ERYVRER SEEHEDEARE
focused on driving adoption by investment managers mandated by HIRELE - IMESGIREBSK - BAl -

the Club. Currently, over 90% of the Club’s investment managers EEBBI0%MNRELSENMMIEENE
and externally managed assets have an ESG investment policy in EELRMESGHREHR -

place.

BE—F SEEHFEHREASTN
The focus over the past year has been on measuring different ESG FRIESGIERR - ERHRIZZLNELR -
metrics of the investment portfolio. Reviewing and reporting carbon EEELBEERBEREREASHmEE

emission metrics for the public equities portfolio was prioritised BAERR o bbb - eI LR B A B 1ER
given its importance in relation to climate change. Additionally, FHENTAENEESR LETHRA - -
public companies have the most consistent measurement and HZE2021F12A310 B2 LEHRE
disclosure practices for carbon emissions in the market. As at 31 REAESTEI00EETRE MBS A
December 2021, the carbon footprint of the Club’s public equities 76 AM—E MBI EE  BEAEZE
investments was 76 tonnes of carbon dioxide-equivalent (CO,-¢€) 2018F 12 A31 HWREAESHE1008X
emissions per US$1 million invested, which is substantially lower TRE - B A 136 AME —E b iHE K
than the portfolio’s carbon footprint of 136 tonnes of CO,-e per EE2MNKE - RERR  FEBBHIKE
US$1 million invested as at 31 December 2018. Going forward, RAMEBREAESPHMEERRNRE
the Club aims to collect and analyse carbon footprint data for the S - EUEREZENHE -

other asset classes in its portfolio with a view to obtaining a more
comprehensive overview.

>90%

ES M _\ of the Club’s investment managers and
externally managed assets have an ESG
investment policy in place
NEEREKENIBEBENEED LK
MESGIREBE
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Collaboration and Engagement

Community Collaboration

The Charities Trust is committed to driving sustainable development
in the community, supporting and promoting collaborative efforts
and innovation. The Trust actively engages with NGOs and
educational institutions, forging multi-faceted partnerships with a
particular focus on reducing carbon emissions, managing waste and
conserving the natural environment. Through these collaborations,
the Trust introduces fresh perspectives to the funded sector

while simultaneously catalysing impactful societal outcomes. Most
recently, for example, the Trust has supported the redevelopment of
the WWF-Hong Kong'’s Peter Scott Field Studies Centre at Mai Po
Nature Reserve.

The Club engages in cross-industry initiatives to promote sustainable
practices, including with the Business Environment Council and

the Hong Kong Green Building Council. As a member of the Drink
Without Waste initiative, the Club is contributing to strategies and
actions to reduce, recover and recycle beverage waste. To inspire
environmental consciousness among the next generation, the Club
also sponsors tertiary students to attend environmental seminars
and workshops.
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Employee Participation

The Club believes sustainability is a collective responsibility

that extends beyond the workplace and encompasses the daily
actions of its employees. To promote sustainability awareness and
practices, the Club provides environmental education to all full-time
and relevant part-time employees, with a total of 1,620 employees
in Hong Kong and Conghua Racecourse participating this year.

In addition, the Club organises environmental-related activities
for employees, including technical visits to waste infrastructure
and opportunities to attend sustainability conferences. These
initiatives are aimed at facilitating employees’ active engagement
with the latest developments and best practices in environmental
sustainability.
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a world-class racing club that acts continuously
for the betterment of our society. Through its integrated business model of world-class
racing and racecourse entertainment, a membership club, responsible sports wagering and
lottery, and charity and community contribution, the Club generates economic and social
value for the community.

The Club, together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is Hong Kong’s largest
single taxpayer, contributing HK$27.5 billion in 2022/23. The Club allocates its surplus
funds to charitable and community projects via The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
(the “Trust”), which is one of the world’s top ten providers of charity funding. In 2022/23,
the Trust approved HK$7.3 billion in donations to 247 charitable and community projects.

APPROVED DONATIONS FROM THE HKJC GROUP TO

THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)

APPROVED DONATIONS MADE BY THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)
ERAERERERNSEAECTESERNER (ERET)
EEERSAECTESEEMNER (BEET)

/

29/23 / 4,603 40/

/ /
21/22 / 4,952/

/
5,101

/
20/21
i 4)510

/

19/20 /
/
4,300

4,277
0] 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000

18/19 /

Approved donations from The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Group to the Trust

EEESERERSEESHHOBR

Approved donations from the Trust to
charitable organisations and
community projects

ERESHASHBRAEIRE At HARK

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Club is a Hong Kong incorporated company with liability limited by guarantee. Through
its wholly owned subsidiaries, HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC Football Betting
Limited and HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation
and management of Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery.
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, another principal subsidiary,
manages members’ social and recreational facilities.

The Trust is a public charity and is primarily engaged in supporting charitable and
community projects in Hong Kong.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Club has no shareholders and is governed by an elected Board of Stewards whose
members possess a wide cross-section of business and community experience and serve
without remuneration.

In line with the HKSAR Government’s policy of meeting public demand for gambling through
a regulated and responsible channel, the Club provides all on-course betting and has been
authorised as Hong Kong’s sole provider of off-course betting services on horse racing
since 1973. It has been the authorised operator of the Mark Six lottery since 1975. In 2003,
to combat illegal betting on football matches, it was further authorised by the Government
to provide a regulated football betting service. The Club’s betting licences are issued
and overseen by the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau in consultation with the Betting and
Lotteries Commission.

In support of its commitment to promote responsible gambling, the Club engages with
the HKSAR Government, police, gambling care agencies, customers, employees and
international organisations to establish measures to protect Hong Kong people from
excessive and illegal gambling. Since 2003, the Club has supported the Ping Wo Fund,
an independent body established by the Government, which finances and co-ordinates
preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related problems.

The Club is Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and wagering entertainment, major
source of tax and charity funding, and a significant employer. This means that most
individuals and organisations in Hong Kong can be considered as the Club’s stakeholders.
The major stakeholder groups include the Club’s customers, members, employees,
Government departments, local community bodies, the Legislative Council, District Councils
and the media. It also has extensive relationships with various governmental and non-
governmental bodies through its charity and community work.

Internationally the Club has relationships with overseas wagering operators and racing
organisations as part of its commingling and World Pool business development. It also
maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership of the International
Federation of Horseracing Authorities (Chair), the Asian Racing Federation (Chairman) and
the International Horse Sports Confederation (President), amongst others. The Club hosts
the Secretariat for both the Asian Racing Federation and its Council on Anti-lllegal Betting
and Related Financial Crime. Through participation in these bodies, the Club is able to
shape international standards, policies and protocols for the benefit of the industry and in
support of its own business development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

This year saw the Club transition from the pandemic to the post-pandemic environment
in line with the gradual easing of public health measures. The LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races in December, though still with some restrictions in place and with the
Club’s international “racing bubble” in force, saw its largest attendance in three years. More
importantly, the Club was able to welcome the international racing community back to Hong
Kong. But racing really got into its stride at the Chinese New Year race meeting, with over
80,000 fans on course, signifying to the world that Hong Kong was well and truly back.

Thanks to the resilience of the Club’s operations and the support of Hong Kong and
Mainland authorities, the Club was able to maintain its world-class racing throughout the
pandemic. This was reflected in the world rankings, where ten of the Club’s 12 Group 1
races — two more than in 2021 — were listed in the 2022 LONGINES World’s Top 100 Group/
Grade 1 Races, while 15 Hong Kong-trained horses featured in the 2022 LONGINES World’s
Best Racehorse Rankings.
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To sustain the quality of racing, the Club introduced a number of measures this season to
support owners and to promote horse ownership. Additionally prize money, which increased
by an unprecedented 11% this season, will rise a further 8.0% next season to HK$1.73
billion, with Hong Kong continuing to offer some of the best prize money in world racing.

The Club also continues to invest in the quality of training provided to Hong Kong horses.
Conghua Racecourse in Guangzhou entered its fifth year of operation and is now firmly
established as a premier facility for the stabling, training and rehabilitation of horses.
Conghua is now being expanded as part of its Phase 2 development, while stable facilities
at Sha Tin Racecourse will commence renovation in the 2023/24 season.

Internationally, in addition to welcoming top overseas horses for the LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races and FWD Champions Day, Hong Kong horses once again competed
overseas, with Russian Emperor being the first runner from the city since 2019 to claim an
overseas victory by winning the H.H. The Amir Trophy in Doha.

Above all, Hong Kong continued to expand its global brand through commingling, with
overseas fans in 26 countries and jurisdictions wagering a record HK$25.4 billion on Hong
Kong racing, comprising 19.6% of local racing wagering turnover for the season.

Through the World Pool the Club is now transforming Hong Kong into a global hub for
wagering on the best of world racing. In all there were 24 World Pool meetings this year,
up from 21 in 2021/22, including, for the first time, races from Australia, Saudi Arabia and
Germany. Commingling turnover into the World Pool was up 23.2% on last season.

A key driver of the World Pool is simulcasting, with Hong Kong fans able, for a second
year, to enjoy more of the world’s best racing, especially during the summer months.
This included racing festivals in the United Kingdom, France, Australia, North America,
South Africa, Japan, Korea and, for the first time, from Saudi Arabia and Germany. Overall
turnover on simulcasting (including World Pool commingling) for the season was up 12.5%
to HK$11.8 billion.

Total racing wagering turnover for the year was HK$140.4 billion and for the season up 0.5%
to HK$141.1 billion.

Fundamental to the success of the Club’s wagering during and after the pandemic has been
the digital transformation of the customer experience, with all seven steps of the customer
journey now accessible via online and mobile channels. Currently around 90% of wagering
turnover and funds transfers are via digital platforms. This year racing fans were also able
to enjoy the new fixed odds Trainer Challenge, which complements the existing Jockey
Challenge.

The Club nonetheless continues to invest strongly in the live racing experience, not least
through its HK$7.1 billion Racecourse Master Plan. This year saw the opening of a new
and greatly expanded members’ car park at Sha Tin along with the renovated Owners Box
6/F (Section 3) and a new eSports zone for public racegoers. Just as importantly, with the
ending of pandemic restrictions the Club revived and refreshed the hugely popular Happy
Wednesday racing parties at Happy Valley, while marquee events returned to Sha Tin to
accompany major racedays.
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The Club is also rethinking its retail offering, launching a series of experience-based Off-
Course Betting Branches (OCBBs) offering a race-dine-play integrated experience. This year
two more new-look OCBBs opened at Kwun Tong Plaza and Kwai Chung Wing Fong Road,
taking the total to five.

In support of national development, the Club is seeking to make a significant contribution to
the development of a world-class equine industry in the Mainland. Here, the National Equine
Industry Development Plan (2020-2025) jointly published by the Ministry of Agriculture and
Rural Affairs and the General Administration of Sport has laid a strong foundation, giving
prominent coverage to both equestrian sport and horse racing as a sport.

The main focus of the Club’s efforts is the Greater Bay Area and in particular its Conghua
Racecourse in Guangzhou, which is the Mainland’s first world-class racecourse and
thoroughbred training centre. In 2021, the Club signed a Framework Cooperation
Agreement with the Guangzhou Municipal Government to jointly develop the Guangzhou-
Hong Kong Racing Economic Cluster. In line with this agreement preparations are underway
for the commencement of racing at Conghua in 2026, with work in progress to construct a
grandstand and to expand stabling facilities. In a strengthening of relationships, the Club
this year agreed with the Guangdong and Guangzhou sports bureaus to further promote the
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong and Guangzhou-Hong Kong sports industries,
including equine sports and equine industry talent development.

To further support the equine industry in the Mainland, the Club this year signed a
supplemental agreement with the Chinese Equestrian Association to take forward the
co-operation which began in 2020 and which aims to jointly promote and support the
development of speed racing and the equestrian industry in the Mainland.

Having supported the equestrian events of the 2008 Beijing Olympics and the 2010
Guangzhou Asian Games, the Club is also providing technical support for the equestrian
events of the 19th Asian Games Hangzhou. To carry forward the legacy, the Club has signed
an agreement with the Hangzhou Municipal Government to explore further opportunities to
develop equestrian sport in Hangzhou.

The Club has been providing football betting since 2003, when it was authorised by the
HKSAR Government to provide a service to combat illegal and unauthorised gambling on
the sport. Since then the Club has become one of the world’s largest and most successful
football betting operators, generating substantial tax and charity returns for the community.

This year, football wagering turnover was up 9.1% to HK$156.9 billion, with the key drivers
being increased supply of live football matches and the launch of new wagering products.

Starting from the HKSAR Government’s 2023/24 financial year, the Club is paying a Special
Football Betting Duty of HK$2.4 billion per year for five years. That is a total of HK$12
billion. Including the HK$600 million in Special Football Betting Duty for April-June 2023,
the Club’s total football betting duty to the Government in 2022/23 was HK$11.0 billion.

Given the exceptional circumstances of the last three years the Club fully understands the
HKSAR Government’s need for Special Football Betting Duty. Notwithstanding, the Trust
has committed to maintaining its regular charity donations at not less than HK$4.5 billion a
year over the five year duration of Special Football Betting Duty.
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In view of the very high rates of betting duty in Hong Kong, the Club is however very
concerned about any potential future increase in these rates. Such an increase would hand
a significant price advantage to illegal betting operators, who pay no tax and can hence
offer bettors a much higher return than the Club. lllegal operators are already earning profits
of at least HK$15 billion a year in Hong Kong. Increasing betting duty rates would see their
illegal profits rise still further, impacting not only the Club’s business but the sustainability
of its tax and charity support for Hong Kong.

As regards the Mark Six lottery, it continued its recovery from the pandemic, benefiting
in particular from the return to three draws per week, with turnover up 29.2% to HK$7.5
billion. However this is still below the pre-pandemic level of HK$8.4 billion achieved in
2018/19. Here it should be noted that the Mark Six continues to be impacted by the lack
of change in its game format, which has not altered significantly since the Mark Six was
launched.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is one of the world’s top ten charity donors.
This year it approved a total of HK$7.3 billion in donations — the second highest in its
history — with 247 charitable and community projects benefiting.

The Trust adopts a comprehensive approach to identify and address community needs.
Its Trust-initiated Projects (TIPs) support a wide range of beneficiaries, ranging from early
childhood development to end-of-life care, and tackling a spectrum of needs through cross-
sector collaboration. The most recent TIPs are JC VOLUNTEER TOGETHER, a five-year
project to promote citywide volunteerism, and a major initiative to develop primary care
community pharmacy services.

The majority of the Trust’s resources are focused on needle-moving initiatives, helping to
pioneer new approaches to community needs or to address unmet demand. This year, for
example, saw content from two of its projects — CoolThink@JC and the CUHK Jockey Club
Al for the Future Project — taken up by the Education Bureau for use in the primary and
secondary school curriculum.

To better reflect Hong Kong’s changing needs, the Trust has recently refreshed its strategy
to focus on five strategic pillars — Positive Ageing and Elderly Care; Children and Youth
Development; Healthy Community; Talent and Sector Development; and Sports and Culture.
Going forward, sustainability will be incubated as a new theme.

Additionally, the Trust has refreshed its stakeholder engagement strategy, removing barriers
for smaller NGOs and allowing for a broader spectrum of agencies and for sector capacity
building. In parallel, a robust and tailored impact measurement methodology is being
developed.

Last year the Trust approved a HK$630 million donation to the HKSAR Government in
support of community events marking 25 years of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. These events have continued into the current year, highlights being two heritage
exhibitions as part of the HKJC Series, the “Creative Tomorrow” arts tech festival, the
Greater Bay Area Built Heritage Summit, support for the 2022 Hong Kong Masters snooker
tournament, and community programmes at the 2022 Hong Kong Sevens.
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In support of Hong Kong-Mainland relations, this year the Club signed collaboration
agreements with the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (CLO) and with the Office of the Commissioner of the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (OCMFA). Through its
two agreements with the CLO, the Club will take forward a collaborative relationship which
dates back to 2014. The Club will sponsor the CLO to organise sports, cultural and arts
exchange activities for Hong Kong youth, as well as innovation and technology-related
internship programmes. The Club will also support the CLO to run development programmes
aimed at nurturing Hong Kong’s cultural and arts talent and developing arts management
executives. With respect to the OCMFA, the Club will expand its support for the Hong Kong
Cup Diplomatic Knowledge Contest under which student winners join Mainland study tours
organised by the OCMFA to promote their understanding of international relations and
national development.

For the Club’s members, the relaxation of pandemic restrictions enabled them to once
again enjoy the full range of clubhouse and racecourse facilities. Indeed, The Hilltop in The
Valley now has more to offer members than at any time, with Happy Valley New Clubhouse
fully operational and renovations at the Old Clubhouse completed. Other milestones this
year included the 30th anniversary of the Old Clubhouse and the 15th anniversary of Beijing
Clubhouse.

Members, especially horse owning members, are integral to the Club’s success. To better
serve their needs, the Club is reimagining the membership experience to elevate the quality
of experiences, products and services. Through racing seminars and webinars and a series
of “Ignite Your Racing Passion” themed dinners it is also seeking to engage newer members
and to build interest in horse ownership.

With regard to sustainability, the Club deepened its commitment this year with the aim
of strengthening its positive impact in society. The Club is developing a comprehensive
sustainability strategy to further embed integrated thinking and responsibilities into the
core of its operational capacities with respect to the environment, society and responsible
business.

With the Club’s operations returning to normal as the pandemic receded, carbon emissions
in Hong Kong increased by 6% year on year to 98,513 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(COz-e) and in the Mainland by 3% to 20,331 tonnes of CO,-e. Nonetheless, at 118,844
tonnes of CO,-e, overall carbon emissions (Hong Kong and Mainland) are 5% below the
125,629 tonnes of CO,-e recorded in the Club’s baseline year of 2009/10. This is despite a
considerable expansion of the Club’s operations during this period, including the opening
of Conghua Racecourse and Happy Valley New Clubhouse, and reflects the success of
the Club’s energy-saving and emission-reduction projects, coupled with the reduction in
carbon intensity by Hong Kong electricity providers. The Club fully supports the HKSAR
Government’s target of achieving carbon neutrality by 2050.

This year the Club continued to invest in renewable energy by installing solar photovoltaic
panels at selected facilities in Hong Kong. When complete in 2026, the initiative will
generate up to 5 million kWh of renewable energy per year. The Club will also install
significant solar capacity at Conghua Racecourse, with the new grandstand and multi-level
car park specifically designed to maximise the generation of solar energy. Meanwhile, it is
upgrading the floodlighting systems at its Hong Kong racecourses, adopting more energy-
efficient LED technology.

Water and resource management are other important elements of the Club’s sustainability
strategy. An initiative to mix harvested and municipal water at Happy Valley Racecourse
became operational in May, with the harvested water meeting up to 25% of track irrigation
needs. At Conghua Racecourse about 39% of water used was recycled water. In terms
of stables waste, which accounts for 80% of the Club’s waste sent to landfill, the Club is
working towards treating all of its stable waste and turning it into a reusable product.
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The Club promotes sustainability in the community, including through the work of the Trust.
Most recently this includes the renovation of WWF-Hong Kong’s Peter Scott Field Studies
Centre at Mai Po Nature Reserve.

The Club is authorised by the HKSAR Government to provide betting services on horse
racing and football and to manage the Mark Six lottery on its behalf. In doing so, the Club
provides a regulated channel to meet gambling demand, and works with the Government to
promote responsible gambling and to protect the public from the dangers of credit betting,
illegal gambling and associated crimes.

In line with this, the Club has established an extensive range of measures under its
Responsible Gambling Policy. These measures are constantly refined and developed.
For example, the Club was especially vigilant before and during the 2022 World Cup,
disseminating responsible gambling messages across a wide range of platforms.

Though the percentage of problem gamblers in Hong Kong is relatively small, the Club
is fully committed to supporting the Ping Wo Fund, a government-managed fund which
supports research, education and professional services addressing gambling related social
issues. As of mid-2023, the Club had contributed a total of HK$541 million to the Fund.

In addition, the Club initiates its own responsible gambling programmes, with a particular
focus on young people. Most recently these have included the Positive and Healthy Youth
Development Programme, implemented in partnership with the Vocational Training Council
and Hong Kong Children and Youth Services, and Fatina’s Healthy and Positive Lifestyle
School Education Programme, implemented together with the School Heads Associations
and the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Youth and Family Unit.

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is widely recognised. In 2011, it was granted
Level 4 accreditation, the highest possible, under the Responsible Gaming Framework of
the World Lottery Association. In 2021, this was extended for the fourth consecutive period.
The Club is the first operator in Asia to achieve this accreditation four times in succession.

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being used for money laundering
and has an Anti-money Laundering Policy and Framework, which makes reference to the
internationally recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and industry best
practice.

For the Club’s employees, the gradual relaxation of pandemic health measures enabled
them to return to normal work operations. The Club nonetheless continues to encourage
employees to get vaccinated and assists them through its employee vaccination support
programme.

Building on the experience of the pandemic, the Club has maintained its new normal work
arrangements, providing employees with greater flexibility to balance work and personal life.
The additional mental health support offered during the pandemic has also been expanded
to cover employee dependents.

With the post-pandemic environment intensifying the war for talent, the Club has continued
to reinforce its position as an employer of choice. Through targeted and localised
recruitment initiatives, combined with an enhanced onboarding and integration experience,
it has maintained a stable workforce, with over 1,400 full-time employees and 4,200 part-
time employees joining the Club during the year.

To build the leadership capability and professional skills of employees, the Club updated
and launched new learning and development offerings this year. These included the updated
Leadership Development Programme 2.0 and the new Individual Contributor Programme
for senior staff grade employees. The People Management Excellence Programme was also
extended to Mainland teams.
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The Club’s Corporate Wellness Programme offers a variety of opportunities for employees
to build wellness and develop healthy lifestyles. The Club’s Occupational Safety and
Health (OSH) management system, under the direction of its Corporate Safety Steering
Committee, regularly reviews policies and practices. In addition, employees receive OSH
training as necessary. This year the Corporate OSH Management Manual was updated to
cover regulatory changes and operational needs and a Near Miss Policy and Procedures
introduced to identify and address hazards before they occur.

The Club actively encourages employees to engage in volunteer work, providing related
training as well as paid volunteering leave. Employees also have the opportunity to
contribute through the Club’s CARE@hkjc employee volunteer team, which over the
years has worked with community partners to help the elderly, young people, people with
intellectual disabilities, ethnic minorities, as well as to promote animal welfare. This year it
launched programmes to promote parent-child interactions in underprivileged families and
to help families with special educational needs children. The team’s efforts were honoured
with an Outstanding Corporate & Non-Commercial Organization award and a Top 10
Highest Volunteer Hours (Corporate & Non-Commercial Organization) award at the Hong
Kong Volunteer Award 2022.

The Club is strongly committed to providing equal employment opportunities and to
ensuring that the workplace is free of discrimination, harassment and victimisation. All
employees receive a copy of the Club’s Code of Conduct, which provides guidance
on workplace behaviour and ethics. It also has an anti-bribery policy aligned with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. As appropriate, staff receive training in information
security, data privacy, anti-corruption and anti-discrimination measures.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group’s total revenue increased from HK$46,179 million in 2021/22 to HK$48,730
million this financial year, representing growth of 5.5%. This was mainly attributable to
higher betting income from football and lottery, as well as increased income from catering.
Net margin and commission was HK$15,281 million, slightly above 2021/22.

Operating costs were HK$14,465 million, HK$1,077 million or 8.0% higher than last financial
year, primarily driven by increased staff costs, prize money, as well as utilities expenses.

Nevertheless, the Group continued to invest substantially in operating assets and new
technology platforms with a view to meeting future customer demand and improving asset
health. During the financial year, the Group’s total capital expenditure was HK$4,167 million.

GROUP REVENUE AND OPERATING COSTS (HK$M)
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The Group’s operating surplus after taxation, before donations to the Trust and investment
returns for the year, was HK$5,189 million, HK$319 million or 5.8% lower than last year,
mainly attributable to higher operating costs and the Special Football Betting Duty of
HK$600 million for April to June 2023.

The Group continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments
(comprising betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$27,497 million in 2022/23. This
was equivalent to 7.6% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department in
the year of assessment 2022/23. Due to higher football betting duty and lottery duty, the
Group’s total tax contributions during the financial year increased by HK$1,359 million or
5.2% from last year.

TAX CONTRIBUTION (HK$M)
PR (BEET)
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The Group has adopted operating surplus after taxation for determining its donations
to the Trust. During 2022/23, the Group approved HK$4,603 million in donations to the
Trust, which represented 89% of the Group’s operating surplus after taxation and before
investment returns during the year.

The Group’s net surplus after taxation, donations to the Trust and investment returns was
HK$2,843 million, HK$3,000 million higher than last financial year. This was mainly due to
an increase in investment returns, which recorded a mark-to-market loss of HK$725 million
in the last financial year and a gain of HK$2,259 million in the current financial year.

INVESTMENTS

The Club maintains healthy financial reserves to support its diverse operations and
charitable contributions to the community. These reserves are managed by the Club in an
investment portfolio (“the Fund”) with the overall objective of preserving purchasing power
and, to the extent this is achieved, cause the principal to grow in value over time within
reasonable and prudent levels of risk.

The Fund is invested with a long-term investment horizon, diversified across different
geographic regions and asset classes, and managed by external fund managers. The Fund
is managed under a robust governance framework. The Investment Committee, reporting
to the Board of Stewards, has oversight responsibilities for the Fund and approves all
policies and strategies related to it. Management of the Fund is carried out by a dedicated
Investment Office staffed with experienced investment professionals. A separate Investment
Risk Department serves as a second line of defence, conducting independent oversight of
the Club’s investment activities.
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Markets continued to be volatile over the course of this financial year as major central banks
further tightened monetary conditions to contain inflation, which not only began to slow the
economy but indirectly led to a number of bank failures and sent shockwaves through the
financial system. The removal of COVID controls in China brought some initial optimism
but soon tapered, with economic recovery remaining uneven across sectors. Meanwhile,
the Russia-Ukraine war passed its one-year mark while global geopolitical tensions remain
elevated.

In response to the above, the Club has maintained a relatively conservative risk posture.
The Fund performed resiliently and recorded a gain of HK$2,259 million in the current
financial year, which more than offset the HK$725 million mark-to-market loss in the
previous financial year.

The prudent approach of a well-diversified portfolio and adhering to the discipline of long-
term investing has served the Club well over time and should enable the Fund to weather
future episodes of stress to grow capital over the long term, thereby protecting the Fund’s
purchasing power. During the year, substantial liquidity was raised from the Fund to meet
upcoming capital needs for the Club’s operations and charities commitments while physical
gold was added for diversification, especially in the face of geopolitical uncertainties.

The Club continues to monitor carbon emissions of the Fund’s public equities investments
in line with the global movement to increase climate risk mitigation efforts. As at 31
December 2021, the carbon footprint of the Fund’s public equities investments was 76
tonnes of CO,-e emissions per US$1 million invested, which is 26% less than the carbon
footprint of the Club’s public equities benchmark. The figure is similar to the carbon
footprint of the Fund’s public equities portfolio of 75 tonnes of CO,-e as at 31 December
2020 and materially less than the 126 and 136 tonnes of CO,-e as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018 respectively. Going forward, the Club aims to collect and analyse
the carbon footprint data for the other asset classes in its portfolio with a view to obtaining
a more comprehensive overview.

ESG Data Disclosure

Carbon emissions data refer to Scope 1 and Scope 2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions
sourced from MSCI ESG Research with portfolio coverage of 94% (2021), 94% (2020), 95%
(2019) and 87% (2018) which includes both actual company reported and MSCI estimated
figures. All the data has been updated to reflect the latest available information as of 31
May 2023.

This disclosure was developed using certain information from ©2023 MSCI ESG Research
LLC or its affiliates or information providers and reproduced by permission. Although The
Hong Kong Jockey Club’s information providers, including without limitation, MSCI ESG
Research LLC and its affiliates (the “ESG Parties”), obtain information (the “Information”)
from sources they consider reliable, none of the ESG Parties warrants or guarantees the
originality, accuracy and/or completeness, of any data herein and expressly disclaim all
express or implied warranties, including those of merchantability and fitness for a particular
purpose. The Information may only be used for your internal use, may not be reproduced
or redisseminated in any form and may not be used as a basis for, or a component of, any
financial instruments or products or indices. Further, none of the Information can in and of
itself be used to determine which securities to buy or sell or when to buy or sell them. None
of the ESG Parties shall have any liability for any errors or omissions in connection with any
data herein, or any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages.
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REPORT OF THE STEWARDS
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse
racing in Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football
and lotteries, and in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 18. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group approved donations of HK$4,603 million to The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$276 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in
the Board of Stewards section.

Mr Michael T H Lee and Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung were elected as Chairman and Deputy
Chairman respectively immediately after the Club’s 2022 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
held on 8 September 2022 (the “2022 AGM”).

Miss Anita Fung Yuen Mei, Mr Jackson Woo Ka Biu and Mrs Ann Kung Yeung Yun Chi
were elected as Stewards on 8 September 2022 to fill the respective vacancies left by Dr
Rosanna Wong Yick Ming who retired as a Steward on 15 August 2022, Mr Philip N L Chen
who did not seek re-election as a Steward at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM, and Mr
Richard Tang Yat Sun who resigned as a Steward at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM.

Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung retired as a Steward and the Deputy Chairman on 23 May 2023 upon
reaching the age of 70 and his vacancy will be filled by election at the forthcoming AGM to
be held on 5 September 2023 (the “2023 AGM”). The Hon Martin Liao was elected as the
Deputy Chairman in place of Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung on 23 May 2023.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Lester G Huang, The Hon Bernard
Charnwut Chan and Miss Anita Fung Yuen Mei will retire by rotation at the 2023 AGM. All
three Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the
Club’s business to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 11, and is part of the Report of the
Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 69.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the 2023 AGM.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is
signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Michael T H Lee
Chairman
26 July 2023
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 18 to 69, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Stewards either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s interal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board of Stewards, regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong,
26 July 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mElER

BE6H30HLFE for the year ended 30 June
BT in HK$ million MizE Note 2023 2022
iR R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 278,470 264,483
EASEX NN THEE Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the
Club’s pools 26,329 25,561
ROTHEE Total amounts wagered 2.2 304,799 290,044
BEREFRA Betting and lottery revenue 4 43,600 41,808
ﬁ UBRBHEER Betting and lottery duty (26,958) (25,442)
T M B AR Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (227) (209)
ﬁ#%ﬁ Lotteries Fund (1,134) (877)
HARFE Net margin and commission 4 15,281 15,280
HA Other revenue 5 5,130 4,371
20,411 19,651
RERA Operating costs 6 (14,465) (13,388)
MBRFLIEA] » *“l'ﬁé?ﬁ%'f_‘_ RER Operating surplus before taxation, donations to the
RERRATHNLE BER Trust and investment returns 5,946 6,263
BEFEEESNRERE Present value of donations to the Trust 8 (4,605) (4,940)
HBRBBRETESREANCERE Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 1,341 1,323
FRF B Interest income from deposits 16 488 137
RERTESMITERR Surplus from investments and derivatives 16 37 185
ERAESRENR Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 16 1,355 1,790
KRB mER Surplus from commodities 16 54 -
FHBRER Net exchange difference 16 (654) (152)
BBEA Finance costs 21 (10) (5)
2,611 3,278
b & & ATER (EE) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 13, 16 986 (2,682)
HIBRFLIE AT B B B8R Surplus before taxation 3,597 596
iiE Taxation 7 (754) (753)
MBI BHFERLG S (EB) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,843 (157)
EEPEL R  BRIBFEIESTERIREEMRM  Summary of the Group’s operating surplus, donations to the Trust and investment returns
=
BE6H30HLFE for the year ended 30 June
BT in HK$ million 2023 2022
MBRFIEA] « REBIBFEEESRER Operating surplus before taxation, donations to the
RE B RATHRE BER Trust and investment returns 5,946 6,263
HREMBEA RN EER Finance costs net of other incomes (3) )
iE Taxation (754) (753)
HNBRBERENARGTRBFETESRER Operating surplus after taxation and before
K& B RAT LSRR donations to the Trust and investment returns 5,189 5,508
BIBFEEESWIEERA Present value of donations to the Trust (4,605) (4,940)
?I]F??RE%H“I‘)KENE%VT%% REER Operating surplus after taxation and donations to
RETREERA WL E B the Trust, before investment returns 584 568
(] Investment returns
FHEEEATER(ER) (k) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures (Note i) 983 (2,685)
Hihig& (pkii) Other investments (Note ii) 1,276 1,960
REEH Investment returns 2,259 (725)
REANFERE () Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,843 (157)

EEBB T EEESNFR T BZERNIBRBIR R AT
REOBATNKERBER o

MiEE SR A RER (BB aEEREESE

BENREREFRETHTEER ?Eééﬂﬂ %QE’J
BHERRE - KERTESEQARNMENERNTE

HEA-

Mz HhREREREASERE REFH K
REmMNERR FHIAEE

The Group’s donations to the Trust is primarily based on the operating surplus after taxation

and before investment returns.

Note i: Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures comprises the Group’s share of return
from investments in equities and bonds held in a Fund invested only by the Club’s affiliated
entities. Profit shared from the Group’s joint ventures in China is excluded.

Note ii: Other investments include returns from investments in alternative investments, cash

deposits, commodities and net exchange difference.

H23EZEGOEMNMEFBAGEMBEREN —H2
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The notes on pages 23 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AeEZHEWEER

BZ6HA30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2023 2022
REANTFERE (FE) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,843 (157)
Hih2m (F518) Wi Other comprehensive (loss)/income
FEEHIBERARGRWIEES Items that will not be reclassified to
income statement
BBMEENEENERSTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 25 140 160
HETWRENIBRARGERNER Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement
EWHRERE Currency translation differences 25 (217) (77)
AEERBENEMZE (BE) WE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
net of tax (77) 83
AEEZAWE (EE) 458 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2,766 (74)
H23EZEGOBEMMEBAGEMBREN—B - The notes on pages 23 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

A6 H30H at 30 June
BEET in HK$ million M3F Note 2023 2022
FREEE Non-current assets
M - REREM Property, plant and equipment 10 15,009 14,244
REYFE Investment properties 11 17 18
BLEE Intangible assets 12 4,207 3,500
EENERE Investments in joint ventures 13 19,771 25,480
ERESRKRE Contingency Fund investments 14 17,184 16,278
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 15 807 2,079
RoRE Commodities 718 -
REIFEAFUE R EWGRIE Long-term prepayments and receivables 17 68 126
BEEFEHERE Deferred income tax assets 18 12 9
REBAGE Defined benefit scheme 24 386 279
58,179 62,013
RBEE Current assets
RERITESRMI A Investments and derivatives 15 1 1
S hEMEWRFIE Trade and other receivables 19 695 598
Ht &= Other current assets 19 528 601
EHATERR Short-term deposits 20 10,922 6,910
ReERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 9,590 6,581
21,736 14,691
BEE Current liabilities
EH\HE%’\ Short-term loans 21 (10) -
g %&,H{MEHEETA Trade and other payables 22,30.2 (12,434) (11,637)
FEUFRIE Receipts in advance 23 (387) (467)
ZRERFT1S *REJE Current income tax liabilities (599) (1,009)
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 15 (1) -
HEas Lease liabilities (79) (71)
(13,510) (13,184)
RBEEFE Net current assets 8,226 1,507
E15 =R Non-current liabilities
EEFBHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (1,066) (861)
HEAE Lease liabilities (172) (136)
Hfth FE AT BR X Other payables 30.2 (456) (578)
(1,694) (1,575)
64,711 61,945
& Reserves 25 28,066 24,607
BRES Contingency Fund 26 36,645 37,338
EmEE Total equity 64,711 61,945
EES Michael T H Lee
FMFE Martin Liao
BRI Stewards

F23EE69EMNKHITBAGAMBHRERN
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The notes on pages 23 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HRES

% Contingency FELE
BEER in HK$ million Reserves Fund Total
2022F7 A1 B8k Balance at 1 July 2022 24,607 37,338 61,945
MRELZNFRERR Net surplus after taxation 2,843 - 2,843
AEERBENEMEEESE Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (77) - (77)
AEEEEKREZAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 27,373 37,338 64,711
i Transfers 693 (693) -
202346 B30 H &R Balance at 30 June 2023 28,066 36,645 64,711
20215781 B8k Balance at 1 July 2021 24,272 37,747 62,019
MBI B FEEEE Net deficit after taxation (157) - (157)
AEERBENEMEEEE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 83 - 83
AEEZHRABRE Total comprehensive income for the year 24,198 37,747 61,945
B Transfers 409 (409) -
2022%6 530 H &tk Balance at 30 June 2022 24,607 37,338 61,945

B23HZ6IEMNMEBAGSUBHMRN—HD -

The notes on pages 23 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A A~ —1
mERERER
BZ6HA30BLEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2023 2022
SRR Operating activities
EETHMEENERES Cash generated from operations 27.1 4,441 2,689
[EERIZIEEE Income tax paid (990) (382)
EETHMELENERS Net cash generated from operating activities 3,451 2,307
REEH Investing activities
ZH B B3E A L LM EBERR GEm) R (Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months (4,012) 1,710
BEYE RERSEM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,695) (2,051)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,289) (924)
HEWE  RERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment - 2
2 WELFIE Interest received 411 130
HEENRMEEE Injection into joint ventures (393) (3,729)
&% AR EE Redemption from joint ventures 7,114 4,093
BERATEEEBERIIENITTERE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (3,211) (8,097)
HERATVEEEBERIIRNUKERE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 4,862 2,936
BEARE® Purchase of commodities (664) -
REZBELE(FIA)WERS Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 123 (930)
REED Financing activities
EXFRE Interest paid (10) (5)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings - (24)
BEMERIE Proceed from borrowings 10 -
HE2NAREBH Principal element of lease payments (78) (94)
RETBMANFERE Net cash used in financing activities (78) (123)
RERBEEEYFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,496 1,254
FURERRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 6,581 5,430
HRER Exchange difference (487) (103)
FERERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,590 6,581
ReRASEEBWEFTIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
EHATE R Short-term deposits 20 7,932 4,625
RITERRES Bank balances and cash 20 1,658 1,956
9,590 6,581

B23HE6IEMNMEBALZSUHMRN—MD -
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The notes on pages 23 to 69 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong
and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong
Kong with liability limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports
Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out on page 69.

The last five race meetings of the 2021/22 racing season were held on 1st, 6th, 10th, 13th
and 16th July 2022 (“July 2022 race meetings”) and the Hong Kong International Sale of
the 2021/22 racing season was held on 9th July 2022 (“July 2022 HKIS”). The last six race
meetings of the 2022/23 racing season were held on 1st, 3rd, 6th, 9th, 12th and 16th July
2023 (“July 2023 race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of the July 2022 race
meetings have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2023. The financial results of the July 2023 race meetings and any simulcast days held
after 30 June 2023 will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 30 June 2024.

The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2021/22 and 2022/23 racing seasons
are shown on page 70. The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2022/23
racing season exclude the results of any simulcast days after the last local race meeting of
the season on 16 July 2023.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 18 to 69 were approved by the Board of
Stewards on 26 July 2023.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the financial assets, financial liabilities and commodities at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Group’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

No amendments to Financial Reporting Standards relevant to the Group’s operations were
effective for the current accounting period.

(b) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Group’s operations but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted

The following amendments to Financial Reporting Standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2023.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to Financial Reporting
Standards will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments to Financial Reporting Standards will have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.2 Amounts wagered

The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered by local customers and
amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools.

2023
E5EY EHIEE
HZEZ6H30HILLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football %% HER
BEER in HK$ million betting* betting Lottery Total
iR IR Amounts wagered by local customers 114,034 156,876 7,560 278,470
EASEXMMERM IR Amounts of non-local bets
commingled with the Club’s pools 26,329 - - 26,329
140,363 156,876 7,560 304,799
2022
BEEHEY BIRIEE
BZ6H30BLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football i35 s
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR R E4EE Amounts wagered by local customers 114,835 143,798 5,850 264,483
EASEX NN THEE Amounts of non-local bets
commingled with the Club’s pools 25,561 - - 25,561
140,396 143,798 5,850 290,044

* EEHHE 87 (2022: 88)

2.3 BEREZFWA

EEE-—UHAEEERESEHEENFRERE
B HIMERA - KESFEAERUNBERIRITAHE
HMEREREANMRSREBIBRNEE - FLHER
FOTRBEBRR RS RANHE R4 -

*  Number of race meetings: 87 (2022: 88)

2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities
as revenue, which are the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends,
rebates and lottery prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and

betting and lottery revenue is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, up to 30 June 2023,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method. In the Club’s statement of financial position, the
equity method of accounting is used, which is consistent with the accounting policy of the
Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.5 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income
from betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either
for the Club or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the
Club’s substantial investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special
purposes as deemed appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund comprises the
Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: Investment
Trust) and funds awaiting investment, which consist of short-term deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables. The Contingency Fund is adjusted annually through the
receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and,
when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund’s investments are held for non-trading purposes, irrespective of
whether they are classified as current or non-current. They are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from the Contingency Fund investments is
reinvested and the deficit is absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund’s investments is stated in note 2.7.

2.6

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the Investment Trust) are held for non-
trading purposes, irrespective of whether they are classified as current or non-current. They
are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from these
investments is reinvested and the deficit is absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives is stated in note 2.7.

Investments and derivatives

2.7 Financial assets
(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or (i) financial assets at amortised cost. The financial assets
include Contingency Fund investments and other investments and derivatives.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets
to collect the contractual cash flows, and not to both hold the financial assets to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets. All equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds,
private real estate funds and private credit funds.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its financial risks and to facilitate

the implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current
as they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.7 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Classification (cont.)

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

For financial assets that the Group holds in order to collect contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates,
these are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are expected to be settled or if they have maturities
within 12 months; otherwise they are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, deposits, short-
term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include bank
balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed with banks for a
fixed term of more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial
assets that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including
dividend income and interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This
information is shown under surplus/deficit from investments and derivatives or surplus/
deficit from Contingency Fund investments.

For financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their
fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund
managers using valuation techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.



2 FESFHE(#)

2.7 BBEE (&)

(c) MBEERE

() #ATEEEBAETRONSEE

D B 1R 28 5RO B T A T R -

(i) ABMERRIRNWHBEE

RESBVBEREENFIRMANBAEEBER
E - REWBAERERTE -

EREWRESENTH  SERRALBEAERNY
AR O REUERFRAEEEEBEETML -

HiPBEE  8FFR B8N URRERR
EEEY  UFEAGETRARFNTBEE - KER
AUEXZGHFNERREBER  IAHEFHEEENU
XAEHRER  MEERBRTER - REEHEN12
BANEFEEBEETE -

EESWE-EHYBEENFERR  BYSEAR
BEKRREM - RTRERENEE - 5 —HUHKE
ENEAESNRSACBH0ARNL  EEERZ
HYBEENEERR  BNIHERBEC KEEM -
E-EMBEETATRERYE - AIRAEERE -

FERBNE ESEAINRGEEEREEAME
B BE-REBR  BENERERE  SEANMG
B BRAREREENEERBNBERSE - AR
REEBENBEBFELOER  SHEAFRAETE
BEBXR12EAEMEEEE -

EESEBREFEETFRE  EXNWBIES
A -R—UMERFERE  MEBRBAFCE
TR BHEERKEHE - SAEHEMEZKRE KK
o BHNBERERANZHIER -

SENERYBEENREB BT ERETEERRE
TEZEREAEMAEDNATEMEER  8FUT
B (XRBEFNIIREEFRARATHRNNR
2 (b)¥EK  UBEAKERABEBRRBEAHREKX
PE UHHMESSCEBAEEREBNEIEREANR
2 RCOBBEBANKRRRITAEREADRE - &
BEAREXENE -

EERARUESRINEAFRABTEERSE
URHMHBEEN12EA BT EERE  HEBE
e

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.7 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9 on the
reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the
credit risk of a financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any
contractual cash flows from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more.
When a financial asset is unlikely to be recovered it is considered credit-impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent
period, an asset’s quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant
increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from
lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off reduce the amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Group measures ECL using the historical loss of the respective financial assets
and considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available,
including the following indicators: (a) the counterparty’s external credit rating and its
expected change; (b) actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the
other financial assets as minimal.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land under finance leases are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

over the lease term

25 to 40 years

3 to 15 years

no depreciation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner
intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to the appropriate
property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets

Buildings

Plant and equipment
Projects in progress

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.21).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the year in which they are
incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.9 Leases

Leases of land and buildings in which the Group acts as the lessee are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of initial measurement
of lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and restoration costs.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Leases (cont.)

Lease payments are allocated between the principal and interest expense. The interest
expense is charged to profit or loss over the lease period based on the remaining balance
of lease liability for each period.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group.
Extension options or periods after termination options are only included in the lease term if
the lease is reasonably certain to be extended or not terminated.

2.10Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or capital appreciation or both, and
that are not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction
costs, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. They are depreciated on a straight-line basis, with their cost allocated to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.11Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical
cost less accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation
is provided on projects in progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.13 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise
from employee benefits, depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment
properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will be reversed in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.14Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from translation at the year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;
- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.15Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Receipts in advance

Receipts in advance represent the contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
A contract liability is recognised when the cash that is prepaid by members on membership
subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees, horse imports and pre-sales amounts
exceeds the performance obligations fulfilled, including the rendering of betting or relevant
services.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net
of betting dividends and rebates and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting
service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered by customers net of betting
dividends and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been
rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents amounts wagered by customers net of prizes and is
recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.
Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of
election of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.
Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised
at the time when the event is held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services and the sale of souvenir items is
recognised at the time when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods
have been sold.

Revenue from the sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from stable and livery service charges and risk management service fees is
recognised over the time when the relevant service has been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised at the time
when the relevant service has been rendered.



2 FESFBGR(E)
2.18 EETAH
(a) REEFIE

AEBAHBAESIREEMERN  UREENSER
FoE o

EHREUBRARARAERANFEEINEGE - U
ERMRAERFF IR BEEENRERTIEE
MAFEESE RERMNFERAEEESFH—
FBURBREMUEEVERETE - RERATE
FAEEENRE  UEFRRANTRENRER
HE MARRASZHREEBERASSREESE
HBFESZTSEREEE o

REERREFHARKRERMSIBNBEERERE
B RAZRPEMEEREERET -

(b) RE#atE

FERREMRRTEFMENEIHR  SREBER
FRECWERAERREIRSL  LERKRESR
RAEZHREHRARHT M AREIE AR -
EEFEHMARE  IBEMREE -

(c) BALR B F 1R

SEERTEARRAERIH - HIEAYRENER
FERBAEFAMELETEMS  IEBSHITCAE
B EETZANFRENES TEERFER - £F
ERESFEE2RBREMBEHBRBE M ELNFR
EH T REEE -

2.19 X

BREARZERRN  YTRERCRHTIBALERE
2% HAREE  RETERENEER TS
E8 - TREEHERRL

A RRREMIANBR - REFT AR I HEN
REUERFSELRK -

2.20 EREAL

RELGREUBRERAME  EEEARIEERBE
BES-F RUHE-INHEREERRAERE

HED IRZTA AEEAES - S HER
RS —FADRAEREAL -FHEEALTR
BASRERE -

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.18 Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the
Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated
annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using market yields of government securities which have terms to maturity
approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs
in the consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for
the contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is
recognised where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.19Donation

A donation is charged to the income statement and recognised as a liability when the
donation has been offered to and accepted by the donee and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the legal and/or constructive obligation established.

Donations that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value of
expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.20Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related
parties may be individuals or entities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.21 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.22 Commodities

Commodities are measured at fair value through profit or loss under non-current assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value gain or loss is presented as
surplus from commodities in the consolidated income statement.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise
significant judgement in the selection and application of accounting principles, including
making estimates and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are
impacted by judgements and uncertainties, for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation
of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme
and actual usage experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the
straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their
estimated useful lives (notes 2.8 and 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in
a change in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in
future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuations of the
Group’s retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the
defined benefit element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors
including the long-term salary increase rate provided by the Club, as disclosed in note
24(d). In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the market yields
of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related pension obligation. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can affect the
present value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required to determine the income tax and deferred tax provision. The final
tax outcome may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group
recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such a determination is made.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets,
particularly in assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values;
(2) the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows from the asset using estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions adopted by management
to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Group’s reported
financial position and results of operations.

3.5 Estimation of fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation technique as detailed in note
31.3(d). The Group determines the fair values of these financial assets primarily based on
the net asset value of the funds and its interest held with reference to fund reports obtained
from fund managers and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of fair values is based on
management’s best estimates.

Where it is determined that the actual fair value is different from the estimated fair value
that were recorded, such differences will impact the surplus/(deficit) from investments and
derivatives, surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments and share of profits/(losses)
of joint ventures in the period in which such a determination is made.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and
football net of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing
jurisdictions outside Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting
Duty Ordinance and the Betting Duty Regulations. The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”) government has imposed an annual Special Football Betting Duty of
HK$2.4 billion on the football betting conductor under the Betting Duty Ordinance for five
years from fiscal year 2023/24 to 2027/28, with an effective date of 1 April 2023.

Commission represents the amounts wagered by customers on the lottery net of related
prizes, duty and payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2023
BEEHEY BIRIEH

BZ6H30BHILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 3% “zm
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A EEERIE AR Amounts wagered by local customers 114,034 156,876 7,560 278,470
BEES BHkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery

prizes (94,637)  (136,150) (4,083) (234,870
BERESIRA Betting and lottery revenue 19,397 20,726 3,477 43,600
BB RESELE Betting and lottery duty* (14,105) (10,363) (1,890) (26,358)
[BESNRBREEH Special Football Betting Duty - (600) - (600)
IR F I ith B FHEAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong (227) - - (227)
"ERS Lotteries Fund - - (1,134) (1,134)
@R REE Net margin and commission 5,065 9,763 453 15,281

2022
EEEY BHRIEE

BZ6HA30HLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 2% Y
BEER in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AER IR B Amounts wagered by local customers 114,835 143,798 5,850 264,483
BEES BHREZRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery

prizes (95,406)  (124,110) (3,159)  (222,675)
BERRESRA Betting and lottery revenue 19,429 19,688 2,691 41,808
BEBREFELH Betting and lottery duty* (14,135) (9,844) (1,463) (25,442)
R F I ith B B HAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong (209) - - (209)
REES Lotteries Fund - - (877) (877)
R lsaik Net margin and commission 5,085 9,844 351 15,280

 KHMEBESEEHR (RESHE) UBESBYRAR
ZIEBRITE  2022/23FE K 2021/22 FE W
ROEBHESMNT75% o ERIEEH U ZRIBEK
AHI50%ETE » MASEESBEHRAUIRER
FERI25% T E o
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Betting duty on local horse races (on a racing season basis) is charged on a progressive
sliding scale on racing betting revenue, reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2022/23
and 2021/22. Betting duty on football betting is charged at the rate of 50% on football
betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged at 25% on the amount
wagered.
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5 OTHER REVENUE

BEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
=3 Membership fees 1,219 1,311
B hEEEXNNBEERTTE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling
partners 1,271 1,155
BHRRE K E Charges for catering services 924 606
BEERESREKE Stable and livery service charges 880 808
ESEHEkE Racing related income 200 168
NEBTAEHRIE Sale of horses 146 4
AEEREE Risk management service fees 48 50
SRR Royalty income 47 35
HELSmAENRE Sale of souvenir items 31 21
Hit Others 364 213
5,130 4,371
6 MEHRA 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
BT (MiEE9) Staff costs (note 9) 6,515 6,348
W - BERESEMITE (MEE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,718 1,933
BEERS Prize money 1,569 1,436
R D AR Supplies and utilities 904 782
HER A Cost of sales 827 595
HEREER Repairs and maintenance 782 717
mpEEEE (ME12) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) 574 465
EEEESUNE HFENBR R ER Donations and contributions to parties other than the Trust 321 127
B 2 Auditor’s remuneration 11 10
REWPEFE (MiEE11) Depreciation of investment properties (note 11) 1 1
EEME Stewards’ remuneration - -
7 BiE 7 TAXATION
BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
IERFTISRL Current income tax
-&B - Hong Kong 542 697
— BB - outside Hong Kong 41 42
- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years (3) (1)
IELEATER (FFE18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)
-&8 - Hong Kong 179 13
— BB - outside Hong Kong (5) 2
754 753

BERNERDBRBEARFEMTERBETIE16.5%
(20225 : 16.5%) BRFHH o &8 LUIMNERBLER T
EENESH  CREBYEEANBRELER -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has

been provided at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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7 BE () 7 TAXATION (CONT.)

SERBARBMEENERSE  BEIRIEEBRE  Taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that
BHBERAENHEZENT ¢ would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BHEEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
HBRFLIBAT R 84 Surplus before taxation 3,597 596
BBFE16.5% (2022%F : 16.5%) 71 & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 593 98
HiE R EERBENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries (21) 3
BAFRBRRENHBEZE Tax effect of non-taxable income (477) (343)
FAMBEZHAOR BT E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 613 957
BRAFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years (3) (1)
Hith Others 49 39
HEXH Taxation charge 754 753
o ) S o
8 ®BIRFEITES 8 DONATIONS TO THE TRUST
BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
BIETFEAESNWRE Donations to the Trust 4,603 4,952
HRENTZE Present value impact 2 (12)
4,605 4,940
9 BIMAK 9 STAFF COSTS
BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
FEREAMRKA Salaries and other costs 6,182 6,023
REMFEE Defined contribution plan
BIRE A Pension costs 139 117
BB AR Contributions to MPF scheme 133 124
REBAGE — BIKEHKA (HEE24) The Scheme — pension costs (note 24) 61 84
6,515 6,348
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EETH
BEBREM IRER FREEE
BF Plant and Projects in Right-of-use k]

BEER in HK$ million Buildings equipment progress Assets Total
2022F7 A1 HAE Cost at 1 July 2022 7,745 22,875 2,462 4,040 37,122
72E Additions 39 868 1,824 147 2,878
R Transfers 480 444 (924) - -
HERFH Disposals and write-offs (31) (525) - (71) (627)
BHEBER Currency translation differences (61) (301) (59) (116) (537)
2023F6 30 H R AME Cost at 30 June 2023 8,172 23,361 3,303 4,000 38,836
202257 H1BEBIMERRE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2022 (4,134) (17,279) - (1,465) (22,878)
rEERE Depreciation for the year (166) (1,387) - (165) (1,718)
RNEERE Impairment for the year - (1) - - (1)
HERTH Disposals and write-offs 31 523 - 71 625
BHEBER Currency translation differences 7 119 - 19 145
20236 A30HEBIMERMAE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2023 (4,262) (18,025) - (1,540) (23,827)
2023F6 A30HREFE Net book value at 30 June 2023 3,910 5,336 3,303 2,460 15,009
202157 A1 BRAME Cost at 1 July 2021 7,731 22,292 1,287 4,104 35,414
®E Additions 5 436 1,689 26 2,156
= Transfers 28 475 (503) - -
FEBERENE Transfer from investment properties,

net 2 - - 6 8
HE R Disposals and write-offs - (228) - (60) (288)
EMHBRER Currency translation differences (21) (100) (11) (36) (168)
20226 A30 AR Cost at 30 June 2022 7,745 22,875 2,462 4,040 37,122
2021E7H1BRBEINERREE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2021 (3,933) (15,998) - (1,329) (21,260)
TEENE Depreciation for the year (201) (1,541) - (191) (1,933)
AEERHE Impairment for the year - @) - - @)
FERERENE Transfer from investment properties,

net @) - - (6) @8)
HERFH Disposals and write-offs - 224 - 55 279
EMHREE Currency translation differences 2 38 - 6 46
20226 A30 A 2BIMERREME  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2022 (4,134) (17,279) - (1,465) (22,878)
2022F 6 A30HREFE Net book value at 30 June 2022 3,611 5,596 2,462 2,575 14,244
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11 REWE

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7B1BRAE Cost at 1 July 116 124
FEBTYE  RERSEM Transfer to property, plant and equipment, net - (8)
6 A30 A ANE Cost at 30 June 116 116
7TEB1BRBHE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (98) (105)
AKEERE Depreciation for the year (1) (1)
FEBTYE  RERSIM Transfer to property, plant and equipment, net - 8
6 A30R REHE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (99) (98)
6 A30 HERME FE Net book value at 30 June 17 18

EEmREYETMN202356 A30HK%2022F6 H30
B BBYE£GEEMPERTARATNETESGE
BE-FTEREUENRESL  BRBISHEENE -
AZREIKR  REVMENATFERBA7{ES,0008E T
(20224 : 8840088 T) °

RENMENLFEE  ERBCERBETHELRY
ENX5  EAEBRLEARFERTMG - i TE
SWMAEME  NEREESHFEEENTFLERY
¥ o WFHRESERWENREEERRE - R’z
BEEFEQIFPLE -

RBISHMEREANTABERAZE - REFTRM
E HERTARBZEREZRAENEFIRTEE
% e

EENBRRRNEREBNBARERSLELEE
B BRATVEEFERNONEAREL -

FRRANGERDILEZE -

HZE2023F6 308 12202256 A30R L MAFE
B ZEAAFEEFERBI 2 ELEREEER -
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The Club’s investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 by an
independent professional valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties
are Level 3 commercial properties located in Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment
properties was HK$780 million (2022: HK$804 million) at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties
have been made. Comparable properties with a similar character, location, size, etc are
analysed and carefully weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the
properties in order to arrive at a fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking
account of location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

There were no transfers of investment properties among the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022.



12 EREE

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EETH
BB IRIER

Computer  Projects in g
BEBT in HK$ million software progress Total
2022F7B1 HRAE Cost at 1 July 2022 3,149 1,647 4,796
BE Additions 208 1,081 1,289
B Transfers 1,041 (1,041) -
HERTHE Disposals and write-offs (4) (7) (11)
E¥HBER Currency translation differences (1) - 1)
20236 30 H R AE Cost at 30 June 2023 4,393 1,680 6,073
2022F 710 RE#HH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2022 (1,296) - (1,296)
REEHHE Amortisation for the year (574) - (574)
HERTHE Disposals and write-offs 4 - 4
20236 4300 RiE# Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2023 (1,866) - (1,866)
20236 A30 HIRMAFE Net book value at 30 June 2023 2,527 1,680 4,207
2021F7B1 BRAE Cost at 1 July 2021 2,570 1,302 3,872
BE Additions 146 778 924
[ Transfers 433 (433) -
20226 A 30 H AE Cost at 30 June 2022 3,149 1,647 4,796
20217818 RE#HH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2021 (831) - (831)
A Amortisation for the year (465) - (465)
2022F 6300 RfE# Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2022 (1,296) - (1,296)
20226 A30 H iRAFE Net book value at 30 June 2022 1,853 1,647 3,500
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BT ERARMIEE
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13 SERATARE 13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
EEQNTHEBOT ¢ Details of joint ventures are as follows:
BB MR ER EERARE MR
BEREE Place of business/country FEEK Authorised and FELR
Name of entity of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
TRAREEEERMERAT hEARIME REBHBHE - BRMiEI ARMB218E208T 555
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic of China R EEMBARE Renminbi (“RMB”) Equity
Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* Provision of computer 200.2 million
(“BJ CJV”) technology, technical
training and business
information
consultancy
HKJC Investment Trust Fund BEHE REREREBHES TEA e
The Cayman Islands Investment in equities n/a Equity

and debt securities

20236 A30 B KR2022566 8308  £@EiFEILF  As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was
FREEY EERMERATNESEELEHBI0% o ¥ 90%. The Group shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2023 and 2022.

2023F 20225 » EEMLILRPREEEEEME

PRATBINZEEH40% °

MN6A30H  £B - EERHEBBEERTInvestment  The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the

TrustEERFENER B LT ¢ Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:
2023 2022
ERESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 37.8% 42.2%
EREGSERERGTES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 58.2% 54.5%
ERESEETRINERNTE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 3.2% 2.6%
EREEEETREANRESERAR The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare
Research Foundation Limited 0.8% 0.7%
100.0% 100.0%
BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7HA1H At 1 July 25,480 28,534
FE Injection 393 3,729
| Redemption (7,114) (4,093)
FribsRl, (B518) Share of profits/(losses) 986 (2,682)
ERRERESRE Transfer from Contingency Fund investments 47 -
EMNBRERS Currency translation differences (21) (8)
6HA30H At 30 June 19,771 25,480
* HERFRXA *  Unofficial English name
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of joint ventures as of 30 June is as follows:

2023
T RPERYEERMERAR g
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
SEEE £BEE EEEE
MERER MERER MEBRER
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
s Income 162 65 2,942 1,047 3,104 1,112
B Expenses (159) (61) (165) (64) (318) (125)
e Depreciation () @ - - ) @
Sz Interest income 3 1 - - 3 1
B Taxation 1) - - - (1) -
R & B Surplus after taxation 7 3 2,777 983 2,784 986
FHRERE Total comprehensive income 7 3 2,777 983 2,784 986
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - REREM Property, plant and equipment 17 12 - - 17 12
BREE Intangible assets 2 1 - - 2 1
EEREEE Deferred tax assets 4 3 - - 4 3
BITER Bank Deposits 317 226 - - 317 226
BATEEZBERIIENIKEE Fair value through profit or loss
RE Equities
HEBLM Listed in Hong Kong - - 2,810 978 2,810 978
mENLE® Listed overseas - - 13,944 4,967 13,944 4,967
BERES Debt securities
L Listed - - 19,796 7,661 19,796 7,661
FEm Unlisted - - 15,136 5,928 15,136 5,928
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 463 181 463 181
RBEE Current assets
HittRBEE Other current asset 35 25 2,852 1,121 2,887 1,146
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 279 109 279 109
REER Short-term deposits 1 - - - 1 -
ReRRALEEN Cash and cash equivalents 50 36 883 336 933 372
RBEELE Total current assets 86 61 4,014 1,566 4,100 1,627
mBEE Current liabilities
B5 R EMEMRRABKTE Trade and other payables and receipts
in advance (48) (34) (3,767) (1,474) (3,815) (1,508)
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (298) (116) (298) (116)
RBHKAELE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEEZREMENRAA (excluding trade and other payables
BKFHIE) and receipts in advance) - - (298) (116) (298) (116)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HArEFIRR Other payables (33) (23) - - (33) (23)
fTHESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (424) (166) (424) (166)
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MmN
13 ¥ aERE (&) 13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
2022
T ERPBRYEERMERAR g
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
£BEE £BEF £BEF
MERER HERER MEBRER
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wi /(B8 Income/(loss) 176 70 (6,287) (2,595) 6,111) (2,525)
Fif Expenses (172) (69) 212) (90) (384) (159)
e Depreciation (5) © - - (5) @)
RN 6 Interest income 1 5 - - 11 5
HE Taxation ) 1) - - ) (1)
BHBER (FE) Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 7 3 (6,499) (2,685) (6,492) (2,682)
2EKE /(BE) 248 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 7 3 (6,499) (2,685) (6,492) (2,682)
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - REREM Property, plant and equipment 32 21 - - 32 21
BYEE Intangible assets 3 2 - - 3 2
BEHEERE Deferred tax assets 6 4 - - 6 4
RITER Bank Deposits 263 176 - - 263 176
BEATEEEBBRIRNIBER Fair value through profit or loss
RE Equities
REBLD Listed in Hong Kong - - 3,047 1,222 3,047 1,222
mEMLEm Listed overseas - - 18,566 7,487 18,566 7,487
BHES Debt securities
L Listed - - 21,954 9,401 21,954 9,401
¥LEm Unlisted - - 13,922 6,108 13,922 6,108
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 440 191 440 191
RBEE Current assets
HittRBEE Other current asset 71 47 2,129 930 2,200 977
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 883 380 883 380
EEER Short-term deposits 107 72 - - 107 72
ReRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 73 49 448 185 521 234
RBEELE Total current assets 251 168 3,460 1,495 3,711 1,663
RBERE Current liabilities
g A REMENERNBRTE Trade and other payables and receipts
in advance (64) 43) (680) (293) (744) (336)
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (291) (125) (291) (125)
RBHKEELE Total current financial liabilities
(FEEESREMEARRA (excluding trade and other payables
BRFE) and receipts in advance) - - (291) (125) (291) (125)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HAt AR Other payables (55) 87) - - (55) (37)
fTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (688) (297) (688) (297)
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&% AT Investment TrustFTiFEEES  REMEFE
HEBRFIZEE.57% (2022F : 5.48%) - ZEBEHEES
B IR Y EARR Bl B 6 4F (20224 : 54F) o

13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

Debt securities carried weighted average of the effective interest rates of 6.57% (2022:
5.48%) for the joint venture under the Investment Trust. The weighted average of the

maturities was 6 years (2022: 5 years).

2023 2022
BTREUTIEHFE : Underlying investments were denominated in the following
currencies:
Ep United States Dollars (“USD”) 77% 81%
AR Renminbi (“RMB”) 4% 3%
& Euro (“EUR”) 4% 2%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 3%
H Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 2% 1%
HEEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 1% 1%
B EER Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 1% 1%
Hittg#s Other currencies 8% 8%
100% 100%
14 EHEHESKRE 14 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
ERBEE Non-current assets
SEKRE-FLm Alternative investments — unlisted 17,184 16,278
2023 2022
BRESREUTIIEMRINE : Contingency Fund investments were denominated in the
following currencies:
ESH usD 99% 99%
BE EUR 1% 1%
100% 100%
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BAREER R M AE

15 RERITESMIA

15 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

BHEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
IRBEE Non-current assets
FSERE-FLm Alternative investments — unlisted 807 2,079
RBEE Current assets
fTE¢mIE Derivative financial instruments
- RESMNESH - Foreign exchange forward contracts 1 1
nEEE Current liabilities
PTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments
- BEIMESH - Foreign exchange forward contracts (1) -

RERTEESMTANERTINE -

16 REER

EENREBIEZZ EInvestment TrustAHVIRE » L
AFEEHNE  BERNERRERVER > MPBE
EANAFEESBSCHEESZTRM - Bt » ZZK
EESNERATSNEBSTFE -

BEFERTE-SNEERREUBILER B
KEERAMERE  MEHEBARZEERER
EYHHEEND SERSIREAEAZ I
NAB N EE#HBIREWNZH22/85,9008 8 7T (2022
FREBETE2,50088T)

REBEEFLIFNENE RERTESHRIAY
Bt BB EAES KFRAE®R - Aribdinvestment

TrustBERBEARETERE ARBRITERML
EARARBITENLRBERNFLIREM -

17 REIFENSFERERFEE

REBANFERBWFIE T EEFEMNEERR
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Investments and derivatives were denominated in USD.

16 INVESTMENT RETURNS

The Group’s investments, including those included in the Investment Trust, were measured
at fair value, including differences not yet realised as at year-end. Changes in fair value
during the financial year were reflected in profit and loss. As such, they are susceptible to
volatility in capital markets.

Markets continue to be volatile as major central banks further tightened monetary conditions
to contain inflation, China faced difficulty with its economic reopening and elevated
geopolitical tensions. The group maintained a diversified portfolio and recorded a gain of
HK$2,259 million in the current financial year (2022: loss of HK$725 million).

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments
and derivatives, Contingency Fund, commodities, share of profits/losses of the Investment
Trust and net exchange difference mainly arising from the RMB bank deposits and
intercompany loans denominated in USD and RMB.

17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS AND
RECEIVABLES

Long-term prepayments and receivables mainly included input value added tax to be
deducted.



18 EEREHEE, (AEF)

FRYF|FEER —BRIBLENIKEERONELRS
BEE (BfE) 2BWT

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES)

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

EERIK IEFTE
BFIPRA k%R
Employee Accelerated
retirement depreciation Hith s
BEBETT In HK$ million benefit cost allowances Others Total
20224 7H 18 At 1 July 2022 (29) (865) 42 (852)
TA(308) hER Credited/(charged) to income
statement 15 (229) 40 (174)
MEHEM2mEmlsE Charged to other comprehensive
income (28) - - (28)
202346830 A At 30 June 2023 (42) (1,094) 82 (1,054)
202147818 At 1 July 2021 ) (806) 10 (805)
A (H8) hEER Credited/(charged) to income
statement 12 (59) 32 (15)
NEHEME2E KRS Charged to other comprehensive
income (32) - - (32)
202246 530 H At 30 June 2022 29) (865) 42 (852)

19 ESREMEWFEEE
REEE
191 EF R HMEWRIRIE

EEREMEWRESREG68% (20224 : 86%) L8
TEE HBUEMEETE - B REMERRE
WEREEEEE A FEEMAE -

19.2 HtREEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

19.1 Trade and other receivables

68% of trade and other receivables was denominated in HKD (2022: 86%). The rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other

receivables approximated their fair values.

19.2 Other current assets

BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7E Inventories 302 357
FEIE Prepayments 226 244

528 601
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20 EMFERERESRASEE
)
20.1 BHIER

EERMEENERNMEFIERINERE4.24%
(20224 : 2.26%) ~ KEFAFERERNREEER

20 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
20.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average of the effective interest rates on short-term deposits was 4.24% for
the Group (2022: 2.26%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their

HAVEEMEE  MEMEFIHRH2698 (2022 fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 269 days for the Group (2022:
£ :2130) o 213 days).
2023 2022
SHITFERUT SIS Short-term deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
ESp uUsD 50% -
AR RMB 39% 63%
BT HKD 11% 37%
100% 100%

202 BERBEEEEY

EEMFAHEA=EAUNTHNERNNELSER
FZEEL50% (20224 : 1.14%) - EEFFISEFEHMEE
HEEEEAFEBEESE  mMEMNETLIHRAE42H
(2022% : 60H) °

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average of the effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than
three months was 4.50% for the Group (2022: 1.14%). The carrying amounts of deposits
approximated their fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 42 days for
the Group (2022: 60 days).

2023 2022
FEAABIEAUTHERUTIERINE ! Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
EyH usD 43% 47%
BT HKD 39% 48%
AR RMB 18% 5%
100% 100%

M2023F6A30H  KENE THE L RERUEE
HRTEFOBRERERBESESEYWHAATE100EE
7T (20224 : 6185,600EBT) ' UARBIFE  ¥F
PENEEHRE o

21 JWHIBE®X
HEIKFER BT ERZEI.65% (20224F : 3.85%) 1Y
FE o

EHERUARKTE -
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As at 30 June 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$791 million
(2022: HK$656 million) denominated in RMB, which were held by certain subsidiaries with
bank accounts operating in the Mainland where exchange controls apply.

21 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loans were subject to interest rates at 3.65% per annum (2022: 3.85%).

Short-term loans were denominated in RMB.



22 B RHAMEMNERER

BIREMEMERERE  EETESFLHFERS
MHIBRFR301E6,700E B T (2022F : 33BBT) -
BEERESRERBRENEAREDS A (K
30.2) ; R(b)5EE23{E3,600BETNEEREER
(2022% : 25{%5,80088x) - EERFFNEE
RERSRESEBYREDNERANBERRBENE
BEEESHE BESREMEMRRMET BN
AEEHEAFEEESE SENESREMBEMSER
RAETFIED » H94% (20224 : 87%) LUB T
B HBpUHEMEERE -

23 FEWFKIE

202256308 K%20215E6 A30 AWEKFIE - 5
BE4E400EB TR 4E2,50088 T EEFIEES D
BIREE2023F6 8308 1L % 202256 830 H WA
FEEFBWA -

24 RERAGTE

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to
the Trust amounting to HK$3,067 million (2022: HK$3,300 million), which will be gradually
settled within six months after the end of the reporting period (note 30.2); and (b) customer
account deposits for the Group of HK$2,336 million (2022: HK$2,558 million). The customer
account deposits were offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which were
included in cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits. The carrying amounts of
trade and other payables and accruals approximated their fair value. 94% of trade and other
payables and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2022: 87 %) with the rest of
the balances being denominated in other currencies.

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HK$404 million and HK$425 million recorded in receipts in advance as at 30 June 2022 and
30 June 2021 were recognised as revenue during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30
June 2022 respectively.

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BHEETT in HK$ million 2023 2022
EREUBRRRACERNEBRE Pension (assets)/liabilities of the Group’s Scheme recognised
EBRETERKS (BE) B8BNT : in the consolidated statement of financial position which

were determined as follows:
STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,064) (2,268)
FAEEENRE Present value of obligation 1,678 1,989
FEMBRREMIENRSE (BE)  BEFH Net pension (assets)/liabilities in the consolidated statement

of financial position (386) (279)
RAEGBANFEIMAEETNEBELHEROT @ Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit

obligation was as follows:
7H1H At 1 July 1,989 2,381
MR ESHRENERRERAKR Current service cost net of employee contributions 68 85
B AR A Interest cost 50 18
BHEE Remeasurement:
- REEEREHSIHNEE (k) FHiE — Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience (5) (25)
- A B EREBSIFNWEE (WF) BB - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (74) (207)
BREXZFHNER Actual benefits paid (350) (263)
6 A30 AWM ATRIETEMIERE Present value of obligation at 30 June 1,678 1,989
FRFEEELFEBEHOT © The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of

the year was as follows:
7H1H At 1 July 2,268 2,552
FABNE Interest income 57 19
BEFEE Remeasurement:
—HEBEENERS (K) RITRE - Return on Scheme assets greater/(less) than discount rate 89 (40)
EE M Employer contributions - -
2 XIHER Benefits paid (350) (263)
B EEERANTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
6 A30RMEtEIEE AT EE Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,064 2,268
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24 RERAGE ()

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
ERRRFEEINRELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement
were as follows:
IR B AR 75 B AN Current service cost 68 85
RERBANEE ABEFENFENE (WFR),RAE Net interest (income)/cost on net defined benefit
assets/liabilities (7) 1)
B S ERANTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
61 84
BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
EE2ERERBERNEFTEZENT Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income were as follows:
HEBELHREH I BNBEE (KEF), B8 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience (5) (25)
HO K BRLES I BNEE (kE) Hi8 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (74) (207)
HREENBERHE (hR) A Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities arising during period (79) (232)
STEEENER(5) ERITEE Return on Scheme assets (greater)/less than discount rate (89) 40
E2EREREANENTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income (168) (192)
BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
EWREREINAEEFAR (HEE9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 61 84
E2ENRREANENTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income (168) (192)
RERF (W) /R Defined benefit (income)/cost (107) (108)

(a) SRIE &Rt B9 % B K 16 B8 /2L B 4 ot

REBANFEIURENELF S RUHERK - 5
W ERSEBENREFRAERSE  aEREM
—EBPWENE - RERFETERRNTABNE
8 - RERAFFBARE —EETRHRL - LRR (R
SRR EURGD R EEM - £ CRFME RS S
(B2) BPDMRETHRAERBHRRITE - FERS
HERAERAMAIE—(EE -

REZATEANFECSIRONERER  EEUHA
REGRNFEMNES (WA)  URBREEFNERB
BEMMEZ O BERREEINMER - At HESE
ERIZE1998(2011)EABRFIEMNEE LRKEEFE (B
BEKREREZER) RBEF4EFENRRES
R YT EAREEEFTE - AEEFTEHE
LHBEERE (2N BERARIEE  ZAFAE
EERERBFTENGETEA ©
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(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump-sum benefits based on a
multiple of a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement,
death, disability or leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The
Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”), and is an exempted scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation. The Club is the sole employer
participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the
surplus of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by
the Scheme’s actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011)
and the minimum funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the
Scheme. The Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
which acts as the trustee to the Scheme.
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24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically exposes the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Scheme’s assets and
therefore improve the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit
liability/asset, whilst poor or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income
securities and cash, and hedge funds, covering major geographical locations around the
world. The diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce
the concentration of risk associated with the Scheme’s investments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market yields of government
securities. A decrease in the bond yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the
Scheme’s benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will
increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24(a), determination of economic benefit available is not required
because the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding
requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

HEETT in HK$ million 2023 2022
STEIEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
BRE Equities 320 15% 286 13%
EEERFRERS Fixed income securities and cash 1,412 69% 1,330 58%
HrhES Hedge funds 339 16% 657 29%
2,071 100% 2,273 100%

REENHERARKEEEAE
ERA -

EEMHEEE

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club
on a regular basis.
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24 RERAGE ()
(d) EABHERR BB

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

ERBERBRMOT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2023 2022
FR=E Discount rate 3.6% 2.7%
REFSERLE Long-term salary increase rate 3.5% 3.5%
HA2023E6 8308 » EIRWEELFH TE0.25% » £ At 30 June 2023, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables

Ht AW 2EZGESTE2NERT - RERAF
BIFTRESENDOTEER  $EHRRL EN1.1%
F1.1% (20225 : ZHIR1.1%K1.2%) °

R2023F6H300 ERBFE LH  TH0.25%
EHMFAETEREYESTENERLT  REEN
STEIFTRIEEENAFEE > S22 88 M B
1.3%1%1.3% (20224 : DRIB1.4%%1.4%) ©

(e) B ZHR B F A HA

BRRAHSERAE (RRRTHRAERKEF S
THERBITHRAS) LEREM - RIBAEHRE - REH
HADREEXRFEUEENBDLEAHE - FERMH
RAUSER(BERKBEROD WRE - LS REFT
LEEMFHESHEMERE -

(f) FEaH#*

SEEF 2024 F HAFEHEMAR (2023 5F : #) -

(9) REBF s BIFF R EE A ERER

RERAHBIFrAEE TR 2023F6 308 #ymEFE
BHEARR B4 (20224  55) o
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held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.1% and 1.1%
respectively (2022: 1.1% and 1.2% respectively).

At 30 June 2023, if long-term salaries had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.3% and 1.3%
respectively (2022: 1.4% and 1.4% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of
the Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage
of basic salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are
determined with reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in
accordance with the ORSO requirements.

(f) Expected contributions

No contribution is expected from the Group for the year 2024 (2023: nil).

(g) Maturity profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2023 was 4 years (2022: 5 years).



25 f#fE

25 RESERVES
REME  ERRG

Accumulated Exchange #azE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
202247818 At 1 July 2022 24,623 (16) 24,607
BN FERS Net surplus after taxation 2,843 - 2,843
ERRERES Transfer from Contingency Fund 693 - 693
EMEBRER Currency translation differences - (217) (217)
MRERENEBEEANEENEHRTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 140 - 140
2023468308 At 30 June 2023 28,299 (233) 28,066
2021%F7H1H At 1 July 2021 24,211 61 24,272
MRBL B EREEE Net deficit after taxation (157) - (157)
EREERES Transfer from Contingency Fund 409 - 409
EMHBELRE Currency translation differences - (77) (77)
REBENEBERNEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 160 - 160
2022%F6 A30H At 30 June 2022 24,623 (16) 24,607

REABADBNERA  SEASEEARKER
BREFAENRDI0%BAEERBKLAES  BEE
ZOABENERESZMEANS0% HBIE - EERER
NESEABEERMAER  TAMWKERIEE - B
MEAREFTHET -

R20235F6A30H - EERBBRABEERT7,4008E T
(2022% : 7,3008#E ) °

26 HHES

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from Mainland entities, as
reported, to the statutory reserve fund in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the Mainland until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority
to offset against accumulated losses, to increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2023 the statutory reserve fund was HK$74 million (2022: HK$73 million).

26 CONTINGENCY FUND

BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7R1B At 1 July 37,338 37,747
BETHE Transfer to reserve (693) (409)
6H30H At 30 June 36,645 37,338
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27.1 HIBRBIHEA N BERE L EFZE T

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

27.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash

EENERSHIER generated from operations

HEEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
MR IEAT 28R Surplus before taxation 3,597 596
Frb&E AT CER),BER Share of (profits)/losses of joint ventures (986) 2,682
BHEEFRE Net gains on financial assets (738) (1,823)
KRB mFRE Net gains on commodities (54) -
B Uk 2% Interest income (488) (137)
FEZH Interest expense 10 5
HENE  RERBVHNER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 2
HEREEENEIE Loss on disposal of intangible assets 7 -
M RIERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,718 1,933
REYENE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
mEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 574 465
W - RERB|MRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1 2
EEELEH Movement in working capital

FERS /(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 55 (88)

B 5 R EMBWRIERD (15 M0) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 63 (71)

FENRBRD (38 0) Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 18 (49)

ZE 5 REMEMFRFEM OB) Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 727 (707)

FEWRER D Decrease in receipts in advance (80) (15)
RENTE( B R EWRGRIERD (B ) Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments and receivables 58 (6)
RERAGER D Decrease in defined benefit scheme 61 84
Hfth AT BR TR Decrease in other payables (105) (185)
EETHRELENES Cash generated from operations 4,441 2,689
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272 MEEHELENEEHR

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

27.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities
fTEemMIA
BHEIEF  Derivative HEBE
Short-term financial Lease Fb
BHEBT in HK$ million loans instruments liabilities Total
A2022%7H81H As of 1 July 2022 - (1) 207 206
BeheE Cash flows
BRIEFERA Inflow from financing activities 10 - - 10
BERETERL Outflow from financing activities - - (84) (84)
FREEH Non-cash changes
FRFTZANFHHEL New leases entered during the year - - 131 131
HESBRE Interest on lease liabilities - - 6 6
HNEE AR B Foreign exchange movement - - (8) (8)
RNEEEEZY Fair value changes - 1 - 1
Hith Others - - (1) (1)
A2023%F6H30H As of 30 June 2023 10 - 251 261
R2021%7 818 As of 1 July 2021 24 1) 285 308
BeheE Cash flows
BREEER Outflow from financing activities (24) - (99) (123)
FESEH Non-cash changes
FRFIZHFHELY New leases entered during the year - - 24 24
HEEEFIE Interest on lease liabilities - - 5 5
SN R IR E Foreign exchange movement - - ®3) 3)
Hith Others - - (5) (5)
A2022%F6H30H As of 30 June 2022 - (1) 207 206

28 BAREIE

REFRPR BRI LEHNEREHEENELRATHS
26121,900E 8 7T (20224 : 28{5400EBT) °

29 BTRRERGE
EEBEBESRT T ERTEANBR—ERE
(SRR 81 - MBI RIS OB ORI EIBERD) &
Mo WY ERAEE - o EEIESH—E
SRR ARSI E o SR BRI Gamit
DR HBIED) M - B EHRB I OB HERR
i o

28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$2,619 million (2022: HK$2,804 million).

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent
trustees. The Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two
independent service providers.
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30 RERMEALTZRS
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai
Kwun Culture and Arts Company Limited, as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of
the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Club is also related to The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research Foundation Limited (the “Equine Foundation”) as the
Club is the sole member of this company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with joint ventures and related
parties, except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

30.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$268 million (2022:
HK$241 million) to the Trust for the provision of administrative and support services.

30.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, the amount payable to the Trust was HK$3,852 million
(2022: HK$4,331 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly
included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to
HK$3,067 million (2022: HK$3,300 million), which will be gradually settled within six months
after the end of the reporting period (note 22); and (b) HK$776 million (2022: HK$1,027
million) for the donation from the Trust to the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
(“WKCDA”) for the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will be settled based on payments by
the Trust to the WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to mutual agreement with the
Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust, HK$349 million (2022: HK$476 million) was classified
as a non-current liability as this amount was not repayable within the next 12 months,
whereas the remaining balance was classified as a current liability.

30.3 Donation to KSCGC

The Group provided HK$8 million (2022: HK$13 million) to KSCGC to support its COVID-19
measures.

30.4 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a
Board of Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of
the Group and its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects
of the Group. The Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of
the Group and is overseen by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other
major institutions in Hong Kong, key management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and
the Board of Management which comprises the Chief Executive Officer and ten Executive
Directors (2022: nine), are detailed in the Board of Management section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.



30 HABEALZXRS (&) 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

304 TEEEEFHM (&) 30.4 Key management compensation (cont.)

BEEZEEERENHTFHS A=EHD : The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) EXH 2 (a) Basic compensation

EAXMESEEERTE EERHEMIEEMEYFE ©  Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in
kind.

(b) BEAR B 240 B 2 (b) Performance-related compensation

EEMERBEEARRREBEENBRM - This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the

performance of the Group.

(c) BIkEF (c) Retirement benefits

BRABFEEENERESHAIABRKTTEMEIK  Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu
MARME - AT HELBREBEHIE - BERIBESEH  of retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in
EERARBH  BERBERAFEEZINAOWIME  lieu of retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding

HRARHRESTHIFTE o the contractual entitlement and date of payment.
EEZEEEHNEFRANETMMOT The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:
BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
HEAME Basic compensation 78 83
HRIRB MO S Performance-related compensation 58 62
RGBT Retirement benefits 18 19
154 164
AR BIIT The remuneration fell in the following bands:
A" Number of individuals 2023 2022
AR Bl Remuneration bands
2,000,0017& 7t £ 4,000,00058 T HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
5,000,0017& 7t £6,000,00058 5T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
6,000,001 T £7,000,0005%& T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 1
7,000,001 7T £8,000,0005%& 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 1
8,000,0017& 7t £9,000,0005& T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 - 1
9,000,001 7T 210,000,000 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1 -
10,000,001t Z11,000,00078 7T HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 3
11,000,001t &12,000,00078 7T HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 3 2
12,000,00138 7T Z£13,000,00078 7T HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 3 1
13,000,001 78T 214,000,000 7T HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 - 1
20,000,001 7L £21,000,00058 7T HK$20,000,001 to HK$21,000,000 - 1
39,000,001 7T £40,000,0007& 7T HK$39,000,001 to HK$40,000,000 1 -
41,000,0018 7t £42,000,000& 7T HK$41,000,001 to HK$42,000,000 - 1
13 12
KILETEEBEZESAY Individuals who ceased to be members of the Board of
Management 2 2
11 10

59



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAREER R M AE

31 HEREEERE
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
31.1Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities, including financial instruments recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position (“directly held financial instruments”) and
investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
overall risk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Club’s Investment Office and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Club’s Investment Office under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment
constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund with the aim of
managing investment risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The
HKD is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered minimal.
The majority of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core
operational requirements in the Mainland. The remaining currency exposure arises from
globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/
decreased as follows:

2023 2022

FRkRBiE FRERBIE

BEAR R B R

&,/ (i) i,/ (md)

EEHETY Increase/ HEMETI Increase/

BALKIEE (decrease)on HLLHIEE  (decrease) on

b1 T post-tax i HE5 post-tax

If currency surplus and If currency surplus and

strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for

BEAR in HK$ million weakened by this year  weakened by this year

SEEE Held by the Group

AR RMB 5% 273/(273) 5% 214/(214)
Investment Trusti¥ & Held under the Investment Trust

583 EUR 5% 48/(48) 5% 34/(34)

AR RMB 5% 40/(40) 5% 32/(32)

HE JPY 5% 17/(17) 5% 13/(13)
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31 HMKEEER (&)
31.1 BiREKEE (&)
(a) TEER (&)

(i) EERERE

BERERREETSERZBDMmSIBUSENER - &
RTSERTY®R ESRERERZERENEET
B AAEERZETSERAR BLEREEHFS
BEMRRRAFIAZLAFEEEBERIRNDBE
BEET °

RERER > BER LA THRE%  EHMHAET
BFREHESTENERT  SEFARBEERE
HNEmITAERKBEInvestment TrustiHEER T AR
REERNSMI AN AFEEZE MO BIEM, WD
9fEB T (20224 : 951,800 B t) K 2/89,700E 8
7t (2022 : 4/23,5008#T) °

(iii) R == B

AMEEBEEET SRS M BSENRR - o
BRAFEENZRBRRAESREFNEER - X FEE
NEEBRETSNREH  SIBYBEEERKD
MEE - RERBNEAMBIETHFEES - 5|3
BREERARERBRBNER - BREBBEKX
WEERE  FIURKASEQATEERRERERN
RE R -

ERREMS0ET > THMAEUEREZHHZTE
HERT  EEREEESENESRIAENRBZE
BRI R ASIE 9,600 858 7T (20224 : 1 115,9008
#IT) 0 BB Investment TrustifEEE R T ANKRI%E
BN EREMD2/E5,7008 8 T (2022F : Hd2
24,0008 7T) °

EEZEERBUEEIERAESRENREREE
EETSEAR EMERBEBEEIET Ex A
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(b) HBE LR

FBESARRIEREES THREBEHET L
ATREE o B I - SEEIN T BRI ST 8 P LB
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Group is exposed
to market price risk as the value of its equity investments and alternative investments will
decline if market prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s equity for the year would have increased/decreased by
HK$900 million (2022: HK$918 million) from directly held financial instruments and HK$297
million (2022: HK$435 million) from underlying financial instruments of the Investment Trust
as a result of changes in fair value of its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This
can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash
flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has
significant investments that are interest bearing.

If there had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity would have been HK$96
million higher (2022: HK$59 million higher) from directly held financial instruments and
HK$257 million lower (2022: HK$240 million lower) from underlying financial instruments of
the Investment Trust.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and by
investment benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-
HKD/USD/RMB exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s
Mainland operations is managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings
denominated in RMB. Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified
globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark
duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of fixed and floating-rate
instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations
as they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a
price close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet
exceptional needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and
invests primarily in liquid financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting

the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that
all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the
Group and under the Investment Trust as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity
buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2023 2022
38R 3f8A
MWAFUT NEE1E MAZUT NEE1E
Upto >3 month 180 L ok Upto >3 months 180 E ok
AEAT in HK$ million 3 months to1year  Over1year Total 3 months to1year  Over1year Total
£EEE Held by the Group
FITEMBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BEEN Short-term loans 10 - - 10 - - - -
ESREBEAERR Trade and other payables 11,491 767 473 12,731 11,252 216 580 12,048
HEEE Lease liabilities 20 61 176 257 19 56 140 215
11,521 828 649 12,998 11,271 272 720 12,263
Investment Trusti 8 Held under the Investment Trust
REFEEELENTENEERE  Net-settled derivative financial liabilities 23 37 119 179 23 42 297 362

20236 308 @ £E KRInvestment TrustfiiFHa
NAPERBEEETE TERSREEBHEAEAGCE
4,500 8 7T (20224 1 122184,70088T) - TRY
20236 A30AK2022F6 A30 BN A FRBEEEE
PTETEERI W BEENSRBELE  TRE
BRTEHNAHAESEREIMRAR - TRATFEENR

REEE (BHE) TE -

As at 30 June 2023, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding gross-settled
derivatives held by the Group and under the Investment Trust was HK$6,045 million (2022:
HK$12,247 million). The table below analyses the outstanding gross-settled derivatives as at
30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
buckets based on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which are different from the carrying
amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated statements of financial position.

2023 2022
3fEA 3f8A
EAIMUT  HEE1E SEAIMUT  HLEE1E
Upto >3 months 180 L ok Upto >3 months 1E0E ok
AEAET in HK$ million 3 months to1year  Over1year Total 3 months to1year  Over1year Total
SEEE Held by the Group
BRERTEIA Gross-settled derivatives
it Outflows (148) - - (148) (79) - - (73)
RA Inflows 148 - - 148 74 - - 74
Investment Trust}$& Held under the Investment Trust
ABERNTEIA Gross-settled derivatives
pifid Outflows (5,347) (466) (84) (5,897) (9,809) (2,360) B (12174
RA Inflows 5,374 472 84 5,930 10,044 2,394 5 12,443
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31.2 EXEARERE

EEEEEANZRE  ERRESENFELER
7 fem

- ATREHUERAFEFREY  AREBHATEAR
BYEE  BHESFEHER R

- XFEENRERRRIFEER -

EETHEREES  GEAMBERRRARTIE
wHRE - URFRUWAEBETES  UEEHREASA
HUSEHBEENEE -

31.3 A EEME

EBUHBREENFISERTE  BAFEEFTENE
ERERE (WKE2.7(@) () Rk 2.22F7) Bz T3 A FE
B ERAMELEE  THAFRRBHEEAFE
B EEEAFENREBASEHRIER -

AN EARIRERTSTHEREERABENRE
(REAR) FTEODFEE -

B2 EFARRKEERTETEUEEREBENR
B IFEERBASBEEELBERET
BEDSHBENGERDFENQFEE -
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able
or willing to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured
at amortised costs (such as trade and other receivables, deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) fall due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt
securities carried at FVTPL fall due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting counterparties and
by diversification. Deposits and cash and cash equivalents are only placed with financial
institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amount of the financial assets recognised in its consolidated statements of financial position
less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.7.

Management considered the lifetime expected loss of these receivables as being minimal as
at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022. The Group made no write-offs or provisions for these
receivables during the year.

31.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern in order to

— provide world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making contributions
in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

— support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital, which is the same as the total equity shown in its
consolidated statement of financial position, to ensure an appropriate level of return is
made to the community in the form of donations through the Trust.

31.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as
stated in notes 2.7(a)(i) and 2.22 by recognising the following fair value measurement
hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and
liabilities, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow
analysis) in which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant input is market interest rates.

The assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on
information derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective
fund managers, and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value as at 30 June. See note 11 for disclosures
of fair value measurement of the investment properties.

2023 2022
%N RA2 K3 g S5 @Hl2 &3 aE
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE/(8R) Assets/|liabilities)
B%EE /(B8R Financial assets/(liabilities)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
SERE Alternative investments - - 17,184 17,184 - - 16,278 16,278
RERITESRMIA Investments and derivatives
FERE Alternative investments - - 807 807 - - 2,079 2,079
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1 - 1
- - 17,991 17,991 - 1 18,357 18,358
FnKEE Non-financial assets
XRBR Commodities 718 - - 78 - - - -

EENBRRRERERNEHABERBLBEE
B BRATEEFERINEAREL -

HZE2023F6 8308 1L %2022F6 8308 MEF
B EEE=BEAFEEFERE 2B EmEE o
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels classifications for the
Group for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022.
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(b) RERFISHHREFE L FEEHNEHEE
REBHEHEBHUT :

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7H1H At 1 July 18,357 15,882
EWRSEREINRSLEEE Total gains recognised in income statement 1,324 1,939
BA Purchases 3,211 3,098
k== Sales (4,901) (2,562)
6HA30H At 30 June 17,991 18,357
FRFAWBERILIMERER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
TSI BERMBRNKEETE presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,324 1,939
FARERARSENEERBET AKRSEE Total gains for the year included in income statement for
WHHERERITESM T ARG HEEE assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 904 1,287

(c) H2023%6 530 H K202246H30H ' :1&

RBI2P0 89 A FIEEEE B E R R &
AZEuT :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 were as follows:

kil fHERKIS BRBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE i
Financial assets/liabilities

BHIESLD MRAESRE ABRER

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
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31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June

WA EBEEIERMT : 2022 were as follows:
kil fR{ERIS EREEEERAZHY TRE (MNREF1Y)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
LR, Al
Financial assets/liabilities
BitEESRE EEFE" TER TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value** n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE" TEA iE A
Private equity fund investments Net asset value™* n/a n/a
HHEESRE EEFE" TER TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value** n/a n/a
MEEERE EEFEE TEA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value™ n/a n/a

(e)
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*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded
in an active market. These have been valued based on information derived from
individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers, and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary. The Group has determined that
the reported net asset values represent a fair value of the captioned investments.

Given the volatility in financial markets, as of 30 June, the estimation of the fair value of
certain level 3 investments with valuation only available to investors 90-120 days after
the financial year end has been enhanced, recognizing that the actual valuation when
available may differ from the estimate. In particular, the last available valuation as of
31 March is used, adjusted for cash flows into and out of the investments from 1 April
— 30 June, and further assessed and adjusted, if necessary, for the estimated return
from 1 April - 30 June by utilizing the historical statistical relationship between such
investments with global developed market equities index.

The fair value of the investments reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as of 30 June. The valuation of these investments will vary, based on
its business performance and prevailing market and economic conditions, until the
realization of the investments.

(e) At 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, no non-financial assets or liabilities

were carried at fair value except for commodities.
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

BFEUBARRR Statement of financial position of the Club
EE- in HK$ million fizE Note 2023 2022
IRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREM Property, plant and equipment 9,630 9,028
REYE Investment properties 17 18
B EE Intangible assets 3,859 3,122
M A FIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,539 1,539
EENTRE Investments in a joint venture 19,525 25,189
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 17,184 16,278
BERITESRMTIA Investments and derivatives 807 2,079
KR Commodities 718 -
R EAFE AT FRIE R FE R IR Long-term prepayments and receivables 29 35
RERBATE Defined benefit scheme 386 279
53,694 57,567
RBEE Current assets
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 1 1
BHE A B FENER Loans to subsidiaries 1,684 1,685
E 5 R EMEKIE Trade and other receivables 579 360
HttRns&EE Other current assets 421 483
FEWBHE A FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,437 4,365
EHEER Short-term deposits 9,597 5,688
RERBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,646 5,789
25,365 18,371
pE=RE Current liabilities
B 5 K HEMEMNIRK Trade and other payables (8,019) (9,151)
FAWFRIR Receipts in advance (139) (135)
ST HE A B HIFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (12,101) (10,189)
RERITESRMIA Investments and derivatives 1) -
HEAE Lease liabilities (49) (52)
AEFERERE Current income tax liabilities (26) (288)
(20,335) (19,815)
REBEE, (AR F8 Net current assets/(liabilities) 5,030 (1,444)
FREERE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities (67) (95)
ELFEHRERE Deferred income tax liabilities (1,047) (840)
FAWFRIR Receipts in advance (711) (712)
Hth e {FBR X Other payables (452) (574)
(2,277) 2,221)
56,447 53,902
@& Reserves 32 (a) 19,802 16,564
ERES Contingency Fund 32 (b) 36,645 37,338
EmBAE Total equity 56,447 53,902
2= Michael T H Lee
FFE Martin Liao
BRI Stewards
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) EEREEE (a) Reserve movement of the Club
HEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7HA1H At 1 July 16,564 16,627
BB BNFEREE (FR) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,405 (632)
EREBRES Transfer from Contingency Funds 693 409
BREANBRBEBANEBNENRHE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net

of tax 140 160
6 H30H At 30 June 19,802 16,564
(b) GEHHELEE (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club
BHEBET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7A1H At 1 July 37,338 37,747
TS Transfer to Reserve (693) (409)
6 H30H At 30 June 36,645 37,338
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A2023%F6A30H - EENFEMBELATERE :

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2023:

BEEHE EHN
EREAL
Effective percentage
held/controlled

by the Club
BETRMRRE EMER
FTEEHK Issued and fully paid up share HiZ Bz
Principal activities capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
EEEERBEEYARAA REBFEVEYR 2B T 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
BEFERREXARAA REEREREY 3BT 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
EREERFERAT RENEAHREEE 10088 T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
EREEGFESESEHARLH BEEEE BN HERLRE 100E 7T 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and recreational HK$100
facilities
EREFE (KB)BRAA FRETRAKBAFBNEEA 2058 7T 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff retirement HK$20
benefits scheme
BREARLH EEEERRENEY 1,000 T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages The Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
BERSEEKAIR (FE) BRARA BERBEREERE 58T 100

HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited

BERERE (BB)ARLA
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited

LREEEEERERLR
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*

LREBRERMABERATF
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited*
BNEBREEFIRERAT
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited*
R BEFERMARBRAA

Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited*

BNEEREEHRABTRAT
Guangzhou HKJC Event Management Limited*

ENERSSERRBERAT
Guangzhou HKJC Transport Services Limited*

*FFBARXEH

holds the equity interests of the Group’s
business ventures in China

REBEESSREAMENEENREARSEL
REEEEEMERAANRE

acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*, on behalf
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club

EEEES RN GHERERIE

manages Members’ social and recreational
facilities

ROLE R 1 R A RO R AT B B R TR A RS

provides computer hardware and software
technology development and consulting
services

Efe b BEREE SRR

constructs and operates horse training
facilities in Conghua District, Guangzhou

REEREE R R 8 R B RS

provides computer hardware and software
technology development and consulting
services

RUBERSELRALTHABKIRY

provides sports event operation and
large-scale events organising and
planning services

REBREZEEZENENNELORERE
B(BERCRASANENEREY)

provides the import, export and road transport
of goods, including the transport of horses
and their specialised materials, between
Guangdong Province and Hong Kong

* Unofficial English name

HK$500,000,000

- 100
6,5008 % 7T 100
US$65,000,000
1,0008% T 100
US$10,000,000
AR#22152,0008 T 100
RMB2,220,000,000
300B%ETT 100
US$3,000,000
ARM5008 7T 100
RMB5,000,000
AR¥680E T 100

RMB6,800,000
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR RACING SEASON

SEREFSRER

BHEBT in HK$ million 2023* 2022
ESHEHE Number of race meetings 88 88
AR EER IR F AR Amounts wagered by local customers 278,871 264,405
EASSWIMNIER IR AL Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools 26,706 25,709
ROEHEEE Total amounts wagered 305,577 290,114
BEREFRA Betting and lottery revenue 43,662 41,812
EERRESEEH Betting and lottery duty (27,002) (25,448)
TR F Ihith B BHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (233) (203)
REEE Lotteries Fund (1,134) (877)
HWRREE Net margin and commission 15,293 15,284
Hibg A Other revenue 5,083 4,463
20,376 19,747

FEE %N Operating costs (14,410) (13,485)
BEFERESNRE Donations to the Trust (4,605) (4,940)
HRBREAESRRERNKEE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 1,361 1,322
FRFA B Interest income from deposits 488 137
RERITESHITERR Surplus from investments and derivatives 37 185
ERESRENRR Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 1,355 1,790
KR mBEsR Surplus from commodities 54 -
FRBRERE Net exchange difference (654) (152)
BKEA Finance costs (10) (5)
2,631 3,277

Frb & & A TERN (EBE) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 986 (2,682)
MBRFIEAT 2R Surplus before taxation 3,617 595
BiE Taxation (756) (753)
REANTFERE (FE) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,861 (158)

* FEB2HE23HEME -
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

EBRBE

ERESEREESRRIRE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING

HEBT in HK$ million 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019*
EEREA Number of race meetings 88 88 88 87 88
T EEESREEE Amount wagered by local customers on

horse races 114,435 114,757 113,240 98,020 105,996
i ESEEEEREN Horse race betting dividends and rebates on

local bets (94,976)  (95,324)  (94,380)  (81,366)  (88,194)
i BEFBEHRA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 19,459 19,433 18,860 16,654 17,802
i B TR Horse race betting duty on local bets (14,149)  (14,141)  (13,756) (12,113)  (12,983)
BB R T IMEESHE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (233) (203) (113) (95) (85)
i B E BRI Horse race betting net margin on local bets 5,077 5,089 4,991 4,446 4,734
RERFB A Amount wagered on football 156,876 143,798 140,171 92,598 114,074
EREEYE Football betting dividends (136,150) (124,110) (121,681) (80,052)  (98,733)
REBREHA Football betting revenue 20,726 19,688 18,490 12,546 15,341
RIELH Football betting duty (10,363)  (9,844)  (9,245)  (6,273)  (7,671)
BONBIREEH Special Football Betting Duty (600) - - - -
REREEAR Football betting net margin 9,763 9,844 9,245 6,273 7,670
REFTHE Amount wagered on lottery 7,560 5,850 3,390 5,161 8,465
"ERS Lottery prizes (4,083)  (3,159)  (1,831)  (2,787)  (4,571)
RHEWA Lottery revenue 3,477 2,691 1,559 2,374 3,894
BEBYH Lottery duty (1,890)  (1,463) 847)  (1,290)  (2,116)
#BEES Lotteries Fund (1,134) (877) (509) (774)  (1,270)
#EEL Lottery commission 453 351 203 310 508
HAFWA GIRREEWERER) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,809 2,459 2,581 2,588 2,574
gl Total operating income 18,102 17,743 17,020 13,617 15,486
HELERAR Direct operating costs (10,296)  (9,626) (9,059)  (8,631)  (8,692)
MIEER Miscellaneous donations (71) (54) (54) (28) (50)
WE - # - REREEXE Depreciation, amortization, impairment and

expensed project costs (1,733) (1,621) (1,686) (1,762) (1,615)
B R Total operating costs (12,100) (11,301) (10,799) (10,421)  (10,357)
RER Operating surplus 6,002 6,442 6,221 3,196 5,129
BE Taxation (738) (728) (711) (401) (590)
MBRBROEERER Operating surplus after taxation 5,264 5,714 5,510 2,795 4,539

BASZERONARRERS

PR FEEHNRRERRARARBEETIESRET
BANMRES  HEVEKRE  RECBREBTHE

REESANKEE R -

* BEMBESR -

Unclaimed prizes transferred to the
Snowball Pool 44 30 19 88 77

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to
the Trust and the Equine Foundation, gain on sale of properties, investment returns and
transfers to the Contingency Fund.

* Financial data is for racing seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
E Y3

ERESEREESRRIRE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING

BE (&) AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY (CONT.)
BEAER in HK$ million 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019*
BEEBYRTHEE Total amount wagered on horse races 141,141 140,466 136,376 121,608 124,819
A EREER N ERER R RITAR Less: amount of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools on horse races (26,706) (25,709) (23,136) (23,588) (18,823)

FiREEFHRIIRE

Amount wagered by local customers on
horse races 114,435 114,757 113,240 98,020 105,996

R THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP
OPERATIONS SUMMARY
BEET in HK$ million 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019*
U g Income
EEE8 Membership subscriptions 618 580 369 335 310
EEASEBEREEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 460 600 492 179 156
BREKER Catering deficit (77) (189) (170) (54) (32)
HitFBRERWE /(FEB) Other non-catering income/(loss) 115 34 20 (22) 20
1,116 1,025 711 438 454
EEEHHEETHRE Direct membership administration costs (847) (807) (591) (586) (321)
WERBEEXSH Depreciation and expensed project costs (289) (324) (249) (34) (45)
(1,136) (1,131) (840) (620) (366)
&2 (FR)/ B Operating (deficit)/surplus (20) (106) (129) (182) 88

* BEMBER -
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BB THME

2023* 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019

E5AEH Race meetings
ABERH Day meetings 39 47 47 48 47
RERE Night meetings 42 41 41 39 4
HEBRH Twilight meetings 7 - - - -
HRE Total number of meetings 88 88 88 87 88
EREFEH Races on turf 758 752 749 730 714
FRIRREEFEH Races on all-weather track 77 84 86 98 98
HBI5Y Total number of races 835 836 835 828 812
s Horses
BETLHEAREY Total runners 10,104 10,006 10,197 10,227 9,765
B SEEETHAE Horses winning 1 race 309 302 320 315 305
BHMSEEETHE Horses winning 2 races 134 149 128 137 152
BH=5EEETHE Horses winning 3 races 50 45 59 50 38
BE=8SULBEEFTHA Horses winning over 3 races 24 23 19 21 20
BHEEETHA Horses with winnings 517 519 526 523 515
REBHESERANEFCHE Horses not winning - placed 446 449 459 436 441
REBLESTERAVESTHE Horses not winning - unplaced 352 376 413 439 373
REHEFTHA Horses not raced 320 351 326 352 376
BErag Total horse population 1,635 1,695 1,724 1,750 1,705
BEETHE Retirements 518 549 509 522 467
BEERS Prize money
RSB (EEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,597 1,440 1,382 1,337 1,252
BEEEFHRE (THER) Average prize money per race (HK$'000) 1,912 1,723 1,655 1,614 1,542
BUEYHEE (FET) Average prize money per horse (HK$’'000) 976 850 801 764 734
ERNERSREFEBETAHEIL Percentage of horses winning

prize money in the year 62% 61% 62% 59% 60%
FRERSREELMEEFTAEEAL Percentage of individual horses winning

prize money in the year 77% 77% 77% 74% 77%
FAREEFESERARELREFTAEDL Percentage of horses recovering

basic costs or more in the year 37% 36% 35% 34% 37%
EFAFHABAR(T) Average attendance per meeting ('000)
St Happy Valley 10.1 3.0 1.8 7.4 19.0
WH Sha Tin 16.9 5.6 3.1 10.5 29.6
EFRIE(EBAR) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
L@t Standard bets 120,881 120,618 117,305 105,077 107,952
HRIF M Exotic bets 18,795 18,635 17,885 15,548 15,909
EE =M Fixed odds bets 1,465 1,213 1,186 983 958
Mz Total 141,141 140,466 136,376 121,608 124,819

* Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BETETFHE
B %% FINANCIAL
HEBT in HK$ million 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020* 2019*
ERBEBNBK Duty and taxation to
Hong Kong SAR Government
ESHEEHR Horse race betting duty 14,149 14,141 13,756 12,113 12,983
RIREEH" Football betting duty” 10,963 9,844 9,245 6,273 7,671
REBEH Lottery duty 1,890 1,463 847 1,290 2,116
FBH Profits tax 542 696 623 340 588
27,544 26,144 24,471 20,016 23,358

RATRBERBLES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 1 - - 1 2

+OIREEI 1993 F 4 A1 BB c EEEE MM ¢ Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed

ERNESASBEMNREBNWRERESTELD to donate sums equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The
we o BETHZ2003F3A31H  HREHZE Community Chest of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently
2024%3H31H ° extended to 31 March 2024.

" BFER2023F4E6 BHIEEST6EB T EEIE " Including HK$600 million in Special Football Betting Duty for April — June 2023.
HREEH ] -

28 MEMBERSHIP
H6H30H as at 30 June 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
EBEFEEEAY Number of Hong Kong Jockey Club
Members
2EEE Full Members 16,472 16,236 15,765 15,300 15,196
Z2EE5(S) Full Members (S) 202 204 200 202 197
EERHMES Racing and other Members 9,906 9,825 10,034 10,255 9,968
REEE Absent Members 2,058 1,976 1,910 1,822 2,677
NAEE Corporate Members 180 179 180 182 184
28,818 28,420 28,089 27,761 28,222
BREEEEAR Number of Racing Club Members
HHEes Racing Club Members 1,453 1,391 1,354 1,350 1,295
A EE AR Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 1,034 1,012 999 1,020 998
NG k== Corporate Members 100 100 98 102 105
31,405 30,923 30,540 30,233 30,620
KEEES GROUP EMPLOYEES
HR6H30H as at 30 June 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
=5 Full-time 8,627 8,423 7,968 7,971 7,258
B Part-time 10,788 10,327 12,367 18,744 14,563
* BEEEHTER - * Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) for the year ended
30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Trust was primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and
community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 80. All
figures in the annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

FUND

Movements in the Trust’s fund during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Trust allocated HK$7,264 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in
the Charities Trust Donations section of the report.

TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees during the year and up to the date of this annual report are the
Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as listed in the Board of Stewards
section of the report.

Miss Anita Fung Yuen Mei, Mr Jackson Woo Ka Biu and Mrs Ann Kung Yeung Yun Chi
were appointed as Trustees on 8 September 2022 to fill the respective vacancies left by
Dr Rosanna Wong Yick Ming who resigned as a Trustee on 15 August 2022 upon her
retirement as a Steward of the Club, Mr Philip N L Chen who resigned as a Trustee on 8
September 2022 since he did not seek re-election as a Steward at the conclusion of the
Club’s 2022 Annual General Meeting and Mr Richard Tang Yat Sun who resigned as a
Trustee on 8 September 2022 upon his resignation as a Steward of the Club.

Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung retired as a Trustee and the Deputy Chairman on 23 May 2023 upon
his retirement as a Steward of the Club. The Hon Martin Liao was elected as the Deputy
Chairman in place of Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung on 23 May 2023.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is
signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Michael T H Lee
Chairman
26 July 2023
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST

(established in Hong Kong)

OPINION
What we have audited

The financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”), which
are set out on pages 80 to 101, comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in fund for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Trust as at 30 June 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the
consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
and for such internal control as the Board of Trustees determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for assessing
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Trustees either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board of Trustees
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2023
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INCOME STATEMENT
3R

BZ6H30HILEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2023 2022
REEAESERAMBAR (ATHBIEEESES Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club and
£8 ] WER its subsidiaries (the “HKJC Group”) 11.3(b) 4,605 4,940

R AR Operating costs 11.1 (270) (243)
RERTESMIAERR Surplus from investments and derivatives 6 1,701 2,345
KRR mBEsR Surplus from commodities 6 54 -
FRHAE RS Interest income from deposits 6 235 11
b & & ATER(EE) Share of profits/(losses) of a joint venture 4,6 1,685 (3,628)
FHBRER Net exchange difference 6 (1) 34
BAREBELETRER Forfeited dividends and refunds 37 25
BKEA Finance costs (110) (70)
RETBIBRERBREEFEIFIBEAI N RS Surplus before allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects 7,936 3,414
i R E) A Y IB IR R Previous allocations not utilised 221 331
BIEZERB Rt EEINFIBRE Present value of allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects (6,786) (6,464)
BAESKNTFERS (FE) Net surplus/(deficit) transferred to Fund 9 1,371 (2,719)
BIBAERB R EEINRIEBERE Present value of allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects (6,786) (6,464)
HREENZE Present value impact (478) (130)
BIBRESHBREEFEINIE Allocations to charitable organisations and

community projects (7,264) (6,594)

H85EHE101 EMNMEEAMBEHRERMN—BD o
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The notes on pages 85 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
E2EREER

BZ6H30HILEE for the year ended 30 June

BEEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
STFERR(EBE) Net surplus/(deficit) 1,371 (2,719)
AEE2EWE (FE) 858 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1,371 (2,719)
FeSHEE10TENMEBAMBRERN—HD o The notes on pages 85 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B RSN R

A6 H30H at 30 June
BEBET in HK$ million MzF Note 2023 2022
FREEE Non-current assets
EENTNRE Investments in a joint venture 4 30,077 32,581
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 5 24,522 23,029
REEm Commodities 718 -
B R ERRIE Loans and receivables 11.4 349 476
55,666 56,086
RBEE Current assets
BERITESRTIA Investments and derivatives 5 - 1
BRI EWRIE Loans and receivables 11.2,11.4 3,571 3,907
EHITER Short-term deposits 7 3,154 1,094
RERBESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7 5,146 3,061
11,871 8,063
PEI=RE Current liabilities
EEEFRE R EN Allocations awaiting payment 8 (22,609) (20,593)
RERITESRMTIA Investments and derivatives 5 (1) -
(22,610) (20,593)
REBEEFE Net current liabilities (10,739) (12,530)
44,927 43,556
e Fund 9 44,927 43,556
HeEEA Michael T H Lee
FFE Martin Liao
BRI Trustees

E8SEZE101 BN EB A EHRERN —
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The notes on pages 85 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND

BHEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
7H1B&8 Balance at 1 July 43,556 46,275
FEARG S (EE) Net surplus/(deficit) 1,371 (2,719)
AEEEEWE (EIE) B58 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1,371 (2,719)
6 4308 &tk Balance at 30 June 44,927 43,556
FeSHE10TENMEBAMBHRERN—HD o The notes on pages 85 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

BZ6H30HILEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million MizE Note 2023 2022
SRR Operating activities
BARELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds 37 25
ARTFRERBERITELTE Payments to charitable organisations and
community projects (4,659) (4,790)
EBEEEEEER Donations from the HKJC Group 5,053 5,653
FES—JoWiN Operating costs (270) (243)
EETHMEENERS Net cash generated from operating activities 161 645
REEH Investing activities
FHAA=EA U L EBERIE M Increase in short-term deposits
with maturities of more than 3 months (2,060) (809)
2 WEFI S Interest received 268 9
HELQNTEEE Injection into a joint venture (765) (4,324)
EEEATER Redemption from a joint venture 5,001 4,780
BERATEEEBERIENMKEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (4,224) (3,888)
HERA T EEESBBRIRNTBERE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 4,388 3,652
BEXRER Purchase of commodities (664) -
FRREFRENESIEM Increase in deposits and funds awaiting
investments (18) (19)
HOTESBMT A (FT)  FTBUTEERIE Net (payment for)/receipt from derivative financial
instruments 1) 14
REZBRELE(FTA)WERS Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities 1,925 (585)
RERBEEEYFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,086 60
FHEERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year 3,061 2,984
HIRER Exchange difference (1) 17
FRESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,146 3,061
RERBRELENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
pSE:RER N Short-term deposits 5,087 3,005
RITFR Bank balances 59 56
5,146 3,061

#85EHE101 EMNMEEAMEHRERMN—
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The notes on pages 85 to 101 are an integral part of these financial statements.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community
projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 80 to 101 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 26
July 2023.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets, financial liabilities and commodities at fair value through
profit or loss which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. Areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

(a) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Trust’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

No amendments to Financial Reporting Standards relevant to the Trust’s operations were
effective during the current accounting period.

(b) Amendments to Financial Reporting Standards that are relevant to the
Trust’s operations but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted

The following amendments to Financial Reporting Standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Trust’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2023.

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or
its Associate or Joint Venture

The Trust is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to Financial Reporting
Standards will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments to Financial Reporting Standards will have a significant impact
on the Trust’s results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 Joint arrangements

The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to its joint arrangement. Under HKFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangement and determined it to be a joint venture as unanimous consent
is required from all parties to the agreement for relevant activities. The joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

2.3 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the HKJC Investment Trust Fund
(“Investment Trust”)), are held for non-trading purposes, irrespective of whether they are
classified as current or non-current. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives are
stated in note 2.4.

2.4 Financial assets
(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Trust classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. These financial assets
include investments and derivatives.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For debt instruments, the objective of the Trust’s business model is not to hold the assets
to collect the contractual cash flows, and not to both hold the financial assets to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets. All equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds,
private real estate funds and private credit funds.

The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage its financial risks and to facilitate
the implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current
as they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For financial assets that the Trust holds in order to collect contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates,
these are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are expected to be settled or if they have maturities
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

The Trust’s assets in this category include loans and receivables, deposits, short-term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances,
cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and with
original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed with banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Financial assets (cont.)
(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Trust commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Trust measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial
assets that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including
dividend income and interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This
information is shown under net gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their
fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund
managers using valuation techniques.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.

(c) Impairment of financial assets
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9 on the
reporting date.

Financial assets include loans and receivables, deposits, short-term deposits, and cash
and cash equivalents placed with reputable financial institutions. The Trust considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Trust assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Trust considers the
credit risk of a financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any
contractual cash flows from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more.
When a financial asset is unlikely to be recovered it is considered credit-impaired.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent
period, an asset’s quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant
increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from
lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off reduce the amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Trust measures ECL using the historical loss of the respective financial assets
and considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available,
including the following indicators: (a) the counterparty’s external credit rating and its
expected change; (b) actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of debtors, including changes in the payment pattern of debtors.

The Trust considers the 12-month ECL for the financial assets as minimal.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The Trust financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s
functional currency and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from translation at the year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised directly in the income statement.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in
the income statement.

2.6 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.7 Donations

Donation income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive the payment
is established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Allocations to charitable organisations and
community projects

Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects are charged to the income
statement and recognised as liabilities when the grant has been offered to and accepted by
the grantee and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the legal
and/or constructive obligation established.

Allocations awaiting payment that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at
the present value of expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.9 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds
which are not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable
purposes. These amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.10Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Trust if the Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Trust and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may
be individuals or entities.

2.11 Commodities

Commodities are measured at fair value through profit or loss under non-current assets in
the statement of financial position. The fair value or gain or loss is presented as surplus
from commodities in the income statement.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgement in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making
estimates and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted
by judgements and uncertainties, for which different amounts may be reported under a
different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

3.1 Recognition of allocations to charitable
organisations and community projects

The Trust requires significant judgement to determine when allocations to charitable
organisations and community projects are recognised as liabilities. In making this
judgement, the Trust performs due diligence on the grant application review process,
including assessing the grantees’ ability and willingness to honour the grant conditions, and
evaluating the likelihood of an outflow of resources to settle the obligations.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.2 Estimation of fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation technique as detailed in note
12.3(d). The Trust determines the fair values of these financial assets primarily based on the
net asset value of the funds and its interest held with reference to fund reports obtained
from fund managers and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of fair values is based on
management’s best estimates.

Where it is determined that the actual fair value is different from the estimated fair value
that were recorded, such differences will impact the surplus/(deficit) from investments and
derivatives and share of profits/(losses) of the joint venture in the period in which such a
determination is made.

4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

EQAFHBOT - Details of the joint venture are as follows:
EERAREHERA
EREE HEMAER FEEK Authorised and paid FELFR
Name of entity Country of incorporation Principal activities up capital Measurement method
HKJC Investment Trust Fund HEHS REREREBES TiE A fEm®
The Cayman Islands Investment in equities n/a Equity

HN6HA30H  ErEESRHEBEHERTInvestment
TrustEEFENERE LT :

and debt securities

The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in the Investment
Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

2023 2022
EREFEREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 58.2% 54.5%
ERESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 37.8% 42.2%
ERESEETRINEFNTE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 3.2% 2.6%
ERAEEEERAMEESERAT The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research
Foundation Limited 0.8% 0.7%
100.0% 100.0%
HEEBT in HK$ million 2023 2022
7HA1H At 1 July 32,581 36,665
EE Injection 765 4,324
BEE Redemption (5,001) (4,780)
FrisaR (E1R) Share of profits/(losses) 1,685 (3,628)
ERERE Transfer from investments 47 -
6 H30H At 30 June 30,077 32,581
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INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint venture as of 30 June is as follows:

4 BERINKRE (A) 4
SBATH6 A0 BNHMBEREENT |

2023 2022
EEEe FtEe
BER BHER
Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest
W (E5E) Income/(loss) 2,942 1,781 (6,287) (3,512)
X Expenses (165) (96) 212) (116)
MBI (E18) Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 2,777 1,685 (6,499) (3,628)
2AEWE S (EE) #%E Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2,777 1,685 (6,499) (3,628)
FREBEE Non-current assets
BRAFEEEBRESVRNMEEE Fair value through profit or loss
BE Equities
EEEL® Listed in Hong Kong 2,810 1,759 3,047 1,771
ERMIET Listed overseas 13,944 8,642 18,566 10,769
BRHES Debt securities
tmm Listed 19,796 11,296 21,954 11,761
LM Unlisted 15,136 8,379 13,922 7,123
fTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 463 261 440 230
nBEE Current assets
HiRBEE Other current assets 2,852 1,595 2,129 1,083
fTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 279 158 883 468
RERBELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 883 520 448 252
REEERE Total current assets 4,014 2,273 3,460 1,803
REEE Current liabilities
B S REMEMIRR Trade and other payables (3,767) (2,124) (680) (361)
THESMIA Derivative financial instruments (298) (169) (291) (154)
REBYKEERE Total current financial liabilities
(T BIEE 5 R EAA SRR (excluding trade and other payables) (298) (169) (291) (154)
FREEE Non-current liabilities
THEZRTA Derivative financial instruments (424) (240) (688) (361)
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BAREER R M AE

4 BEQXTANRE (&) 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

& & N FlInvestment TrustfTiFEEES - RBEMBEF  Debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 6.57% (2022: 5.48%)
HEBRFIZEE.57% (20224 : 5.48%)  BEHKFESZHM  for the joint venture under the Investment Trust. The weighted average of the maturities was

REFIIHBRBIR6EF (20224 1 55F) o 6 years (2022: 5 years).
2023 2022
BTREUTIEHFE : Underlying investments were denominated in the following
currencies:
ESyH United States Dollars (“USD”) 77% 81%
AR Renminbi (“RMB”) 4% 3%
/¢ Euro (“EUR”) 4% 2%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 3%
=] Japanese Yen (“JPY?”) 2% 1%
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 1% 1%
B £ EER Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 1% 1%
HithE#s Other currencies 8% 8%
100% 100%
~. VA =
5 RERTEEBIA 5 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT In HK$ million 2023 2022
IRBEE Non-current assets
FEEE-FLm Alternative investments — unlisted 24,522 23,029
RBEE Current assets
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments
- REINEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts - 1
RBEE Current liabilities
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments
- REINEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts (1) -
2023 2022
RERTESMIAUTIIEITE - Investments and derivatives were denominated in the
following currencies:
Eye uUsD 98% 99%
53 EUR 2% 1%
100% 100%
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6 INVESTMENT RETURNS

The Trust’s investments, including those included in the Investment Trust, were measured at
fair value, including differences not yet realised as at year-end. Changes in fair value during
the financial year were reflected in profit and loss. As such, they are susceptible to volatility

in capital markets.

Markets continue to be volatile as major central banks further tightened monetary conditions
to contain inflation, China faced difficulty with its economic reopening and elevated
geopolitical tensions. The Trust maintained a diversified portfolio and recorded a gain of

HK$3,674 million in the current financial year (2022: loss of HK$1,238 million).

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments

and derivatives, commodities, and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust.

7 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
7.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average of the effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 5.39% (2022:
2.08%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and the

weighted average of the maturities was 184 days (2022: 133 days).

2023 2022
EHERUTIEMINE ! Short-term deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
E UsD 90% 14%
BT HKD 10% 86%
100% 100%

72 RERBAEESEY

A A=ZEAUTHWERNMEFLIERANES
5.06% (2022%F : 1.11%) - FRMNREAEAEEE A F
BEEE  MEMNEFIHRAA39H (20224F : 51
B)e

7.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average of the effective interest rate on deposits with maturities of less than
three months was 5.06% (2022: 1.11%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated
their fair values and the weighted average of the maturities was 39 days (2022: 51 days).

2023 2022
FHAB=ZEAUTHNERATIEREITE : Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
EpH uUsD 66% 52%
BT HKD 34% 48%
100% 100%
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8 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which
allocations have been made by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected
to be paid may be greater than 12 months after the reporting period. Based on management
estimates, as at 30 June, the allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid as
follows:

BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
R—FR Within one year 5,980 6,126
MRE_ZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 11,668 9,851
RE=F1% After the third year 5,716 5,003

23,364 20,980
HEAZANERBRENSE Present value impact on allocations awaiting payment (755) (387)
HESZ AR RWEE Present value of allocations awaiting payment 22,609 20,593

BRNBEENRBRTFEANZZHENEEME - I
A g2EE LR FEET R E FT R o

9 E&

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of individual projects
and may differ from the expected schedule presented above.

9 FUND

BBET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7H1H At 1 July 43,556 46,275
wEe (7)) Wak Transfer from/(to) income statement 1,371 (2,719)
6H30H At 30 June 44,927 43,556
Eer AR E S HNTRER - The balance represents the residual value of the fund.
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10 TAXATION

No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong
profits tax.

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust is related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries. It is
also related to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and
The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai Kwun Culture
and Arts Company Limited, as the Trustees of the Trust are also the Club’s Stewards and
the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Trust is also related to The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Equine Welfare Research Foundation Limited as the Club is the sole member of this
company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with related parties, except for
those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

11.1 Operating costs

Operating costs included management expenses of HK$268 million (2022 HK$241 million)
for administrative and support services provided by the Club.
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11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)
11.2Loans
Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current
assets was HK$30 million (2022: HK$30 million) made by the Trust to KSCGC representing
the balance of an interest-free, unsecured loan repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
of the loans approximated their fair values.

11.3 Donations
(a) Donations to CPS
The Trust donated HK$211 million (2022: HK$155 million) to CPS.

(b) Donations from the HKJC Group

The Trust recorded donations of HK$4,605 million (2022: HK$4,940 million) from the HKJC
Group.

(c) Donation to KSCGC
In 2022, the Trust donated HK$16 million to KSCGC.

11.4 Receivable from the HKJC Group

At the end of the reporting period, the amount receivable from the HKJC Group was
HK$3,852 million (2022: HK$4,331 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The
balance mainly included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations from the HKJC
Group amounting to HK$3,067 million (2022: HK$3,300 million), which will be gradually
received within six months after the end of the reporting period; and (b) HK$776 million
(2022: HK$1,027 million) for the donation to the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
(“WKCDA”) for the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will be received based on payments
by the Trust to the WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to mutual agreement with
the Club. Out of the receivable from the HKJC Group, HK$349 million (2022: HK$476
million) was classified as a non-current asset as this amount was not expected to be
received within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as a
current asset.

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
12.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities, including financial instruments recognised in the statement
of financial position (“directly held financial instruments) and investments in its joint venture,
expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management strategy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Trust’s financial performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments
to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Club’s Investment Office and external professional
fund managers.

95



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAREER R M AE

12 MBEREE (&)
121 HEEREE (&)

FERENZEREFSEREZESHUNRERE
REBREERES  ETRBER - RERHIRIES
BEREBEETTRRN—HD - EEESRIES
HESHREER  WENESTERSBI RIS - MU
ETRERBER -

(a) TEEER
() E¥ER

EREBRERUIIEHENRERIZAAERL
BAF2S - Mo BUSENERRE

ERESNEEREBIEURARBIFE - B
BEETHE  FIERBITRSEBEN - A8k
E¥ER  DEEERTSESTLENRERESR
B -

AZMEKR  EHE  ARERBEBERBTAE B

B5%  EEHMFAETSRENHZITIENERT
HESERRBInvestment TrustiBES R T BN R
REERE DRI, H6,90088 7T ~ 6,30088 7T
%2,6008 8 7T (20224 : 4,2008 BT - 4,50088
TR 1,6008BT) °

(i) EiEEE

ERERRERTSEREDMISSRNER o @
REBERTY SSRERERSERENEET
B FUSHEESASETSERAR - BEREHE
BSRR R NG A FEEEBERFIRN TS
EET -

RERER  BEERLEA THRS%  EHMHAET
BREHHEBTENERT  EEESFARBEEE
BEANERITAERKEInvestment TrustifE@£ R T A
WEZENSHMIENATFEEZES M BIEM, &
D12482,600 88 7T (20224F : 111/85,100E87T) &
5{82,00088 T (20224 : 6182,70088T) °

(iii) R == B

MEEBREERT SRS MBS ENRR - o
ALATFEENEZARRASAEN XA - AFEE
NEEBRETSNERED SRV BEEBERKD
HEkR - BERENZAMAIEHENRED - 5|3
BREERARERERBNER - HNERESE
EANGERE  FURKAZZLAFEERESR
EFEEM -

ERREEIEMNS0EY  FHMMAEUERZIER
FENERT  FEEESFARBEEFENERT
ENBEHREREIEING, 10088 T (20224 © &0
2,000887T) * ®EInvestment TrustifEi£m T A
NBEHBEERE TE3E7,40088 T (20225 : TE®
2{29,70088T) °

96

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)

Risk management is carried out by the Club’s Investment Office under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment
constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund with the aim of
managing investment risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD
is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered minimal. The
remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and
bonds.

At the end of the reporting period, if EUR, RMB and JPY had strengthened/weakened
against the HKD by 5%, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus and
equity for the year would have increased/decreased by HK$69 million, HK$63 million and
HK$26 million respectively (2022: HK$42 million, HK$45 million and HK$16 million) from
underlying financial instruments of the Investment Trust.

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Trust is exposed
to market price risk as the value of its equity investment and alternative investments will
decline if market prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Trust’s equity for the year would have increased/decreased
by HK$1,226 million (2022: HK$1,151 million) from directly held financial instruments
and HK$520 million (2022: HK$627 million) from underlying financial instruments of the
Investment Trust as a result of changes in fair value of its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This
can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future
cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Trust is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has
significant investments that are interest bearing.

If there had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the Trust's surplus and equity would have been HK$41 million
higher (2022: HK$20 million higher) from directly held financial instruments and HK$374
million lower (2022: HK$297 million lower) from the underlying financial instruments of the
Investment Trust.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(iii) Interest rate risk (cont.)

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and by
investment benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-
HKD/USD exposure. Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified
globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark
duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of fixed and floating-rate
instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations
as they fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a
price close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet
exceptional needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests
primarily in liquid financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that
all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the
Trust and under the Investment Trust as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity
buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2023 2022
3EA 3fEA 3fEA 3fEA
HFUT UEE1E 18N E HUT HMER1E  1FBE
Up to >3 months Over wE Up to >3 months Over k]
BEAR in HK$ million 3 months  to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
EREERE Held by the Trust
FITETBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EEESER: 0k E0 Allocations awaiting payment 23,364 - - 23,364 20,980 - - 20,980
Investment Trust’¥5  Held under the Investment Trust
LURRBEEZER Net-settled derivative financial
fTETBas liabilities 33 53 172 258 28 53 361 442
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.1Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

As at 30 June 2023, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding gross-settled
derivatives held by the Trust and under the Investment Trust was HK$8,860 million (2022:
HK$15,161 million). The table below analyses the outstanding gross-settled derivatives as at
30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
buckets based on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which are different from the carrying
amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial position.

2023 2022
3fEA 3f@A 3EA 3f@A
HUT HUEZ1E 1ENE HFUT UEE1E  1EHME
Up to >3 months Over Fabr) Up to >3 months Over #a%E
BEAER in HK$ million 3 months  to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
EREEeEE Held by the Trust
HEEENTETA Gross-settled derivatives
Fih Outflows (222) - - (222) (108) - - (108)
RA Inflows 221 - - 221 109 - - 109
Investment Trust’¥5F  Held under the Investment Trust
REBETETR Gross-settled derivatives
Fith Outflows (7,817) (700) (121)  (8,638) (12,197) (2,850 6)  (15,053)
A Inflows 7,854 709 121 8,684 12,487 2,890 6 15,383

(c) FERER
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(c) Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able
or willing to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured at
amortised costs (such as loans and receivable, deposits and cash and cash equivalents) fall
due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities carried
at FVTPL fall due.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits and cash and cash equivalents are only placed with financial
institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2023, the Trust’s maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amount of such assets recognised in its statements of financial position less the amount of
cash on hand as defined in note 2.4.

Management considered the 12-month expected loss of these receivables as being minimal
as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022. The Trust made no write-offs or provisions for these
receivables during the year.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.2 Capital risk management

The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern so as to maintain its charitable contributions as a major public and
community benefactor; and also to support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is the same as the Fund shown in its statement of
financial position, to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the
form of donations.

12.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as
stated in notes 2.4(a)(i) and 2.11 by recognising the following fair value measurement
hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement.

Level 1:  fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2:  fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and
liabilities, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3:  fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow

analysis) in which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs.
The most significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of
alternative investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued
based on information derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from
respective fund managers, and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(a) The following table presents the Trust’s assets and liabilities that were
measured at fair value as at 30 June.

2023 2022
A &Rl & 53 HazE & Bl & 5l2 & 5I3 #a%E
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE /(88) Assets/(liabilities)
BHEE (AR) Financial assets/(liabilities)
RERITEEMIEAE  Investments and derivatives
FERE Alternative investments - - 24,522 24,522 - - 23,029 23,029
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - §)] - (1) - 1 - 1
- (1) 24,522 24,521 - 1 23,029 23,030
FUBEE Non-financial assets
KRB m Commodities 718 - - 718 - - - -

FRESHNBREREHRERNEH BN BRE
EH  BRALFEEAERBINEAREY -

HZE2023F6H30H 1L KX202256A30RLEFE -
AESE=ZBAFEEFERRD 2 B30 maEE -

(b) RBRFIHHREFE L FEBHETES

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels for the years ended 30
June 2023 and 30 June 2022.

(b) The movements of the Trust’s balance of assets and liabilities

BEERBELZHEHNT . measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:
BHEET in HK$ million 2023 2022
7A1H At 1 July 23,029 19,934
EREFERERN NS A Total gains recognised in income statement 1,703 2,327
[N Purchases 4,224 3,888
HE Sales (4,434) (3,120)
6 H30H At 30 June 24,522 23,029
FRFAREREFERERITESR T ARGH Total gains for the year included in income statement and
Tkl presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,703 2,327
FARERBRSFENEERBET AKRERL Total gains for the year included in income statement for
FERERITESRM T AR NSHEEE assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 1,286 1,663

(c) 20236 HA30H K2022F6H30H - i1 &
AR B2 P9 49 2\ B (B B E A B 12 (B 455 75 %
AZZuT

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 were as follows:

kil fRERIS BRBWAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE i
Financial assets/liabilities

BHIIESLD WHREERE ABRER

Foreign exchange forward contracts

100

Discounted cash flow

Observable exchange rates
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June

WA EBEEIERMT : 2022 were as follows:
Eochid] fRERKT BEREFBEBAZY 8 E (hnEF9)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
MkER afE
Financial assets/liabilities
BhEESRE EEFE" i A TiE A
Real estate fund investments Net asset value** n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFE" 8 A TER
Private equity fund investments Net asset value** n/a n/a
HHESKRE BEEFEE TEA TiE A
Hedge fund investments Net asset value™ n/a n/a
REEERE EEFE" 8 A i A
Private credit investments Net asset value** n/a n/a

Y EERBPIBRBSHRENFFEIRBRTSE
TEE  KERENEEDRESESEEMRER
HNENESRENCERRERETARETERS
EBHRMEBEEMEE  FEESRAMEREE
FEAZERENATEER-

+ ERESRTISKRE R6A308 EEEREEE
BAASHNERGAETEEGTTRNERT B
eyt EEERMIREELREZIOE120H B
BEMINETRBISREN D FEEMGT - £H
EEEECHAEEIA3I BN TEMEE
BZEREN4IB1EE6 A0 IR ER
RAHEHAZE  UFEAZSEREHEARBERR
TEREZEBCENELLETEER  E— ST ER
PR (NMMKE)4B1HE6A30 B IR ER -

BBRRRA2ZH/ABN6A0ENREATEE -
ZERENMESABEEBRRURERN TSR
REMRRAMEFEL  BEEZSEREZRA/L -

(e) R2023%6 530 A K2022%6H30H * FrA
R UBRHMBEEERREALFE
B8R -

*

The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded
in an active market. These have been valued based on information derived from
individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that
the reported net asset values represent a fair value of the captioned investments.

Given the volatility in financial markets, as of 30 June, management have enhanced the
estimation of the fair value of certain level 3 investments with valuation only available to
investors 90-120 days after the financial year end, recognizing that the actual valuation
when available may differ from the estimate. In particular, Management have utilized
the last available valuation as of 31 March, adjusted for cash flows into and out of the
investments from 1 April — 30 June, and further assessed and adjusted, if necessary,
for the estimated return from 1 April — 30 June by utilizing the historical statistical
relationship between such investments with global developed market equities index.

The fair value of the investments reported in the statement of financial position is
as of 30 June. The valuation of these investments will vary, based on its business
performance and prevailing market and economic conditions, until the realization of the
investments.

(e) At 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, no non-financial assets or liabilities

were carried at fair value except for commodities.
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
REGRESBR

BETE BEEESEEETESESEEMR TS50 Over the past decade, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust has approved an average
BERTEZERHERR  BETHERE]  [#BE  of HK$5 billion a year in charitable and community donations. These donations are broadly
Al TeesmE 4 | [ b | W KEIEE - 2022/23%F  grouped into four major areas: Community Services; Education and Training; Medical and
B ERESCEMNBRAEN7IESET » XFH  Health; and Sports, Recreation and Culture. In 2022/23, the Trust approved a total of HK$7.3
47 AEERMEIER - HEEERFHINE1032120  billion in donations to 247 charitable and community projects. Details are provided on pages
= 103 to 120.

APPROVED HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS (HK$M)
ERERSLECTESEEHMNBER(BEEET)

1,851

1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000

Community services Sports, recreation and culture

¥ amn BE  ERRI

Education and training Medical and health
HERIEI BaEELE

HK$ ; | 3 billion 2 I ;
Approved Charitable Donations Charitable and Community Projects
T3 RERCEHEERR ZRERMEER
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=R COMMUNITY SERVICES

EREFEREERESTENE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BTEARTRGEHREN AERX-Urban To implement the “Urban Graduation Approach”: a systematic model to 592,750

Graduation Approach]  EEREAEERBEE alleviate poverty in metropolitan areas for five years, building the family

MHEENEERENERRERIREE 5 capacity of transitional housing residents and lifting them out of poverty

SEHEF

BIT—BEHEESETESTENGE > hEE To carry out a Trust-initiated Project to support caregivers for the 290,840

ERMIE  AHAEF elderly for five years

TEAZEETESTE  AREMIESE To support the 2.5-year final phase of the Trust-initiated Jockey Club 170,400

e |ETREEEFTINAIRE B Community eHealth Care Project for the elderly

MEH

WREBR URATZEZHLAE BmBRE IR Supplementary grant to expand the scale of the Philanthropy for Better 27,300

HERIE2023 K RE Cities Forum 2023

EFSHERAK I RETIREMEE LB Jockey Club Digital Tablet and Online Support Programme for

£ Homebound Elderly

ETHERDZ I EREMEE EZEFE ZE To implement the Jockey Club Digital Tablet and Online Support 72,280

EXREZBFIREMRA LEEETEELH Programme for Homebound Elderly to reconnect them with the

BHE community through tablet computers and online activities

BB 12 7 37 0 B 4 Bl R RR e Improvement of COVID-19 Prevention for Residential Care Homes

EBEREMERENESENI R EHRRIEE To support the purchase of anti-epidemic mobile cabins and air purifiers 29,110

BistEl] > BB2E1, 143 S BER KRR in 1,143 residential care homes to improve COVID-19 prevention in

FREkERERBIES collaboration with the Social Welfare Department

EFENEMARSENES Jockey Club COVID-19 Emergency Fund

BET ESSHEMXABSEDHES | IE To inject additional funding into the Jockey Club COVID-19 Emergency 1,970

B EXEBREBESIE HHIREZEN Fund which supports hard-hit groups via five community organisations

BEp iEaw::

BHATHRE FERINREETERLRER To continue support for home-bound, frail and vulnerable elderly to 800

18T R B RIER receive tide-over meals following the fifth wave of COVID-19.

ESSESENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund

REBSEYNT To provide assistance to:

BENRRBEBEREHBSLBREN T A 19 families and individuals to meet urgent or special needs arising from 1,126

RERERIAL crises or unexpected circumstances

SEHAKESARKLEFEN=TNERE 34 families affected by natural disaster or large-scale emergency and 1,660
crises

LEYTHIBERRNIMERA » KOHEE Two patients to meet medical expenses for a fatal disease or serious 34

ETES B ER TN

illness requiring medical treatment or surgical operation
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wemEs Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council
BEFBHARLE OIWA Limited
BEBREREAENE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged
MEFLEREE South Kwai Chung Social Service
HEBHRERKEH O Christian Family Service Centre
SEAEHNEANEERAT Ngau Tau Kok Kaifong Welfare Association Limited
EREBYHLEFY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
BERRHERADT Hong Kong Women Development Association Limited
EBHAE Caritas—Hong Kong
hERLZHEERARE Kowloon Women’s Organisations Federation Limited
EEER Pok Oi Hospital
RKERHERAE Tin Shui Wai Women Association Limited
BEEKRE The University of Hong Kong
BIT—EAHNFNESTE > AEBETE To implement a pilot project to engage and support hard-to-reach 188,860
ANEENERRE elderly in six districts for four years
HEEIE Social Welfare Department
E-—SEREAMESREIABESIERTHIRENE To extend the Jockey Club Facilities Enhancement Scheme for 163,450
R EREEl | BEEBT7I0ER S ETHE Pandemic Preparedness at Residential Care Homes in collaboration
BEIE with the Social Welfare Department, which is implementing ventilation
improvement work at 730 residential care homes
ERBHAE Caritas—Hong Kong
HEE Heep Hong Society
BERBETGS SAHK
RE=[R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BEREBHLEFS Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
BEEKRE The University of Hong Kong
ET—EHUEEENRE BETRBESLE To carry out a three-year intervention programme to support students 144,470
BN AGTE > BE=F with Attention-Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder
BEBRTEEEYEFY Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
BERELEHE Hong Kong Playground Association
EREBYRLEFY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
BEBNEHRHRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
EBEEHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
ET—EHFEUGHELEERBERMRE To launch an 18-month initiative to accelerate young people’s recovery 80,930
- AE+T N EA from the pandemic
ERLFEMERRAR Hong Kong Adventure Corps Limited
EEMEEER Hong Kong Air Cadet Corps
ERELEEHE Hong Kong Army Cadets Association
EBAt+FE Hong Kong Red Cross
EBEEEEHE Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps
BEBRENRNERE Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
BRAREEHAY The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
EREFESE The Scout Association of Hong Kong
T —EHN\EGREEEENMETE > L To launch a two-year programme by eight uniformed groups to nurture 45,210

BEFLFNRAE T R REEE

youth leadership and commitment to serve
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EREEE

The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

ETESSECTH#HRRTEE S AR To carry out Jockey Club Blue Bus Together We Grow Project Phase 36,080
BENNRERELFRE2EXERY 0 B Two: Holistic Service Supporting Children and Youth with Incarcerated
=5 Parents for three years
BEREBHRKE Hong Kong Christian Service
ETHRKEETE  REEZERRZEN To carry out a Reaching-Out and Bridging-In Project: Community-based 31,480
ERFERMHEEBALAEZEXERL > AHM Holistic Service Supporting At-risk Families With Age 0-2 Children for
F four years
HEREBRERBRENREE Renovation Scheme for Self-financing Elderly Homes
BHEBEIARESIERESEAATER A To fund The Hong Kong Polytechnic University to implement a 29,500
BM=F  RZBEI1EAPDEEBRFEELE technology programme for residential care homes for the elderly for
NWEERBZEREETRAEXEIRNTT three years and to support feasibility studies for the renovation of 11
L2515 self-financing residential care homes for the elderly operated by small

to medium-sized non-governmental organisations
ERPKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BIT-—BREEEFRELEEARELERE To implement a project to improve social capital and the well-being of 23,380
WEtE - RE=F residents in sub-divided units for three years.
BEBPIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
ETHRKRGETE  REEZERRZEN To carry out a Reaching-Out and Bridging-In Project: Community-based 23,040
EREXERHHEBEARZAXERLE  AHM Holistic Service Supporting At-risk Families With Age 0-2 Children for
F four years
ERBHAE Caritas—Hong Kong
HIT—BAEEFFREHLEEAR FUEE To implement a project to improve social capital and the well-being of 21,060
WEtEl  BEI=F residents in sub-divided units for three years
- BB Yan Chai Hospital
EIT—ERAEEIFXELEELRARGULRE To implement a project to improve social capital and the well-being of 20,850
WEtEl > BEI=F residents in sub-divided units for three years
EBHEARE Hong Kong Metropolitan University
ARXRBRUHEAREABERESRE A= To provide peri-natal mental health support for parents for 3.5 years 20,310
F¥
EBEBBROULELCAITEHERAR HK Social Welfare Sector Heart to Heart Joint Action Limited
(BEBBITHRELSEBE) (HKSAR Community Projects List)
EMEVHBERFFEAIVEL IREEFEE To fund the setting up and first-year operation costs of the welfare 20,000
X sector platform “Heart to Heart”
EREEHE St James’ Settlement
EIT—BAR=FMNE UXEEBEENR To implement a three-year project to support chronically homeless 18,650
MEEE people on Hong Kong Island
BEBNEHRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
ANBRERIEXE  AH=F To provide anti-bullying support for primary schools for three years 18,460
BNREARBRERERAT Asian Academy of Family Therapy Limited
BIT—EAH=FME  UXEmMEHEEM To carry out a three-year programme to support families in complex 18,220
BEME RN RE conflict situations
MBEZRBRAA Harmony House Limited
BT HAR=FNXETE  UREREFE To carry out a three-year support programme for early identification of 16,180

BEEZRABHRE

families with at-risk child abuse issues
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EBRNE AR The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

(BEBBRITHRELSEBGE) (HKSAR Community Projects List)

HIT—EBAH=FME  UZXE+HRZE=+ To pilot a three-year project to support the well-being of ethnic minority 13,720

MR RS EN SO RE youth aged 15-24

EREREEHE SAHK

T ENEGREREERKE RZEA R RE To support technology enhancement at Siu Lam Integrated 13,600
Rehabilitation Services Complex

BERRICAR Hong Kong Shue Yan University

BE-—BAH=FMNa HUESEANESE To fund a three-year project to develop a caregiver resource portal 12,700

BREREBEATHBEERRERTS for the elderly and disabled in collaboration with the Social Welfare
Department

Rttt E The Salvation Army

BIT—EBAH=FME > UZXERBEBEREN To carry out a three-year support programme for children with divorced 11,900

F& parents

FERHEESE New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

TRNMEGRERERE NERARERE To support technology enhancement at Siu Lam Integrated 10,980
Rehabilitation Services Complex

RE=[R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

TRNMEGRERERE NERARE R To support technology enhancement at Siu Lam Integrated 10,980
Rehabilitation Services Complex

RE=[R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

BT BAERREERERRMENXES To carry out a three-year support programme for parents with special 10,530

2 RH=F needs children

HEEAE Social Welfare Department

T EEHARENIPEESEBTHETHIHA To support junior secondary students from underprivileged families to 10,500

BiTeenst &/ | participate in the Government’s Strive and Rise Programme

BEBRLZPLHEERAT Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres Limited

HIT-—BAREFRZLMEMZNTS > AH= To carry out a three-year programme for women from disadvantaged 10,480

F backgrounds at Southern District

TTHAGEHERLERAF Yuen Long Town Hall Management Committee Ltd

(BEBBITHRELSE B E) (HKSAR Community Projects List)

RYY-METAGEBFES  LHTEH=F To set up Y-META Integrated Youth Square and launch a three-year 10,220

MEFSHER R ERTE youth engagement and career-exposure programme

RBREFEKR Home and Youth Affairs Bureau

(BEBBTHRELE S E) (HKSAR Community Projects List)

EYPEBEFE  AH—F To support the Hong Kong Youth Festival for one year 10,000

BERBEE Caritas —Hong Kong

BHAEEESMRUBARERIZENG To fund emotional and social support programmes for men in need for 9,610

2 AH=F three years

EBRLZPLREERAT Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres Limited

TERIENFREEBAZR  AH=F To support new-arrival, low-income women with children in North 8,910
District for three years

EBARERME Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

EBUAEEESURUBERERIXENET To fund emotional and social support programmes for men in need for 8,200

g BY=F

three years

106



= (TExT)

Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$ 000)

BEEAZ
ARBERRETEETERERARE A=
F

The University of Hong Kong

To conduct project evaluation and a landscape study on school bullying 7,610
for three years

BSRBARLDR
BHURRENRSEFHESSHIRB O

OIWA Limited

To renovate the OIWA Jockey Club Social Service Centre in Tung 7,370
Chung

MEZRARAT
BOAERESHEABAREIIENG
g RH=F

Harmony House Limited

To fund emotional and social support programmes for men in need for 7,330
three years

EBAE
ETESSECLTHMFRRTEEZH AR
BEANRERTLFREZEAXERE - &
H=%F

The University of Hong Kong

To carry out Jockey Club Blue Bus Together We Grow Project Phase 6,150
Two: Holistic Service Supporting Children and Youth with Incarcerated
Parents for three years

hEHEBHEHERBEESARAA

Kowloon Federation of Associations (Community Services)
Foundation Ltd

HEEFHWE  UEEVRERITHREHLE To renovate new premises for the relocation of its service centre in Sau 4,610
A Mau Ping

BEBRERLE Hong Kong PHAB Association

B URARENESSGEREBERERO To renovate the Jockey Club PHAB Fitness Centre in Tai Po 4,070
BEERED Chain of Charity Movement

BT B R AR E R BRSO To renovate its service centre in Shek Kip Mei 2,720
BFBHADGE Helping Hand

BHUREENEEESSHTFMAEEEE To renovate the Hong Kong Jockey Club Helping Hand Zhaoging Home 2,570

BEERE

for the Elderly in Zhaoging

RERRUERBERTHE
B H AR AE ORI EH O

Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association
To renovate its Community Centre in Tai Wo Hau 2,140

BEFRDH Voltra Limited

BB H b E 2R To fund its Glocal Leader Training Programme 3,265
MBZRERAF Harmony House Limited

BYHEIBE@A T2 To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project 3,246
B ARE Mother’s Choice Limited

BYEBIMEZ X ERE To fund its Pregnant Girls Services 3,229
ERLAYERHES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

BB HREAERHEE To fund its Family Mediation Service Project 3,179
FREMBRAF Adventure-Ship Limited

BEHE BT ERHRETE To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project 3,161
NEZEESERAA Bo Charity Foundation Limited

BOHEREREHLEXEE To fund its Food Angel community support programme for the elderly 3,158
EEg Hong Chi Association

BBYEIE N E PR A L RS A A D ET

To fund its Enhancing Employability of People with Intellectual 3,147
Disabilities through Social Enterprise Projects
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BERELSHE Hong Kong Playground Association

BEEIFEEEE |58 To fund its Unusual Academy 3,118

RREEEBEHE RtERD T Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited

BOEABEUHREEFTENATBREIE To fund a support programme for the underprivileged and to support 3,077

WEBRBREEN BN EEA LRI A 8 infants’ pre-school activities to provide access to talent development

K ik opportunities

EEgReE Jockey Club CADENZA Hub

BYERERRELEHEEE To fund its Outreach Programme for Promoting Health for Older People 2,984

ittt E The Salvation Army

BPHIER RE IREXERHL To fund its Family-friendly Community-Based Project 2,965

RIRE B ERRA T Make a Difference Institute Limited

BHHEHESE[AITRE 2k To fund its Jockey Club Make A Difference School 2,963

EFSEEE Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing

BEHKER CEEENBEEEIIRTEXE To fund its Caregiver Training and Community Support in Dementia 2,935

BR % Care

EBREEEEE Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps

BB EZ I REE To fund its Core Training Programmes 2,912

ERARSE The Society for the Aid & Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers

BHHEEHER REE S5 E To fund its Peer Counsellor and Internship Scheme 2,898

EmBEERAT Suicide Prevention Services Limited

BOEEWmHRIT - MERERE To fund its Outreach Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly 2,877

BEBREEMNE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

BB HE HEFEME S To fund its Inclusive Art Project 2,869

LHEAREER Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired

BYHEERRE ) ZREE ERB To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually Impaired Children 2,846

EHEEE The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

BB E NGB To fund its Project OASIS 2,682

EREREEARNE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

BEHBRE D - RISREMFESTE To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice 2,679

BEREYRBESERAA The Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Care Foundation Limited

BOHEREFEAEYZIERKETE To fund its support and education programme for the elderly regarding 2,430
the use of medicine

ERAL+FE Hong Kong Red Cross

BYEA+FEFEMRIREEZRTE To fund its Red Cross Youth Leaders and Trainers Development project 2,264

BEEYEBR RS L ERES Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service—Hong Kong

BB H B R RIRA To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network 2,232

ERTIERER Agency for Volunteer Service

BEHEEA R TAGE To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank 2,223

ERRBPAGES Hong Kong Blind Union

BB H&EE 5 B2 To fund its E-Learning For All Project 2,130

IERBESEIERS Association for Engineering & Medical Volunteer Services

B EBEEREIIRERL To fund its Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation 2,092
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Bee

The Comfort Care Concern Group

BEHFERETE To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved 1,952

EEHARE The Friends of Scouting

BOEA R IBX 2RITE To fund its Know the Future —Non-engaged Youth Counselling Scheme 1,945

BERLEFEHEE The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association

BOHHEHIBEAREEs | BRERGE To fund its Intergenerational Responsible Citizenship Project 1,942

HBFDZE The Samaritans

BBHEEEBERE L0 RE To fund its Ageing Well with Youth Intergenerational Programme 1,872

BAGEREHEHRD S.K.H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre

BEHERTERAETE To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better 1,850
Community

EBRERME Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

BBHER ZAIF RETE To fund its The Bridge to Competence Project 1,840

BHBERERREY Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children

BEHEIRE - RE - HER 53 To fund its HOPE — Parents’ Networking Project 1,831

RELEGERAA Hans Andersen Club Limited

BEHEHBAETENRIFTE To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O 1,774

b3 TREATS

BOHRERFVFLRABARERTE To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in Hong 1,750
Kong

FIEEFREGERATE Against Child Abuse Limited

BUWEEZEH I REFH To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting Project 1,572

EREBEERAEL International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)

BOHIANEIT — TERER |58 To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids 1,450

FERFFEARERAT China Coast Community Limited

BOWESGREHSRERDNR R ERE To fund its Subsidy Package for Comprehensive Social Security 1,427
Allowance Recipients

EARBAERLERS The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong

BEER L BRAEE To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project 1,426

EREAEREAGEERAA Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

BOHIRMEAEIVIUSZEBLERERERS To fund its ARISE IV project, supporting ethnic minority children and 1,365

D youth

HEZXERBH O Christian Family Service Centre

BEHBEE ¢« BXRE{TME To fund its Walk with YOU —Family Cohesion project 1,345

ERRENEEEY The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

BRHEMEMHHESTE To fund its Community Level Sexuality Education Programme 1,277

ERRERES Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children

BPHIE % - BIREBFTE(V) To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase V) 1,258

ERERAEEDHS The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

BOHIPEEAS |- BERREXERS To fund its SHARE Project—A Comprehensive Support Service for 1,103

Families of Children with Down Syndrome
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HeE Sik Sik Yuen

BOHIEED « REEHXIGHE To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well-being of 1,099
Elders

MEELE Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association

BYEMERREE L EBERRE To fund its Community Rehabilitation Service for Pneumoconiosis 1,054
Patients and Their Family Members

ERAEEREE Street Sleepers Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated

BOHEFTEREZR To fund its Wanchai Homeless People Shelter 1,000

EREEL Chung Sing Benevolent Society

BYHEIBELEE | KGE2EHE To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project 933

EESRNHUESEEFL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre

BOWEERSERTHETE To fund its Adventure Based Counselling Programme for Youth in Hong 848
Kong
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BB KIEd EDUCATION AND TRAINING

EREFEAEERESTENE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
EN-—EHEEETESTENLRAETESR To organise a Trust-initiated Project—professional development 163,900
R5tE - AH=F+@EA initiatives for the social welfare sector for three years and ten months

EW—EART N \BANESSHIS 5 IES To organise an 18-month Jockey Club Joy of e-Reading programme to 72,978
2 UAREHEERELARERNF « NE promote e-book reading in all publicly-funded primary and secondary

EEETFEHE schools during the pandemic

HEMEAREES R ESSIEIHRES | To set up two new scholarships (The Hong Kong Jockey Club 4,020
MIBLPAERBERANRES | BH= Chairman’s Scholarship, Striding On Scholarship and Undergraduate

F UREFBAINARNRESHEREE - Scholarship) for three years and to enrich award coverage of current

AEME scholarships for two years

BRNHBRERQA Yew Chung College of Early Childhood Education Limited

HAT[E o 2h o BIFTRIE—H - LURBEFEY To implement Phase Two of the CoolPlay Project for four years to 64,620
RETRZEXNZ2EMNEED - HHNE nurture exploratory learning in disadvantaged kindergarteners

BN BZBRERA T Yew Chung College of Early Childhood Education Limited
ANMREEIFEEETERBEHRAEERNE To carry out professional development on inclusive practices for early 59,200
XBETTE ABM=F+@A childhood educators for three years and ten months

BHE Correctional Services Department

EEERALTHHERE  AHESF To enhance education support for prison inmates for five years 43,000
Rttt E The Salvation Army

RYRBEIEERTENBEHEEENS To carry out professional development on inclusive practices for early 17,120
XBESTE ABM=F=@A childhood educators for three years and three months

BEREBHERKE Hong Kong Christian Service

HIT[E o sh o BIFTRIE—H - LUREFEY To implement Phase Two of the CoolPlay Project for four years to 10,110
RETRZXZBENED » RPTEF nurture exploratory learning in disadvantaged kindergarteners

EREI KRS The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

ARUESERERERE AINERERM To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Healthy Built Environment 10,000
&

BEKE The University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[UFEXTEE ARERER To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Scalable and Sustainable 10,000
& Photonic Manufacturing

BEANEAE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
ARUEBEESES[HRREKIANERZREME To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Convection and 10,000
= Precipitation

BEEBPXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ARUESS[HEETHEFRHEE | AIRER To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Integration of Machine 10,000
ZiRMHRE Learning and Symbolic Reasoning

BB T AE City University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[EEHTm ANERERETE To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Smart City 10,000
ERBEEAE Hong Kong Baptist University

ARUVEESE[HETERHHE [ARERE To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Neuronal Circuit Dynamics 10,000
RMHZE
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BHEAE
RRUBFERAINBEXEMEIANERE
REE

The University of Hong Kong

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Innovative Medical 10,000
Imaging Research

BHEAE
ARUBFES(EEERFY AR ERZRM
&

The University of Hong Kong

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Quantitative Remote 10,000
Sensing

BEEKRE The University of Hong Kong

ARVESE[ NE2MF AREREREXE To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Mechanomaterials 10,000
BERPKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ARVEBEESE[AAEELREIARERER To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Personalised Cancer 9,990
i Medicine

ERETIARE
ARUBFSE[—H#ETYE |ANBRERHY
&

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of 2D Quantum Materials 9,990

E LN
ARUBFE[FEERAZ AIRERZRM
X&

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Computational Genomics 9,970

EREI RS The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
ARVESE[ETEMIANEREREXE To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Quantum Technology 9,950
EBEI RS The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

ARUESE[ERABERE I AINERER
(534

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Genomic Healthcare 9,650

EHEIARE
ARUBESE[HBRE2ERGERRE IAINE
RERMXE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Machine Learning and 9,600
Computer Vision

EEHH AR
ARIUBFE[EREVKCE AR BERERM
X&

City University of Hong Kong
To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Circular Bio-economy 9,410

BREET AL
RRUBSE[EFREME | AINERER
(532

City University of Hong Kong

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Energy and Materials 9,350
Physics

EREBRRBE

BORBBEIEZETEANRREHRBEERNE
¥BREE AH=F=M@A

Hong Kong Christian Service

To carry out professional development on inclusive practices for early 6,960
childhood educators for three years and three months

BEEBAE
ARIBFEERAKRBERIXZARIANE
BRERMHAXE

The University of Hong Kong

To support setting up of the JC STEM Lab of Smart Cyber-Physical 5,820
Industrial Systems

EREBERLEFS
RNRBEBETEEETHERBESHEEENE
KEBRE AP=F=MEA

Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

To carry out professional development on inclusive practices for early 5,300
childhood educators for three years and three months
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Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$ 000)
EBHE Caritas—Hong Kong
ANRBEIEERTENREREEENSE To carry out professional development on inclusive practices for early 3,360
XBESTE ANME=M@A childhood educators for two years and three months
BB AE R R BRA A AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited
BB EHAFSEIBR LR - BINRET &l To fund its AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme 1,993
BERARRYEEY Hong Kong Parent Education Association
BUHILERE |IRR#ABTE To fund its “Family Embrace” Parent Education Programme 1,697
EEHBEE T E Life Education Activity Programme
B ESKRHBARE To fund its Special Needs Programme 736
BEEEUEERALHE Direction Association for the Handicapped
BPHIEmmAEE « REEOA 53 To fund its Hopeful Life Project 664
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BEFEE MEDICAL AND HEALTH

EREFEXEERESTENE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

EARMER IR B R R 55 bR To establish a global health institute in Hong Kong 643,300

EMEHERRENEE NEIIER To organise capacity building programmes for epidemic response 500,000

BB ERHENM R To fund research into emerging diseases and preparedness 400,000

BT HHEZSETESTENEETE - U To launch a five-year Trust-initiated Project to develop primary care 355,130

EEBRREEBRELBERERY community pharmacy services in Hong Kong

SNMENMBERARNERRTBERIER To organise programmes on emerging disease surveillance and prevention 100,000

BEEBAER The University of Hong Kong

BRIRTEEEABESELENRERRER To establish and support the HKU JC Enterprise Sustainability Global 426,700

EMEm > REBESF Research Institute for five years

EREEHS The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

SEZHEEEBETHN _TEASEHRL - — @ To support a decarbonisation project at its 20 youth centres, one camp, 89,990

Eith » — R IR B8 RO K R D HE TR B one multimedia centre and two offices

HE!

BEEKRE The University of Hong Kong

WT—EHTE BOREHIMBIRNERE B To implement an outreach dental service project for kindergarten 79,620

H=FW@EA children for three years and two months

ERBEEAE Hong Kong Baptist University

WTAR =N ERTEETEEHERTP To implement a three-year Traditional Chinese Medicine-driven mental 70,950

O 5T El wellness hub project

HEFE Chi Lin Nunnery

CEHEBZRERBTRBHR  URBEREN For facility upgrade at its Care and Attention Home for the Elderly to 67,430

7 N R improve energy efficiency and infection control

ERA+FE Hong Kong Red Cross

AERBTERERREREIRSE B To provide infection control training and support for high-risk sectors 55,600

Fag:2 for five years

REBRGE Youth Diabetes Action

BITFRERREEEERSHE > AHTF To carry out a project to improve diabetes care for young patients for 50,100
four years

BEBPXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

EHEHEERRERRREEXEIERE B To promote sleep health and provide community insomnia support 39,710

H=FNEA services for three years and nine months

BERLEFLEE The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong

BT —ERBERETATENBMALESHOE To implement a three-year community reintegration project for people 31,360

2 BH=F recovering from severe mental illness

FERYEREES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

BT —ERBEHETATENBALSHIE To implement a three-year community reintegration project for people 29,840

2 BE=F recovering from severe mental iliness
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BHEP KRR

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ASEBRXFETRECERERTE A= To pilot enhanced genetic services for high-risk couples for three years 25,750
"
ERREEEES The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong
AeERXFRETHRECERRRE - A= To pilot enhanced genetic services for high-risk couples for three years 18,290
T
HEEHAREREHR O Christian Family Service Centre
EERBERRTE UENERFRAEEZE To expand a mobile recycling programme to promote green lifestyles 17,850
EERRBERBRKSE  AH=F and to facilitate a circular economy in Kowloon and the New Territories

for three years
REERES Children’s Cancer Foundation
EITFEARESIRPARBARERARMA To implement a three-year project to provide palliative care and end- 17,750
EBRBEREAXE  AH=F of-life support for paediatric patients with life-threatening/limiting

conditions and their families
FERLEFES The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
AXEBRUHENRERRHRESE  AH= To provide peri-natal mental health support for parents for 3.5 years 16,690
FY¥
EREBYRLEFY Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
ARBRHEAREABERESRE  AH= To provide peri-natal mental health support for parents for 3.5 years 13,820
FY¥
HEFE Chi Lin Nunnery
EEEEZAFTHRE RO I HETHETR R To renovate its geriatric dental clinic and organise a community dental 13,260
% BHEI=F programme for three years
BEBPXKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BITFRERREEEERSHE > AHTF For a project to improve diabetes care for young patients for four years 10,900
EERRHEREBEATHE Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association
AREEBFRUFEET EHLEFRZE To implement a community-based dental support programme for the 9,510
2 RAH=F underprivileged in Kwai Tsing District for three years
BEELEFESY The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
EHEEERREERRRESRXERIERE 5 To promote sleep health and provide insomnia support services in the 9,430
H=F3 community for 3.5 years
EREEHE St James’ Settlement
EHERERRERRREEXEIERE 5 To promote sleep health and provide insomnia support services in the 9,310
H=F¥ community for 3.5 years
HEEHRERE SO Christian Family Service Centre
EHEHEERRERRREHRXEIERE B To promote sleep health and provide insomnia support services in the 9,290
H=F¥ community for 3.5 years
BERENEEAGEERAA Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
EHEHEERRERRREEXEIERE 5 To promote sleep health and provide insomnia support services in the 9,220
=43¢ community for 3.5 years
HEHH S BT EZLERYE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service
EHEHEEREEREREMHABRIERYE 5 To promote sleep health and provide insomnia support services in the 9,220

HI=F

community for 3.5 years
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEETREEREBX

S8 (FEx)
Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$ 000)
HERBHEERS New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
BITAM=FNIERPEETERWERESP To implement a three-year Traditional Chinese Medicine-driven mental 7,260
O 5T El wellness hub project
EBPKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BT mETELHIRFIZBEARL To implement a 3.5 year project to provide palliative care and end-of-life 5,840
SERBFREERZEXE  AR=F¥ support for paediatric patients with life-threatening/limiting conditions
and their families
BEERE The University of Hong Kong
BIT—EBREEETALTEFBALEH To implement a three-year community reintegration project for people 3,440
g AH=F recovering from severe mental iliness
EEHBABITEZLERE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service
BHHETBERERETE To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance Programme 3,099
EHYBRBEBETFLESERAT Maggie Keswick Jencks Cancer Caring Centre Foundation Limited
BEEBFHT UOEL | BEXEE To fund its Maggie’s Emotional & Psychosocial Cancer Support 2,969
Programme
BEREAHER The Hong Kong Society for the Blind
BOHEREALIREERP L To fund its Family Resource Centre for the Visually Impaired 2,584
HEY Heep Hong Society
EOHBERERBERIITERE To fund its Outside School Support for Students with Special Education 1,998
Needs and their families
BEBEAREEERAFNL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
BUWETERGRSEIIRKBEE To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education 1,837
Programme
BRI AREPLEBRAR Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited
BOHEROCAEBERE S TERTE To support its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety Culture 546

and Workplace Improvement Project
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BE BRIt

SPORTS, RECREATION AND CULTURE

ERESEREATEESTENHE

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BN - RAZECHESTENRBUERT To organise a Trust-initiated Citywide Programme to Promote Healthy 239,980
2 HEEREIEBNEEERN  AHEF Living through Active Lifestyle for five years.
TEEEREEREE Central Police Station Compound Revitalisation Project
18892023/24 FE REEARETE To fund Tai Kwun’s public programmes in 2023/24 156,050
BERENMSHEERAE Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
7A2024ZF 2026 FHAIEIEEN [ EIR = | L R &1l To fund the implementation of the inclusive arts project “No Limits” 78,330
=t & from 2024 to 2026
FEEBREREGERAA The Football Association of Hong Kong, China Limited
ENAFTERBRFERTMEMIER To organise the remaining two years of the Five-Year Football 62,020
(2023/24 FE £ 2024/25F E) Development Programme (2023/24 to 2024/25)
HREMFERLERAF Hong Kong Chronicles Institute Limited
(BBENITRELSEBE) (HKSAR Community Projects List)
BB BE) B LB | P RS R H To publish four Chinese volumes under the Economy Division and 61,820
NER=S English translation of three volumes for the Hong Kong Chronicles

Project
PEEEEEFE(E Central Police Station Compound Revitalisation Project
18B)2023/24 FE R BT & EE1B To fund Tai Kwun’s operating deficits in 2023/24 55,340
BERKEERERAA Hong Kong Chu Hai College Limited
(BBENITREHLSEBE) (HKSAR Community Projects List)
MUBBNEERENHE2023/24FENHE To set up the Museum of Hong Kong Literature and support its 45,600
BE! educational programmes in 2023/24
EBEMBERTE The Hong Kong Equestrian Performance Programme
TEEBBMERGE (BEFERRRERRESE To support the Hong Kong Equestrian Performance Programme (Youth 41,830
&) AENE Development and Para Dressage) for four years
BEREMBIHEERLA Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
BH2024 FEMB N EEBEFTEEBLEERN To fund The Hong Kong Jockey Club Student Matinee Programme, 34,770
Bl - TEEE2XRERAERS ] - [ FHB 240 Jockey Club Local Creative Talents Series, HKartsFestival@Tai Kwun,
ekt | [EESRENERT I KX2026F Jockey Club InnoArts Series for 2024 and The Hong Kong Jockey Club
B 5EEEEEERAYIHE Series for 2026 Hong Kong Arts Festival
EEAZE Lingnan University
HITIE - Al IBEEHATEE -0 AHME To implement phase two of the ICH+ Innovative Heritage Education 30,190
¥ Programme for 4.5 years
EBEM PO Hong Kong Arts Centre
HATE - Al IBEEHATEE -0 AHME To implement phase two of the ICH+ Innovative Heritage Education 28,560
¥ Programme for 4.5 years
ERANEBEEARAT Hong Kong News-Expo Limited
(BEBBNTHRELSEBE) (HKSAR Community Projects List)
ENENZELRHETE  BHEREF To organise the Information Literacy Public Education Programme for 26,000

(2023/24 FEEE 2027/28 F )

five years (2023/24 - 2027/28)
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEGTEESER

RERLBER Leisure and Cultural Services Department
B2023/ 24 FEEEBENMBEBAHRERM To support the staging of two major exhibitions in Hong Kong in 22,000
X&E 2023/24
BERREERAERAR Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited
ERBREEEIRTESEES » AH= To organise the Elite Athletes School and Community Engagement 20,410
F Programme for three years
TATLE B4 Class 7A Drama Group Limited
EREEEBENTHEHSE ] AN To organise the Jockey Club Fun with Classical Chinese Drama 15,920
+=@A Education Programme for 42 months
ERABEESTANRERETES Hong Kong Jockey Club Music & Dance Fund
F82023/24 FEE2025/26 FEFH R BFIE To support a scholarship scheme for non-local studies in music and 15,000
A ESREBSTTE dance from 2023/24 to 2025/26
ERBHAE Caritas—Hong Kong
RHESERBEREBRESY REEMEE] To organise the “Artkids Studio” Arts Learning Programme for Dyslexic 14,200
BMBBEE - RB=F Students and Deprived Families for three years
EREAERAGEERAA Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
BOEBIBEITELEELREERESS B To organise the “Wellness Sports Journey” programme for three years 11,990
M=%
—HBEBERATR Yat Po Singers Limited
AREENNESSELE—HITE  AH= To organise Jockey Club Yat Po “Happy A-ge-cappella” for Elderly 11,100
+ N8R Project for 38 months
EBERAS Hong Kong Rugby Union
72023 %2024 FHBEIRR t NBREH R SHt To organise the Community Partnership Programme during the 2023 9,690
T EESIEBEE and 2024 Hong Kong Sevens
BEREAREAE Hong Kong Blind Sports Federation
ARBEATSRZTLRERRETE A= To organise a multi-sports development programme for the visually 8,130
i+ impaired for three years
ES—THEE Zuni Icosahedron
BUESEPEMLEMBEBIE 1518 B To fund the implementation of the Jockey Club Learning Chinese 7,650
H=+@A Culture through Arts Tech Theatre Programme for 30 months
BEBLPAGES Hong Kong Blind Union
BEBEALTERSEOMRENESTE B To organise a sports programme with audio description service for the 6,240
=4 visually impaired for three years
BEBATEEEBHEFSY Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
ENEBBYEHBNES LETE > URESE To organise the pilot animal-assisted exercise programme to improve 4,150
REFNGOEE AHBTEEA the well-being of disengaged youth for 15 months
EEALEERAE Association Culturelle France —Hong Kong Limited
T AE R A EMTE2023 M KERI IRES To organise the “Tai Kwun Series” and The Jockey Club Community 3,970
SHERREEMNHRASE Outreach and Arts Education Programmes during the 2023 French May

Arts Festival
EREABEE The Hong Kong Society for the Blind
AREALTERERNESTE  AB=F To organise experiential sports programmes for the visually impaired for 3,500

three years
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RELELEEERHPLOERAFE
EP2024 22026 F Y E XL EEHETENZH
AaraEl

The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited

To organise educational programmes for Intangible Cultural Heritage 2,610
festive events from 2024 to 2026

sRgRAS
BEt R ZHBERE2023 » SHtEHRG
g2 RE-—F

Volleyball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited

To organise the Community Partnership Programme riding on the 2,400
Volleyball Nations League Hong Kong 2023 for a year

BRRAESREAGERRAA

Fi#2024 F 2026 F KRi%H T REFHE R

Joint Association of Traditional Dragon-Boats in Tai O, Hong Kong
Limited
To organise the Tai O Dragon Boat Water Parade from 2024 to 2026 2,400

BERIER
BRENR  UERESEREERNKENE
EIR

Fung Kai Public School

Supplementary grant to complete the Jockey Club Fung Kai Indoor 2,320
Swimming Complex

HEEBERAS
BEEXFNEDARBEERSRYBEEH IR

Squash Association of Hong Kong, China

To acquire a new portable all-glass squash court and a digital 2,200
interactive training system

A REFE Tai Hang Residents’ Welfare Association
EM0024F 2026 F RN BENERE To organise the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Dance from 2024 to 2026 2,130
BEARMNALEREES Hong Kong Cheung Chau Bun Festival Committee

FP2024 2026 F &M A FIBFEE

To organise the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival from 2024 to 2026 1,900

ERZLEEBRAR Hong Kong String Orchestra Limited

BHHIESEZ%eEtE] AH=F To fund the Jockey Club “Power of Music+” Programme for three years 3,300

EE#4BEISERERRAA Alice Theatre Laboratory Limited

BOHFPERHZZHEHRFEE  BH=F To fund its Chinese Classic Literature Theatre-in-Education Project for 3,234
three years

BEREFEMGE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation

BEE[ BRI | EEM TS

To fund its “stART Up - Community Art Project” 3,225

CRAEBRAF
BOHIBESEREER IS

Kick It Heart Limited
To fund its Happy Senior Football Programme for elders 2,740

BEERESEERLA
BERHARHBETRNEERSTE

Young Artists Development Foundation Limited
To fund its Painting Education Programme for the Underprivileged 2,690

BERHRRRARAT
BEEBHREHEARITE  RY=F

Street Soccer Hong Kong Limited
To fund its “Community Football for Future” project for three years. 2,581

REHXEERERTLERAE
BRHEINR B EETS

The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited
To fund its Village Enclave Cultural Heritage Scheme 2,224

XALHERRAR
BENEBXL - BEL 58

Hulu Culture Limited
To fund its Heritage X Arts X Design Walk Plus 2,100

ERAREMPLERAF
BOWEIBESERIB5E8E ]

Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited
To fund its Jockey Club Black Box Theatre Subsidy Scheme 1,985
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L kS

SR (TEx)
Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$ 000)

ERBHRRES Special Olympics Hong Kong
BOHERSHEAREREE To fund its Special Olympics Golf Development Project 1,778
BEROREEHBEERAT Audio Description Association (Hong Kong) Limited

BEAME BB OMPETE  RY=F

To fund its “On-the-Move” Audio Description Programme for the visually 1,677
impaired for three years

Love 21 Foundation Limited

BOWEAERRAAE - BRERBESEMTE
HmMRN2SERRE RS

Love 21 Foundation Limited

To fund its Holistic Sport and Nutrition Programme for the Down 1,674
Syndrome, Autistic, and Neurodiverse community

KES Fu Hong Society
BBHHRERE |52 To fund its “Casa Famiglia” Project 1,500
EBEFERESHE Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association

BYWAIEZHETBHEHEETE ]
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To fund its Mei Ho House Hong Kong Spirit Learning Project 1,485
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